
Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

Date: Thursday, 25th July, 2019
Time: 7.30 pm
Venue: Committee Room - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, 

Essex CB11 4ER

Chair: Councillor E Oliver
Members: Councillors A Dean, G Driscoll (Vice-Chair), V Isham, R Jones, 

A Khan, S Luck, A Storah, M Sutton and J De Vries

Substitutes: Councillors G Bagnall, S Barker, M Caton, C Criscione, R Freeman 
and G Sell

Public Speaking

At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for 
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having 
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. A time limit of 3 
minutes is allowed for each speaker. Please refer to further information overleaf.

AGENDA
PART 1

Open to Public and Press

1 Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest

To receive any apologies for absence and declarations of interest.

2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 5 - 8

To consider the minutes of the meeting on 30 May 2019.

3 Audit Results Report 2018/19 (to follow) 9 - 216

Public Document Pack



To consider the Audit Results Report 2018/19.

4 Statement of Accounts 2018/19 (to follow) 217 - 224

To consider the Statement of Accounts 2018/2019.

5 Cyber Security Update 225 - 230

To consider the Cyber Security Update.

6 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2018-19 231 - 242

To consider the Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2018-19.

7 Internal Audit Strategy and Work Programme 2019-20 243 - 256

To consider the Internal Audit Strategy and Work Programme 2019-
20

8 Quarter 1 2019/20 KPI & PI Report 257 - 274

To consider the Quarter 1 2019/20 KPI & PI Report.



MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC

Members of the public are welcome to attend any of the Council’s Cabinet or 
Committee meetings and listen to the debate.  All agendas, reports and minutes can 
be viewed on the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk. For background papers in 
relation to this meeting please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 
510548/369.

Members of the public and representatives of parish and town councils are permitted 
to speak or ask questions at any of these meetings.  You will need to register with 
the Democratic Services Officer by midday two working days before the meeting.

The agenda is split into two parts.  Most of the business is dealt with in Part I which 
is open to the public.  Part II includes items which may be discussed in the absence 
of the press or public, as they deal with information which is personal or sensitive for 
some other reason.  You will be asked to leave the meeting before Part II items are 
discussed.

Agenda and Minutes are available in alternative formats and/or languages.  For more 
information please call 01799 510510.

Facilities for people with disabilities 
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets.  The 
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties 
can hear the debate.

If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a 
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510548/369 
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.

Fire/emergency evacuation procedure 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave 
the building by the nearest designated fire exit.  You will be directed to the nearest 
exit by a designated officer.  It is vital you follow their instructions.

For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510369 or 510548 
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk

General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER

Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550

Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
mailto:uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



GOVERNANCE, AUDIT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE held at 
COMMITTEE ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, LONDON ROAD, SAFFRON 
WALDEN, ESSEX CB11 4ER, on THURSDAY, 30 MAY 2019 at 7.30 pm

Present: Councillor E Oliver (Chair)
Councillors A Dean, N Hargreaves, V Isham, P Lees, L Pepper, 
G Sell (as Substitute) and M Sutton

Also 
Present:

Councillors S Barker and C Criscione

Officers in 
attendance:

R Auty (Assistant Director - Corporate Services), S Bronson 
(Audit Manager), P Evans (Customer Services and Performance 
Manager), A Mawson (Democratic Services Officer) and A Webb 
(Director - Finance and Corporate Services)

GAP1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Armstrong, Bagnall, Khan 
and Light.

Councillor Dean spoke about the membership of the committee and said that it 
was inappropriate that there were five members of the Cabinet on the 
committee. He said this was a conflict of interests and wanted to know how it 
was to be addressed. 

Councillor Hargreaves advised that the five members would be replaced on the 
committee and that this had been a genuine oversight. There was nothing that 
would indicate this was inappropriate in the Constitution but agreed that the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) guidelines were 
clear.

GAP2  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting held on 7 February 2019 were signed and approved 
as a correct record.

GAP3  EXTERNAL AUDIT (BDO LLP) VERBAL UPDATE 

Mr Eagles delivered a verbal update on the Audit Plan; he said that BDO was 
ready to start when the accounts were produced, and advised that they were on 
track for the completion report to be delivered to the committee at the end of 
July. 

The Director of Finance and Corporate Services advised the committee the draft 
accounts had been published on 29 May 2019, ahead of the 31 May 2019 
deadline.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



The Chair offered congratulations to staff for their hard work in meeting the 
deadline.

GAP4  DRAFT ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018-19 

The Audit Manager introduced the Draft Annual Governance Statement 2018-19 
and advised that it was a live draft document subject to changes, and looks back 
over the year 2018-19.  The final document would be submitted with the final 
accounts in July as well as being sent to the external auditors. 

Councillor Dean drew the committee’s attention to a number of points which 
referred to the role of the committee being a robust challenge to the Cabinet 
(3.9), changing the wording in 3.10 to reflect the role of the committee in the 
same manner in which the Scrutiny Committee was referred to in point 3.9.  He 
referred to key recommendations made by the last committee in establishing a 
Memorandum of Understanding between the executive and scrutiny (3.19) and 
requested that sight was not lost of the recommendations of a review into the 
council’s scrutiny practices by the Centre for Public Scrutiny..

Councillor Dean also referred to the Implementation of Recommendations from 
the Ombudsman (p12) in relation to complaints, citing that there had been a 
number of Freedom of Information Act requests which had got lost, and that 
there must now be a robust method of tracking. 

The Assistant Director of Corporate Services advised that an authority has to 
have a scrutiny committee in place where they are running a cabinet system, 
which is stipulated in the Local Government Act.  This committee was not 
designated a scrutiny committee in terms of the constitution.  The Memorandum 
of Understanding was going as part of a report to the first meeting of the Scrutiny 
Committee.

Councillor Sell spoke about the size of the Cabinet that had been appointed in 
relation to other authorities and that he shared the aspiration to move to a 
committee system.  

Councillor Sell said that he was concerned that when this Committee met again 
in a year’s time to look at the Audit Manager’s statement, it could be 
unequivocally said that the committee had good governance.

Councillor Sell said that he specifically wanted to bring to the attention of the 
Committee that Uttlesford had gone up to the maximum sized cabinet, that the 
Special Responsibility Allowance payments had been changed and that there 
was a lack of transparency about this course of action by the administration.  He 
said that he didn’t know what the SRAs were going to be, and that was a point 
that should have been referred to the Independent Remuneration Panel. 

The Chair put the recommendation to the committee that the Members approve 
the draft Annual Governance Statement. 

The Committee voted in favour unanimously. 

Page 6



RESOLVED that the draft Annual Governance Statements was approved.

GAP5 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 01 FEBRUARY TO 30 APRIL 2019 

The Audit Manager presented the Internal Audit Progress Report, 1 February to 
30 April 2019, and made mention of the following points;

There had been an extension to the work on the Internal Audit Work Programme 
2018/19 into the new financial year, completion was predicted by 30 June 2019, 
which would be included in the July 2019 GAP committee meeting. This had 
been due to a stretch on resources which had been addressed. 

The Chair stated that the report had been noted as per the recommendation.  

GAP6  DRAFT INTERNAL AUDIT WORK PROGRAMME 2019-20 

The Audit Manager delivered the Draft Internal Audit Work Programme 2019 – 
20 to the committee.

In response to a Member question relating to Item 41 in the table on page 37 of 
the agenda pack, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services clarified that in 
line with the Constitution (Part 6, Page 5, Paragraph 4) “a councillor may elect to 
forgo any part of his or her entitlement to an allowance under the scheme by 
giving notice in writing to the Chief Executive”.  He advised that it was stated at 
Full Council that the cabinet would forgo 45% of their allowance to enable the 
expansion of the cabinet to ten and that in comparison to the previous 
administration there was a saving of £546.15 

Councillor Sell recommended that the Independent Remuneration Panel (IRP) 
be advised of the changes as a matter of courtesy. 

The members discussed the merits of informing the IRP prior to the decision 
being made. The Director of Finance and Corporate Services stated that as this 
course of action was prescribed as part of the Constitution, there was no 
requirement to consult with the IRP. However as a matter of courtesy it was 
agreed that they would inform the panel.

The Chair noted the report as per the recommendation.

GAP7  CYBER SECURITY UPDATE 

The Assistant Director of ICT and Facilities delivered the Cyber Security Update 
which was noted by the committee. 

The committee discussed the appointment of the Lead Member responsible for 
oversight of cyber security but it was decided to postpone this appointment until 
the next meeting when the membership of the committee would be resolved. 

Page 7



Action: Appoint a member of the Committee as the Lead Member 
responsible for oversight of cyber security.

GAP8  PROCUREMENT UPDATE - OCTOBER 2018 - MARCH 2019 

The Assistant Director of Resources delivered the Bi-Annual Procurement 
Update which was noted as per the recommendation by the Committee. 

GAP9  Q4 2018/19 & YEAR END 2018/19 KPI & PI REPORT 

The PFI & Performance Officer and the Customer Services and Performance 
Manager delivered the Quarter 4 2018/19 & Year End 2018/19 Performance 
indicator report to the Committee.

Councillor Dean offered his congratulations to Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Benefits (KPI 04, 06a and 06b), as well as noting the positive sickness figures 
(KPI 07a and b).

In response to a Member question, the Assistant Director of Corporate Services 
advised that the Museum’s visitor’s targets were already set at a challenging 
level and that the Museum would be changing the way in which the figures were 
reported to ensure the full range of Museum services, including outreach work, 
were considered.. 

The committee discussed the Planning: Development Management KPIs as 
there had been some changes in resources in the department.  Councillor Dean 
asked that the committee keep an eye on the KPIs in this area to ensure that the 
changes resulted in improvements.

GAP10 2019/20 PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TARGET SETTING 

The PFI & Performance Officer and the Customer Services and Performance 
Manager delivered the 2019/2020 Performance Indicator Targets Report to the 
Committee.

In response to a request from Councillor Hargreaves it was agreed to look at the 
wording for the new planning KPIs.

In accordance with the recommendation the committee approved the proposed 
targets for 2019/2020.

The Chair offered thanks to those who would not be returning to the committee.

Meeting Closed 8:45pm

Page 8



Report to the Audit Committee

UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL
Audit Completion Report: Year ended 31 March 2019

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 3



CONTENTS

1 Introduction 3

Welcome 3

2 Executive summary 4

Overview 4

The numbers 5

Other matters 6

3 Financial statements 7

Audit risks overview 7

Management override of controls 8

Valuation of non-current assets 9

Valuation of non-current assets (continued) 10

Revenue recognition – fees and charges 11

Pension liability assumptions 12

Pensions liability assumptions (continued) 13

Implementation of IFRS9 – financial instruments 14

Implementation of IFRS 15 - revenue from contracts with service 

recipients
15

Related party transactions 16

Matters requiring additional consideration – prior period 

adjustment
17

Matters requiring additional consideration 18

4 Audit differences 19

Unadjusted audit differences: summary 19

Unadjusted audit differences: detail 20

Unadjusted audit differences: detail 21

Adjusted audit differences: summary 22

5 Other reporting matters 23

Reporting on other information 23

Whole of Government Accounts 24

6 Use of resources 25

Overview 25

Sustainable finances 26

7 Control environment 27

Significant deficiencies 27

8 Audit report 28

Overview 28

9 Independence and fees 29

Independence 29

Fees 30

10 Appendices contents 31

P
age 10



3 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

We have pleasure in presenting our Audit Completion Report to the Audit 

Committee. This report is an integral part of our communication strategy 

with you, a strategy which is designed to ensure effective two 

way communication throughout the audit process with those charged 

with governance. 

It summarises the results of completing the planned audit approach for 

the year ended 31 March 2019, specific audit findings and areas requiring 

further discussion and/or the attention of the Governance, Audit and 

Performance Committee. At the completion stage of the audit it is essential 

that we engage with the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee on 

the results of our audit of the Group and the Council financial statements 

and use of resources comprising: audit work on key risk areas, including 

significant estimates and judgements made by management, critical 

accounting policies, any significant deficiencies in internal controls, and the 

presentation and disclosure in the financial statements.

We look forward to discussing these matters with you at the Audit 

Committee meeting and to receiving your input. In the meantime, if you 

would like to discuss any aspects in advance of the meeting we would be 

happy to do so. 

We would also like to take this opportunity to thank the management and 

staff of the Council for the co-operation and assistance provided during the 

audit.

David Eagles, Partner

for and on behalf of BDO LLP 18 July 2019

WELCOME

David Eagles
Engagement lead

t: 01473 320728

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

Alison Langridge
Senior Audit Manager

t: 01473 320752

e: Alison.langridge@bdo.co.uk

INTRODUCTION

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed primarily for the purpose of expressing our 

opinion on the Group and the Council financial statements and use of resources. This report has been prepared solely for the use of the Audit Committee and those charged with governance. In preparing 

this report we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person. For more information on our respective responsibilities please see the appendices.

Introduction

Contents

Introduction

Welcome

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 11



4 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

OVERVIEW
Executive summary

This summary provides an overview 

of the audit matters that we believe 

are important to the Governance, 

Audit and Performance Committee

in reviewing the results of the audit 

of the financial statements and use 

of resources of the Group for the 

year ended 31 March 2019. 

It is also intended to promote 

effective communication and 

discussion and to ensure that the 

results of the audit appropriately 

incorporate input from those 

charged with governance.

Overview

Our audit work is substantially 

complete and subject to the 

successful resolution of outstanding 

matters, we anticipate issuing our  

opinion on the Group’s financial 

statements and the Council’s use of 

resources for the year ended 31 

March 2019 before the deadline. 

Outstanding matters are listed on 

page 35 in the appendices. 

There have been no changes to the 

planned  audit approach reported to 

the Committee on 7 February 2019.

No restrictions were placed on 

our work.

Audit report

We anticipate issuing an unmodified

audit opinion on the on the 

consolidated Group financial 

statements and the Council’s  

financial statements and use of 

resources. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Overview

The numbers 

Other matters

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 12



5 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

THE NUMBERS 
Executive summary

Final materiality

Group final materiality was 

determined based on gross 

expenditure. This has been updated 

from our Audit Plan to reflect 

outturn in the financial statements. 

Material misstatements 

Our audit work completed to date 

has not identified any material 

misstatements.

Prior Period Adjustment

We engaged with the Council at an 

early stage to review prior period 

accounts to identify whether there 

were any issues that might require 

reconsideration of accounting and 

reporting treatment.

We identified and discussed one 

such matter, relating to the 

treatment of loans linked to the 

Aspire investment. A prior period 

adjustment was agreed and 

incorporated in the draft accounts 

submitted for audit. This is 

discussed on page 17.

Unadjusted audit differences 

Our work completed to date has 

identified audit adjustments that, 

if posted, would decrease the 

deficit on the provision of services 

by £67k. 

This excludes the McCloud 

additional pension liabilities £722k 

which is balance sheet only.

2019
MATERIALITY

£930k

CLEARLY TRIVIAL
£18,000

7.2%

Unadjusted differences vs. 
materiality

Audit scope

Our approach was designed to 

ensure we obtained the required 

level of assurance across the 

components of the Group in 

accordance with ISA (UK) 600 

(Audits of Group Financial 

Statements). We are on course to 

achieve this objective.

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Overview

The numbers 

Other matters

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 13



6 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

OTHER MATTERS
Executive summary

Financial reporting

• Work completed to date has not identified any non-

compliance with group accounting policies or the 

applicable accounting framework.

• No significant accounting policy changes have been 

identified impacting the current year. Policies have 

changed to reflect the requirements of new 

accounting standards IFRS 9 and 15, but we are not 

aware that these have had a material impact.

• Going concern disclosures are deemed sufficient.

• The Narrative Report and other information included 

in the Statement of Accounts with the financial 

statements is consistent with the financial statements 

and our knowledge acquired in the course of the 

audit.

• The Annual Governance Statement is not inconsistent 

or misleading with other information we are aware 

of.

• The Council is below the audit threshold of £500 

million for a full assurance review of the Whole of 

Government Accounts Data Collection Tool.

Other matters that require discussion or 
confirmation

• Confirmation on fraud, contingent liabilities and 

subsequent events.

• Letter of Representation.

Independence 

We confirm that the firm and its partners and staff 

involved in the audit remain independent of the 

Group and the Council in accordance with the 

Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard. 

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Overview

The numbers 

Other matters

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Overview

The numbers 

Other matters

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 14



7 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

As identified in our Audit Plan dated 25 January 2019 we assessed the following matters as being the most significant risks of material misstatement in the 

financial statements. These include those risks which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit and the 

direction of the efforts of the engagement team.

Areas requiring your attention 

Financial 
statements

AUDIT RISKS OVERVIEW

Audit Risk Risk Rating

Significant Management 

Estimates or Judgement

Use of Experts 

Required

Error 

Identified

Significant Control 

Findings

Discussion points / 

Letter of 

Representation

Management override of controls Significant No No Work Ongoing No No

Non-current asset valuations Significant Yes Yes Work Ongoing No Yes

Revenue recognition (fees and 

charges)

Significant No No No No No

Pension liability assumptions Significant Yes Yes Yes No No

Implementation of IFRS9 

(Financial Instruments)

Significant No No Work Ongoing No No

Implementation of IFRS15 

(revenue from contracts with 

service recipients)

Significant No No No No No

Related party transactions Normal No No No No Yes

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 15



8 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

The primary responsibility for the detection of fraud rests with management. Their role in the detection of fraud is an 

extension of their role in preventing fraudulent activity. They are responsible for establishing a sound system of 

internal control designed to support the achievement of departmental policies, aims and objectives and to manage 

the risks facing the organisation; this includes the risk of fraud.

Under auditing standards there is a presumed significant risk of management override of the system of internal 

controls.

Work performed

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:

• Tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in the 

preparation of the financial statements.

• Reviewed accounting estimates for biases and evaluated whether the circumstances producing the bias, if any, 

represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

• Obtained an understanding of the business rationale for significant transactions that were outside the normal 

course of business for the Council or that otherwise appeared to be unusual, if any.

Results

Our audit work on journals is currently ongoing. No issues have been identified to date. 

Our work to date on estimates has not identified any bias indicating a risk of material misstatement.

We  did not identify any transactions outside the normal course of business for the Council.

ISA (UK) 240 presumes 
that management is in 
a unique position to 
perpetrate fraud.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

MANAGEMENT OVERRIDE OF CONTROLS

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 16



9 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

Local authorities are required to ensure that the carrying value of non-current assets is not materially different to the 

current value (operational assets) or fair value (surplus assets and investment properties) at the balance sheet date.

Due to the significant value of the Council’s non-current assets and the high degree of estimation uncertainty, there is 

a risk over the valuation of non-current assets where valuations are based on assumptions or where updated valuations 

have not been provided for a class of assets at the year-end.

Work performed

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:

• Reviewed the instructions provided to the valuers and the valuers’ skills and expertise in order to determine if we 

can rely on the management experts

• Reviewed the reasonableness of assumptions used in the valuation of non-current assets, the accuracy and 

completeness of the source data used by the valuers and the Council’s critical assessment of the external valuers’

conclusions.

• Confirmed that the basis of valuation for assets valued in year is appropriate based on their use.

• Confirm that the assets not specifically valued in the year have been assessed to ensure that their reported values 

remain materially correct.

Results

The instructions provided to the professional valuers were in line with expectation and we have confirmed the valuers

have the expertise and qualification to act as management experts for the purpose of valuing the Council’s property. 

The basis on which assets have been valued is appropriate.

We remain in discussion with the valuers regarding the source data for the valuations, in particular evidence to 

support the floor areas of the properties we selected to test. Audit work to address the valuation risk is currently 

ongoing. 

There is a risk over the 
valuation of land and 
buildings due to 
inherent uncertainty 
and judgements 
involved.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

VALUATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 17



10 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Continued

VALUATION OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Significant accounting estimates: Valuation of land and buildings

Overview

The Council’s valuation process in 2018/19 comprised the following:

• Land and buildings are valued cyclically, at least five yearly, with high 

value assets being valued more frequently (all PPE and investment 

property has been revalued within the past two years)

• Revaluations are completed on types of assets thought to have moved 

significantly due to market factors or indications of impairment 

• Revaluations are completed on assets subject to significant capital works 

or alterations in the year

• All assets held at fair value are revalued annually.

Valuations completed during 2018/19

The Council’s external professional valuer valued the property as at 31 

March 2019, resulting in approximately £9m net increase in value. We tested 

a representative sample of land and buildings (including investment 

properties) subject to revaluation, to ensure the information on which 

valuations were based was accurate and the valuation movements were 

correctly accounted for. We challenged the valuer and questioned the 

Council where individual movements were outside of expected ranges, and 

we are satisfied that, overall, the Council’s valuations fall within a 

reasonable range for those assets formally revalued.

We challenged the assumptions used by valuers for specialised assets valued 

on a depreciated replacement cost (DRC) basis, council dwellings valued on 

an existing use basis with a social housing adjustment (EUV-SH) adjusted, 

other land and buildings valued on an EUV basis and investment properties 

valued at fair value (FV). We also challenged the valuers on the reasons why 

individual assets moved in value outside of our expectation, for instance due 

to changes in valuation method or yields.

We will provide further information on the factors and assumptions that 

impacted on the valuations once discussions with the valuer have concluded. 

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 18



11 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

Under auditing Standards there is a presumption that income recognition presents a fraud risk. For local authorities, 

the risks can be identified as affecting the completeness, accuracy and existence of income.

In particular, we consider there to be a significant risk in respect of the existence (recognition) of fees and charges. 

The presumed significant risk has been rebutted for all other income streams.

Work performed

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:

• Tested a sample of fees and charges to ensure income has been recorded in the correct period and that all income 

that should have been recorded has been recorded.

Results

No issues were identified from audit procedures completed in respect of this risk. 

Under auditing 
standards there is a 
presumption that 
income recognition 
presents a fraud risk.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

REVENUE RECOGNITION – FEES AND CHARGES

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 19



12 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

The net pension liability comprises the Council’s share of the market value of assets held in the Essex County Council 

Pension Fund, and the estimated future liability to pay pensions.

An actuarial estimate of the pension fund liability is calculated by an independent firm of actuaries with specialist 

knowledge and experience. The estimate is based on the most up to date membership data held by the pension fund 

and has regard to local factors such as mortality rates and expected pay rises along with other assumptions around 

inflation when calculating the liability.

There is a risk the membership data and cash flows provided to the actuary as 31 March may not be correct, or the 

valuation uses inappropriate assumptions to value the liability.

Work performed

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:

• Agreed the disclosures to the information provided by the pension fund actuary

• Reviewed the reasonableness of the assumptions used in the calculation against other local government actuaries 

and other observable data

• Obtained assurance from the auditor of the pension fund over the controls for providing accurate membership data 

to the actuary

• Checked whether any significant changes in membership data have been communicated to the actuary.

Results

All disclosures in the financial statements agree to the actuarial report obtained from Barnett Waddingham. The 

assumptions on which the Council has based its disclosure are consistent with those used by the actuary, which are in 

line with the expectations set out in PwC’s consulting actuary report.

We report to those charged with governance that we have reported an non-material un-adjusted error of £722k to 

increase the Council’s pension liability since the draft accounts were prepared. This adjustment was not the result of 

an audit finding but due to a recent judgement in the supreme court (Lord Chancellor v McCloud) that the Council and 

BDO consider creates an obligation on LGPS schemes that existed at the balance sheet date and requires recognition 

by the applicable accounting framework. The Council sought actuarial advice on the impact on its liability and we are 

satisfied with the assumptions used by the actuary. 

There is a risk over the 
valuation of the 
Council’s LGPS liability 
due to inherent 
uncertainty and 
judgements involved.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

PENSION LIABILITY ASSUMPTIONS

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 20



13 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Continued

PENSION LIABILITY ASSUMPTIONS

Significant accounting estimates: Valuation of pension liability

Overview

The actuary (Barnett Waddingham) has used the following assumptions to value the pension 

liability. We compared the assumptions and estimates used by the actuary with the expected 

ranges provided by the independent consulting actuary. 

Actual used Acceptable range Comments
Financials:

- RPI increase 3.40% 3.40 - 3.45% Reasonable

- CPI increase 2.40% 2.40 - 2.45% Reasonable

- Salary increase 3.90% 3.10 – 4.35% Reasonable

- Pension increase 2.40% 2.40 - 2.45% Reasonable

- Discount rate 2.4% 2.35- 2.45% Reasonable

Mortality assumptions:

- Male current 22.9 years 22.4 - 25.0 Reasonable

- Female current 25.4 years 25.0 - 26.6 Reasonable

Discussion

• PwC concluded that, overall, the methodologies used by 

Barnett Waddingham to establish to assumptions used to 

calculate the liability are reasonable.

• We are satisfied that the assumptions used by the 

Council are consistent with the ranges proposed by the 

actuary and that the ranges proposed by the actuary are 

consistent with market expectations.

• The assumptions used are neither aggressive or non-

aggressive, in all instances being within the expectation 

of the actuary and PwC consulting report.

Impact

< lower higher >

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 21



14 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the implementation of IFRS 9 (financial instruments) in 

2018/19. 

Under IAS 39, impairment methodology was only recognised where there is objective evidence that a financial asset 

was impaired. IFRS 9 changes to an expected losses model, which the Council considers the potential for impairment 

over the lifetime of the asset. 

The Council needs to review the classification of all financial instruments and prepare new disclosures. 

These changes require an adjustment to opening balances reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

There is a risk that these presentational changes are not correctly applied in the financial statements.

Work performed

We reviewed the draft financial statements and supporting working papers which details the Council’s proposed 

approach to the new accounting standard. 

We checked the draft financial statements against the CIPFA Disclosure Checklist to ensure that all of the required 

presentational changes have been correctly reflected within the financial statements. 

Results

We reviewed and agreed in advance the Council’s approach to treating IFRS 9. Our audit work on Financial Instruments 

is currently ongoing, 

IFRS9 is implemented 
from 2018/19.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS9 – FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 22



15 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the implementation of IFRS 15 (revenue from contracts 

with service recipients) in 2018/19.

Although the Code determines that IFRS 15 is mainly for exchange transactions (fees and charges), the Group’s 

revenue streams also need to be assessed. The Council needs to have arrangements in place to be able to consider 

contracts entered into by the subsidiaries and apply any accounting policy adjustments required.  

The Council needs to review the classification of all revenue streams and amend the accounting policies note. 

These changes require an adjustment to opening balances reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

There is a risk that these presentational changes are not correctly applied in the financial statements.

Work performed

We reviewed the draft financial statements and supporting working papers which details the Council’s proposed 

approach to the new accounting standard. 

We checked the draft financial statements against the CIPFA Disclosure Checklist to ensure that all of the required 

presentational changes have been correctly reflected within the financial statements. 

Results

We reviewed the supporting working papers provided by the Council prior to the audit and agreed with Management’s 

assertion that the effect of this change was immaterial to the Council’s Accounts.

IFRS15 is implemented 
from 2018/19.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

IMPLEMENTATION OF IFRS15 – REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 
SERVICE RECIPIENTS

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 23



16 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

We need to consider if the disclosures in the financial statements concerning related party transactions are complete 

and adequate and in line with the requirements of the accounting standards.

Work performed

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:

• Obtained an understanding of the related party transactions identification procedures in place and reviewed 

relevant information concerning such identified transactions

• Discussed with management and reviewed senior management declarations of interest, completed searches of 

interests and interrogated the ledger to ensure there are no related party transactions that have incorrectly not 

been disclosed

• Requested representation to be included in your management representation letter to us.

Results

Our audit work to address the risk is currently ongoing. No issues have been identified to date.

Transactions with 
related parties can be 
material to the users of 
accounts for qualitative 
reasons even if they do 
not exceed the 
materiality threshold 
applied to the financial 
statements as a whole. 

Significant risk

Normal risk

Significant management 
judgement

Use of experts

Unadjusted error

Adjusted error

Additional disclosure required

Significant Control Findings 

Letter of Representation point

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 24



17 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Prior Period Adjustment

In 2018 the Council took advice from its external Financial Advisors, 

Arlingclose, on the accounting treatment of the forward starting loans. Using 

this guidance and an interpretation of IAS39/IFRS9 the Council adopted the 

policy to follow the accounting for forward contracts on fixed rate debt 

instruments. On that basis cash flow hedge accounting was applied to 

remove the Profit and Loss volatility and set up a cash flow hedge reserve 

under the scope of IAS39/IFRS9. 

In 2019 the guidance for the accounting treatment of the forward starting 

loans was reviewed and it was established that the scenario in question, 

namely an agreement with a finance provider (Phoenix) to draw down a loan 

at a specified date in the future, at a fixed rate of interest, is specifically 

scoped out of IFRS 9. Consequently they should be re-classified as loan 

commitments and the Council followed the accounting for optional loan 

commitments not treated as a derivative. This simpler form of accounting 

also removed the need for complex cash flow hedging transactions to be 

reflected.

This change in classification meant that the previous accounting policy 

adopted applied was no longer applicable appropriate and the previous 

accounting entries were reversed and the 2017/18 accounts have been 

restated.

BDO had engaged with the Council at an early stage to review prior period 

accounts to identify whether there were any issues that might require 

reconsideration of accounting and reporting treatment. The prior period 

adjustment was agreed and incorporated in the draft accounts submitted for 

audit. This early engagement and agreement avoided the need for additional 

work needing to be undertaken in the peak final audit visit period.

MATTERS REQUIRING ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION 

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 25



18 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Fraud

Whilst the directors have ultimate responsibility for prevention and 

detection of fraud, we are required to obtain reasonable assurance that the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement, including those 

arising as a result of fraud. Our audit procedures did not identify any fraud.

We will seek confirmation from you whether you are aware of any known, 

suspected or alleged frauds since we last enquired when presenting the Audit 

Plan on 7 February 2019. 

Laws and regulations

We have made enquiries of management regarding compliance with laws and 

regulations and reviewed correspondence with the relevant authorities.

We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations that could 

have a material impact on the financial statements.

Internal audit

We reviewed the audit work of the Council’s internal audit function to assist 

our risk scoping at the planning stage. 

Related parties

Whilst you are responsible for the completeness of the disclosure of related 

party transactions in the financial statements, we are also required to 

consider related party transactions in the context of fraud as they may 

present greater risk for management override or concealment or fraud. 

Our work to date has not identified any significant matters in connection 

with related parties.

Group matters

We have undertaken sufficient work on the transactions and balances in the 

Aspire subsidiary to be satisfied with these for the purposes of the group 

audit.

MATTERS REQUIRING ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATION 

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit risks overview

Management override of controls

Valuation of non-current assets

Revenue recognition

Pension liability assumptions

Implementation of IFRS9

Implementation of IFRS15

Related party transactions

Matters requiring additional 

consideration 

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 26



19 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Summary for the current year

We are required to bring to your attention unadjusted differences and we 
request that you correct them. 

Audit work completed to date has identified three unadjusted errors:

• £365k worth of revaluations that should have been credited to services 

rather than through the revaluation reserve.

• £149k formula error on the valuation report

• £149k of assets that did not need to be indexed per the valuer’s report

The general fund balance would decrease surplus by £67k if these audit 

differences were adjusted. 

In addition, the following item (not included in the tables on the following 

pages) has arisen as a result of a clarification in a legal case relating to 

public sector pensions:

• £722k McCloud understatement of liabilities (based on an actuarial 

estimate)

You consider the differences to be immaterial in the context of the financial 

statements as a whole.

UNADJUSTED AUDIT DIFFERENCES: SUMMARYAudit 
differences

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Unadjusted audit differences: 

summary

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted disclosure omissions 

and improvements

Adjusted audit differences: 

summary

Adjusted audit differences: detail

Adjusted disclosure omissions and 

improvements

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 27



20 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Income and expenditure Statement of Financial Position

Unadjusted audit differences

NET DR/(CR)

£’000

DR

£’000

(CR)

£’000

DR

£’000

(CR)

£’000

Deficit on the provision of services before unadjusted 

audit differences

(17,116) 278,954

1: Impact of brought forward unadjusted errors 0

2: Revaluations that should have been credited to services 

rather than through the revaluation reserve.

CR NCOS (expenditure) 365

DR Revaluation Reserve 365

3: Formula Error on valuation report

DR NCOS (expenditure) 149

CR PPE Council Dwellings 149

4. Assets incorrectly indexed

DR NCOS (expenditure) 149

CR PPE Land and Buildings 149

Details for the current year

UNADJUSTED AUDIT DIFFERENCES: DETAIL

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Unadjusted audit differences: 

summary

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted disclosure omissions 

and improvements

Adjusted audit differences: 

summary

Adjusted audit differences: detail

Adjusted disclosure omissions and 

improvements

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 28



21 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Income and expenditure Statement of Financial Position

Unadjusted audit differences

NET DR/(CR)

£’000

DR

£’000

(CR)

£’000

DR

£’000

(CR)

£’000

Total unadjusted audit differences 298 365 365 298

Surplus on the provision of services if above issues 

adjusted
17,049

Details for the current year

UNADJUSTED AUDIT DIFFERENCES: DETAIL

Impact on the General Fund balance and HRA 

balance

General Fund 

balance 

£’000

HRA balance 

£’000

Balance before unadjusted audit differences (1,256) (5,164)

Impact on deficit on the provision of services 

above

67 0

Adjustments that would be reversed from the 

General Fund and HRA balance through the 

Movement in Reserves Statement

0 0

Balances after the above adjustments (1,189) (5,164)

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Unadjusted audit differences: 

summary

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted disclosure omissions 

and improvements

Adjusted audit differences: 

summary

Adjusted audit differences: detail

Adjusted disclosure omissions and 

improvements

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 29



22 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Summary for the current year

Work completed to date has identified the following adjustments:

• £ 1.9m adjustment between the CAA and the revaluation reserve.

• £238k adjustment as a result of resubmitting the Housing and Council Tax 

benefits grant claim, this will decrease the surplus in the Total 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement by £238k.

We are required to bring to your attention other financial reporting 
matters that the Audit Committee is required to consider. 

The following disclosure adjustments have been made to the draft financial 

statements provided for audit.

• Wording amendments to the Restatement note.

• Other minor narrative amendments to Financial Instruments and the HRA 

notes.

ADJUSTED AUDIT DIFFERENCES: SUMMARY

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Unadjusted audit differences: 

summary

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted audit differences: 

detail

Unadjusted disclosure omissions 

and improvements

Adjusted audit differences: 

summary

Adjusted audit differences: detail

Adjusted disclosure omissions and 

improvements

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 30



23 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

We comment below on other reporting required to be considered in arriving at the final content of our audit report:

REPORTING ON OTHER INFORMATION

Matter Comment

We are required to report on whether the financial and non-financial 

information in the Narrative Report within the Statement of Accounts is 

consistent with the financial statements and the knowledge acquired by 

us in the course of our audit.

We are satisfied that the other information in the Narrative Report is consistent 

with the financial statements and our knowledge.

We are required to report by exception if the Annual Governance 

Statement is inconsistent or misleading with other information we are 

aware of from our audit of the financial statements, the evidence 

provided in the Council’s review of effectiveness and our knowledge of 

the Council.

We have no matters to report in relation to the consistency of the Annual 

Governance Statement with the financial statements and our knowledge.

Other reporting 
matters

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Reporting on other information

Whole of Government Accounts

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 31



24 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT ACCOUNTS

Matter Comment

Auditors are required to review Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 

information prepared by component bodies that are over the prescribed 

threshold of £500 million in any of: assets (excluding property, plant and 

equipment); liabilities (excluding pension liabilities); income or 

expenditure. The Council falls below the threshold for review and there is 

no requirement for further work other than to submit the section on the 

WGA Assurance Statement to the WGA audit team with the total values 

for assets, liabilities, income and expenditure.

Local authorities were required to submit the unaudited DCT to HM Treasury and 

auditors by 28 June 2019. The Council did not meet this deadline.

We are required to submit the relevant section of the assurance statement to 

the National Audit Office by 13 September 2019.

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Reporting on other information

Whole of Government Accounts

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 32



25 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

We are required to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made to 

secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources (value 

for money) and report to you on an 'except for' basis. This is based on the 

following reporting criterion:

In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to 

ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to 

achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 

OVERVIEW

There are three sub criteria that we consider as part of our overall risk 

assessment:

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Informed decision making

• Working with partners and other third parties.

Use of 
resources

Audit Risk Criterion Risk Rating Issues identified that impact on conclusion

Sustainable finances Sustainable resource deployment Significant No

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Overview

Sustainable finances

commercialisation

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 33



26 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Risk description 

Forthcoming changes to funding, including that relating to the New Homes Bonus and business rates retention is 

expected to place notable financial pressures on the Council in the medium term.

In anticipation of this, the Council is taking steps to consider a number of commercial development opportunities and 

potentially transformational change. Current financial stability allows the Council time to put such arrangements in 

place in a properly considered manner and not hastily.

Nevertheless, the financial pressure and the way in which the proposed initiatives are approached represent a 

significant risk in respect of the sustainable deployment of resources, informed decision-making and working with 

partners.

Work performed

We carried out the following planned audit procedures:

• We will review the assumptions used in the Medium Term Financial Strategy and assess the reasonableness of the 

cost pressures and the amount of Government grant reductions applied.

• We will also review the strategies to close the budget gap in the medium term. 

• Hold interviews with key officers.

Results

The Council has appropriate arrangements in place to ensure that it can sustainably deploy resources in the medium 

term.

We have reviewed the MTFS and the assumptions used for revenue planning and are content that these are reasonable. 

The Council made a surplus compared to budget of £336k in 2018/19.  The Council is budgeting a break even position 

for 2019/20, putting aside £1.059 from the 2019/20 budget into a funding reserve and then allocating this over the 

next 4 years to support a programme of change (saving and efficiencies) in future years. Work is underway to identify 

the savings required to close the gap in the medium term, an efficiency workshop for senior managers  is planned for 

August 2019 ( a similar workshop occurred in 2018/19 and these savings were built into the budget position). The 

Council has sufficient unallocated general fund balances so has sufficient resources to cover the gap in the medium 

term. 

The Council will need 
to deliver significant 
savings to maintain 
balanced budgets.

Significant risk

Normal risk

Sustainable resource 
deployment

Informed decision making

Working with partners and 
other third parties

Significant control findings

SUSTAINABLE FINANCES

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Overview

Sustainable finances

commercialisation

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 34



27 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

We are required to report to you, in writing, significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we have identified during the audit. These matters are 

limited to those which we have concluded are of sufficient importance to 

merit being reported to the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee.

As the purpose of the audit is for us to express an opinion on the Group and 

the Council’s financial statements and use of resources, you will appreciate 

that our audit cannot necessarily be expected to disclose all matters that 

may be of interest to you and, as a result, the matters reported may not be 

the only ones which exist. 

As part of our work, we considered internal control relevant to the 

preparation of the financial statements such that we were able to design 

appropriate audit procedures. This work was not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

We have not identified any significant control deficiencies.

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES Control 
environment

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Significant deficiencies 

Other deficiencies 

Audit report

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 35



28 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Opinion on financial statements

We anticipate issuing an unmodified opinion on the Group and the Council 

financial statements.

Work completed to date has identified no matters that we wish to draw 

attention to by way of ‘emphasis of matter’.

Conclusion on use of resources 

Our use of resources review is ongoing. Work completed to date has not 

signified a requirement to issue an adverse or qualified conclusion. 

Conclusion relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the applicability of the going 

concern basis of accounting or the Group’s ability to continue as a going 

concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of 

the financial statements.

There are no material uncertainties in relation to going concern disclosed in 

the financial statements of which we are aware and need to draw attention 

to in our report. 

Other information

We have not identified any material misstatements or inconsistencies that 

would need to be referred to in our report.

Annual Governance Statement

We have no matters to report in relation to the Annual Governance 

Statement as it is not inconsistent with other information we are aware of or 

misleading.

OVERVIEWAudit report

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Overview

Independence and fees

Appendices contents

P
age 36



29 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Under ISAs (UK) and the FRC’s Ethical Standard, we are 

required as auditors to confirm our independence.

We have embedded the requirements of the Standards 

in our methodologies, tools and internal training 

programmes. Our internal procedures require that 

audit engagement partners are made aware of any 

matters which may reasonably be thought to bear on 

the integrity, objectivity or independence of the firm, 

the members of the engagement team or others who 

are in a position to influence the outcome of the 

engagement. This document considers such matters in 

the context of our audit for the year ended 31 March 

2019.

Details of rotation arrangements for key members of 

the audit team and others involved in the engagement 

were provided in our Audit Plan.

We have not identified any relationships or threats that 

may reasonably be thought to bear on our objectivity 

and independence.

We confirm that the firm, the engagement team and 

other partners, directors, senior managers and 

managers conducting the audit comply with relevant 

ethical requirements including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard or the IESBA Code of Ethics as appropriate 

and are independent of the Council and the Group. 

We also confirm that we have obtained confirmation of 

independence from non BDO auditors and external 

audit experts involved in the audit comply with 

relevant ethical requirements including the FRC’s 

Ethical Standard and are independent of the Council 

and the Group.

Should you have any comments or queries regarding 

any independence matters we would welcome their 

discussion in more detail.

Under ISAs (UK) and the 
FRC’s Ethical Standard 
we are required, as 
auditors, to confirm 
our independence. 

Independence 
and fees

INDEPENDENCE

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Independence

Fees

Appendices contents

P
age 37



30 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Fees summary

FEES

2018/19

Actual

£

2018/19

Planned

£

Audit fee 

• Code audit fee: Consolidated Group and Council 

financial statements and use of resources

40,745 40,745

Non-audit assurance services

Fees for reporting on government grants:

• Housing benefits subsidy claim

• Aspire audit

TBC

TBC

17,000

12,500

Total fees TBC 70,245

Contents

Introduction

Executive summary

Financial statements

Audit differences

Other reporting matters

Use of resources

Control environment

Audit report

Independence and fees

Independence

Fees

Appendices contents

P
age 38



A Our responsibilities 32

Responsibilities and reporting 32

Additional matters we are required to report 33

Communication and reports issued 34

B Outstanding matters 35

Outstanding matters 35

C Audit report 36

Audit report 36

D Audit quality 37

Audit quality 37

E Letter of Representation 38

APPENDICES CONTENTS

Draft Letter of Representation 38

Draft Letter of Representation 2 39

Draft Letter of Representation 3 40

P
age 39



32 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Our responsibilities and reporting

We are responsible for performing our audit under International Standards on 

Auditing (UK) to form and express an opinion on your consolidation Group 

and Council financial statements. We report our opinion on the financial 

statements to the members of the Council.  

We read and consider the ‘other information’ contained in the Statement of 

Accounts such as the Narrative Report. We will consider whether there is a 

material inconsistency between the other information and the financial 

statements or other information and our knowledge obtained during the 

audit.

We report where we consider that the Group has not put in place proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 

resources.

We submit an assurance statement to the National Audit Office (NAO) to the 

extent required for a local government body below the audit threshold.

What we don’t report

Our audit is not designed to identify all matters that may be relevant to the 

Governance, Audit and Performance Committee and cannot be expected to 

identify all matters that may be of interest to you and, as a result, the 

matters reported may not be the only ones which exist. 

Responsibilities and reporting

RESPONSIBILITIES AND REPORTINGOur 
responsibilities

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 40



33 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

ADDITIONAL MATTERS WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT 

Issue Comments

1 Significant difficulties encountered during the audit. No exceptions to note.

2 Written representations which we seek. We enclose a copy of our draft representation letter.

3 Any fraud or suspected fraud issues. No exceptions to note.

4 Any suspected non-compliance with laws or regulations. No exceptions to note.

5 Significant matters in connection with related parties. No exceptions to note, related audit procedures remain ongoing.

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

Additional 
matters we are 
required to 
report

P
age 41



34 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

Those Charged with Governance (TCWG)

References in this report to those charged with governance are to the 

Council as a whole. For the purposes of our communication with those 

charged with governance you have agreed we will communicate primarily 

with the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee.

Communication, meetings and feedback

We request feedback from you on our planning and completion report to 

promote two way communication throughout the audit process and to ensure 

that all risks are identified and considered; and at completion that the 

results of the audit are appropriately considered. 

We have met with management throughout the audit process. We have 

issued regular updates driving the audit process with clear and timely 

communication, bringing in the right resource and experience to ensure 

efficient and timely resolution of issues.

COMMUNICATION AND REPORTS ISSUED

Communication Date (to be) communicated To whom

Audit Plan 7 February 2019 Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

Audit Completion Report 25 July 2019 Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

Annual Audit Letter 26 September 2019 Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

Communication 
and reports 
issued

P
age 42



35 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

We have substantially completed our audit work in respect of the financial 

statements and use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The following matters are outstanding at the date of this report and could 

impact our audit opinion. We will update you on their current status at the 

Audit Committee meeting at which this report is considered:

• Completion of audit procedures in respect of:

– Journals

– Cashflow

– Financial Instruments

– Consolidation

– Housing and Council Tax Benefits (required for accounts opinion)

– Long term debtors

• Queries with valuers with respect to agreeing floor areas of samples 

selected.

• Receipt of remaining investment confirmations

• Completion of manager and partner reviews

• Subsequent events review

OUTSTANDING MATTERSOutstanding 
matters

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 43



36 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

[To follow]

AUDIT REPORTAudit report

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 44



37 | BDO LLPUttlesford District Council: Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019

BDO is totally committed to audit quality

It is a standing item on the agenda of BDO’s Leadership Team who, in 

conjunction with the Audit Stream Executive (which works to implement 

strategy and deliver on the audit stream’s objectives), monitor the actions 

required to maintain a high level of audit quality within the audit stream and 

address findings from external and internal inspections. 

BDO welcomes feedback from external bodies and is committed to 

implementing a necessary actions to address their findings.

We recognise the importance of continually seeking to improve audit quality 

and enhancing certain areas. Alongside reviews from a number of external 

reviewers, the AQR (the Financial Reporting Council’s Audit Quality Review 

team), QAD (the ICAEW Quality Assurance Department) and the PCAOB 

(Public Company Accounting Oversight Board who oversee the audits of US 

companies), the firm undertakes a thorough annual internal Audit Quality 

Assurance Review and as member firm of the BDO International network we 

are also subject to a quality review visit every three years. 

We have also implemented additional quality control review processes for all 

listed and public interest audits. 

More details can be found in our Transparency Report at www.bdo.co.uk

AUDIT QUALITYAudit quality

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 45



REPRESENTATIVE LETTER

Letter of 
representation

[Client name and Letter headed paper]

REPRESENTATIVE LETTER

BDO LLP

16 The Havens

Ransomes Europark

Ipswich

IP3 9SJ

Dear Sirs

Financial statements of Uttleford District Council for the year ended 
31 March 2019

We confirm that the following representations given to you in connection 

with your audit of the Group and the Council’ financial statements for the 

year ended 31 March 2019 are made to the best of our knowledge and 

belief, and after having made appropriate enquiries of other officers and 

members of the Council.

The Director of Finance and Corporate Services has fulfilled his 

responsibilities for the preparation and presentation of the Group and the 

Council financial statements as set out in the Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 and in particular that the financial statements give a true 

and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Council as of 31 

March 2019 and of its income and expenditure and cash flows for the year 

then ended in accordance with proper practices as set out in the 

CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom (the Code).

We have fulfilled our responsibilities on behalf of the Council, as set out in 

the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, to make arrangements for the 

proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs, to conduct a review 

at least once in a year of the effectiveness of the system of internal control 

and approve the Annual Governance Statement, to approve the Statement 

of Accounts (which include the financial statements), and for making 

accurate representations to you.

We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the entity 

from whom you determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. In 

addition, all the accounting records of the Council have been made 

available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the transactions 

undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected and recorded in the 

accounting records. All other records and related information, including 

minutes of management and other meetings have been made available to 

you.

Going concern

We have made an assessment of the Group and the Council’s ability to 

continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the 

date on which the financial statements were approved for release. As a result 

of our assessment we consider that the Group and the Council is able to 

continue to operate as a going concern and that it is appropriate to prepare 

the financial statements on a going concern basis. Furthermore, we confirm 

that the disclosures included in the financial statements are sufficient. 

In making our assessment we did not consider there to be any material 

uncertainty relating to events or conditions that individually or collectively 

may cast significant doubt on the Group and the Council’s ability to continue 

as a going concern.

Post balance sheet events

There have been no events since the balance sheet date which either require 

changes to be made to the figures included in the financial statements or to 

be disclosed by way of a note. Should any material events of this type occur, 

we will advise you accordingly.

Litigation and claims

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims 

whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements 

and these have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of accounting standards.

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 46



REPRESENTATIVE LETTER 2

Laws and regulations

In relation to those laws and regulations which provide the legal framework 

within which the Council’s business is conducted and which are central to 

our ability to conduct our business, we have disclosed to you all instances of 

possible non-compliance of which we are aware and all actual or contingent 

consequences arising from such instances of non-compliance. 

Fraud and error

We are responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, designing, 

implementing and maintaining internal control, to, among other things, help 

assure the preparation of the financial statements in conformity with 

generally accepted accounting principles and preventing and detecting fraud 

and error.

We have considered the risk that the financial statements may be materially 

misstated due to fraud and have identified no significant risks.

To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any fraud or suspected 

fraud involving management or employees. Additionally, we are not aware of 

any fraud or suspected fraud involving any other party that could materially 

affect the financial statements.

To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any allegations of fraud or 

suspected fraud affecting the financial statements that have been 

communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or any 

other party.

Misstatements

We attach a schedule showing uncorrected misstatements that you have 

identified, which we acknowledge that you request we correct. Where 

appropriate we have explained our reasons for not correcting such 

misstatements below. In our opinion, the effects of not recording such 

identified financial statement misstatements are, both individually and in the 

aggregate, immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 47



REPRESENTATIVE LETTER 3

Related party transactions

We have disclosed to you the identity of all related parties and all the 

related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. We have 

appropriately accounted for and disclosed such relationships and 

transactions in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 

framework.

Other than as disclosed in note 15.2 to the financial statements, there were 

no loans, transactions or arrangements between any Group entity and 

Council members or their connected persons at any time in the year which 

were required to be disclosed.

The disclosures in the financial statements concerning the controlling party 

of the Council are accurate.

Carrying value and classification of assets and liabilities

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value 

or classification of assets or liabilities reflected in the consolidated Group 

and Council financial statements.

Confirmation

We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of 

enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience 

(and, where appropriate, of inspection of supporting documentation) 

sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly make each of the above 

representations to you.

We confirm that the financial statements are free of material 

misstatements, including omissions.

We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information 

to you as auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no 

relevant audit information needed by you in connection with preparing your 

audit report of which you are unaware. Each director and member has taken 

all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director or member of the 

Council in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information 

and to establish that you are aware of that information.

Yours faithfully

Adrian Webb

Director of Finance and Corporate Services 

[date]

Councillor Edward Oliver

Chair of the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

[date]

Contents

Appendices contents

Our responsibilities

Additional matters we are 

required to report 

Communication and reports 

issued

Outstanding matters

Audit report

Audit quality

Representative letter

Representative letter 2

Representative letter 3

P
age 48



FOR MORE INFORMATION: The matters raised in our report prepared in connection with the audit are those we 

believe should be brought to your attention. They do not purport to be a complete record 

of all matters arising. This report is prepared solely for the use of the organisation and 

may not be quoted nor copied without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any 

third party is accepted.

BDO is an award winning UK member firm of BDO International, the world’s fifth largest 

accountancy network, with more than 1,500 offices in over 160 countries.

BDO LLP is a corporate establishment under the Limited Liability Partnership Act 2000 and 

a UK Member Firm of BDO International. BDO Northern Ireland, a separate partnership, 

operates under a licence agreement. BDO LLP and BDO Northern Ireland are both 

separately authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority to conduct 

investment business.

© 2019 BDO LLP. All rights reserved.

www.bdo.co.uk

David Eagles

t: 01473 320728

m: 07967 203431

e: david.eagles@bdo.co.uk

Alison Langridge

t: 01473 320752

e: alison.langridge@bdo.co.uk

P
age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Statement of
accounts 2018/19

Uttlesford District Council
London Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 4ER

Uttlesford District Council

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

 

Contents Page 
Accounts Overview  
Narrative Report  i 
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts xxi 
Approval of the Accounts xxii 
  
Group Arrangement and Accounts                                       
Introduction 1 
Movement in Reserves  3 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 5 
Balance Sheet 6 
Cash Flow Statement 7 
Notes to the Group Accounts  8 
  
Core Financial Statements  
Movement in Reserves Statement 16 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 18 
Balance Sheet 19 
Cash Flow Statement 20 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 21 
  
Supplementary Financial Statements  
Housing Revenue Account 93 
Collection Fund 99 
  
Other Statements  
Statement of Accounting Policies 105 
Annual Governance Statement 121 
  
Index – Section and Table References 133 

P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  i  Final Accounts 2018/19 

NARRATIVE REPORT 
 

 
Introduction 
 
The Statement of Accounts presents the financial results of the Council’s activities for the year ended 31 March 2019, and summarises the overall financial position of 
the Council as at 31 March 2019. This Narrative Report sets out the key issues and is intended to give the reader an insight into the Council’s performance during 
2018/19.  
 
The Council is required by law to complete its accounts in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting and constitutes a ‘proper accounting 
practice’ under the terms of section 21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003. The Code is based upon International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).  The Code 
reconciles IFRS with the statutory local government finance framework. This is necessary because there are material differences between what IFRS states should be 
included in the accounts, and what legislation states should be financed by a local authority and local Council taxpayers.  
 
Uttlesford District 
 
Uttlesford is a thriving, predominantly rural district in north-west Essex encompassing Saffron Walden, Great Dunmow, Stansted Mountfitchet and Thaxted with 
about 100 villages and hamlets in between. Geographically Uttlesford is the largest district in Essex, and has a population of approximately 85,000. 
It is home to London Stansted Airport and major road and rail networks with links to London to the south and the historic city of Cambridge to the north. Uttlesford 
offers a good quality of life with both new development and an historic and rural environment existing in harmony.   
 
The Council offices are based in the market town of Saffron Walden, with its array of independent and unique boutique shops, cafes, restaurants and galleries, 
surrounded on all sides by fields and picturesque villages. 
 
Uttlesford – The Council 
  
The Council is governed by 39 members and as at 31 March 2019 was made up of 24 Conservatives, 10 Residents for Uttlesford, 4 Liberal Democrats and 1 vacancy. 
District Elections were held on the 2 May 2019 and the following this the make-up changed to 26 Residents for Uttlesford, 7 Liberal Democrats, 4 Conservatives and 2 
Independents who represent 22 wards made up of 60 parishes.  The Council operates a Cabinet system, with The Leader having responsibility for the appointment of 
members to the Cabinet, allocation of portfolios and delegation of executive functions. 
 
The key services and activities of the Council are the provision of council housing, refuse collection & recycling, litter picking, planning, building control, 

environmental health, housing and council tax benefits, Council Tax and Business Rates collection, off street car parking, community safety, healthy lifestyles and 

wellbeing, and voluntary sector support, leisure centres, museum and licensing. Other key local authority services such as social care, education and roads are 

provided by Essex County Council.  For more information about Uttlesford District Council please visit the Council’s website at www.uttlesford.gov.uk.  

P
age 55

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  ii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

The Council employed 369 employees in established posts (319.79 full time equivalents) as at 31 March 2019. The workforce is made up of 201 women (54%), 8 of 

the Council’s 17 senior management posts are held by women. In January 2015 the Living Wage Foundation accredited the Council as a Living Wage Employer. 

 

Corporate Plan  

 
The Corporate Plan is the key document that sets out the Council’s vision and priorities for the next four years and forms part of a wider strategic planning framework 

directing how and where Council resources are allocated. It is accompanied by a delivery plan that sets out the outputs, outcomes and performance measured 

against the priorities. The Corporate Plan is reviewed annually to ensure it remains fit for purpose and reflects the needs and priorities of the residents, local 

communities and businesses of the District. Full details can be found at the following link:  Corporate Plan 2019-2023 

 

 
 

P
age 56

https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5250/Plans-policies-and-strategies


Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  iii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Key achievements  

 

It has been a busy year and the Council and its partners have worked hard on initiatives, partnerships and projects to bring the Corporate Plan priorities to life. Below 
is a summary of some of the key achievements this year. 

Police Community Support Officers 

Uttlesford District Council is an active member of the Community Safety Hub which is a multi-agency group focusing on low level crime and anti-social behavioural 
(ASB) issues. The community policing team has grown in the year and now includes seven Police Officers and four Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs). In 
2018/19 the Council fully funded two PCSOs and agreed to provide match funding (with parish councils) for two further PCSOs. Statistics show that both low level 
crime and ASB incidents have decreased in the district.  

Health and Wellbeing  

The Uttlesford Health and Wellbeing Board is the strategic partnership for the coordination, communication and commissioning of health improvement and 
wellbeing activities and services for the local population. Through this, the Council works closely with the following partner organisations: 

 Essex Health and Wellbeing Board  

 West Essex CCG  

 Essex County Fire & Rescue Service  

 West Essex Mind  

 Centre for Voluntary Support Uttlesford  

 Uttlesford Volunteers  

 Uttlesford Citizens Advice  

 Alzheimer's Society  

 Support 4 Sight  

A strategy has been developed to take into account the district’s evolving communities and proposed new developments which will bring a larger and more diverse 
population. Full details are set out within the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2017-2022.  

The five key health and wellbeing priorities identified within the district are: 

 Combatting loneliness and social isolation 

 Supporting people to age well in Uttlesford 

 Enabling people to eat well and be active 

 Alleviating winter pressures and fuel poverty 

 Planning for healthy communities 

P
age 57

https://www.essex.gov.uk/Business-Partners/Partners/Health-wellbeing-Essex/Pages/Essex-Health-Wellbeing-Board.aspx
http://westessexccg.nhs.uk/
http://www.essex-fire.gov.uk/
http://www.mindinwestessex.org.uk/
http://www.cvsu.org.uk/
http://volunteeruttlesford.org.uk/
http://uttlesford-mvc.storm50.com/cab
https://www.alzheimers.org.uk/
http://www.support4sight.org.uk/
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/article/5607/Uttlesford-Health-Wellbeing-Strategy-2019-2022


Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  iv  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
A number of projects have been delivered to tackle social isolation including the introduction of a Digital Buddies service - providing home visits to set up and 

maintain smart and digital devices that make life in the home a little bit easier e.g. digital assistants such as Amazon Echo, smart TVs, tablets and home computers. A 

gardening project has seen 83 gardens cleared and tidied and there is also a winter warmth handyman service being offered in conjunction with the Council’s 

Environmental Health department.   

A Walking for Health Programme has been instigated and six Walking for Health walks now take place across the district. The My Weight Matters programme is now 

running in venues across the district; those completing the programme have made significant progress towards their 5% weight loss goal. There has also been  a 

programme of seated exercise classes introduced for the elderly across the district; on average 15 people attend each class and the exercises are helping them to stay 

independent and build their strength. 

Mind in West Essex were commissioned by the Uttlesford Health and Wellbeing Board to encourage businesses and organisations within Uttlesford to sign up to the 

Time to Change national campaign to end mental health discrimination. Uttlesford District Council signed its own pledge in October 2018 on World Mental Health 

Day. As part of this, four Mental Health First Aid courses were made available for all managers at the Council plus a mental health awareness session was made 

available to all staff. 

Social Housing Development Programme 

The Council has continued with its development of housing as detailed in the 30 year business plan providing new and updated accommodation for the elderly and 

replenishing its stock of general needs housing. 

A development at Reynolds Court in Newport was completed in 2018/19 and provides 41 flats and communal areas for the elderly. The project attracted Homes for 
England funding due to its innovative design. It has been a collaborative project – the Council’s Housing team, planners, architects, the parish council, the community 
and other key stakeholders have helped shape this stunning building. 
 
Hatherley Court in Saffron Walden has been updated and remodelled with phase I of the sheltered scheme completed in March 2019. In total this scheme will 
provide 26 remodelled properties, one new build flat and new communal areas. 
 

The council has also provided five new general needs properties, of which two are new builds and three were directly purchased on the private housing market and 

from a Housing Association. 

 

 

 

P
age 58



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  v  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

Museum Lottery Fund Bid 

The Council made a successful application to the National Lottery Heritage Fund’s Resilient Heritage grants programme. This is the first step of the long-term 

development programme for Saffron Walden Museum which aims to increase visitors, community engagement and income, and make the Museum more sustainable 

in the future. 

The award is for a grant of £51,300 with a further £10,000 contribution from Saffron Walden Museum Society Ltd; no financial contribution is required from the 

Council. The project will fund an audience development study, to provide an in-depth analysis of the Museum’s actual and potential visitors, and a feasibility study 

with options appraisal and business plan, to determine the optimum way to develop the Museum and provide a costed plan. Other strands of the project include 

developing the fund-raising capacity of the Museum Society, which uses its charitable status to raise money for capital projects, and to support and mentor Museum 

staff and volunteers, who will be taking on a considerable challenge to run a major project alongside day-to-day service operations. 

Grant Funding 

The Council has provided a total of just under £600,000 in grants and funding during the year to local charities and voluntary organisations and this included a sum 

allocated to each Member to spend within their local ward. 

 

Saffron Walden Business Improvement District 

The Saffron Walden Business Improvement District (BID) was finalised after a formal consultation and a Board of Directors has been appointed.  The BID has 

generated £94,000. The initial marketing campaign delivered by the BID in the first month was considered very successful with the initial feedback being:  

 Vintage Lodge’s Buses – a free bus service was provided to encourage people into the town from Audley End with 1,250 people using the buses over five 

Saturdays  

 Shopping prize draw – the prize draw was organised to encourage shopping locally, with 55 independent businesses taking part. Some 1,407 shopping prize 

draw entries were received from visitors and residents 

 Fairy and Elf Hunt & #saffronwaldenelfieselfie -This competition was to encourage families to explore the town by looking for a hand-made fairy or elf in a 

shop window and 120 competition forms were returned. People who entered came not only from Saffron Walden but also London Cambridge and even 

Jersey. 

 

 

P
age 59



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  vi  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Local Plan 

The Council successfully submitted the Local Plan before the Government’s January deadline triggering the start of its examination by the Planning Inspectorate.  The 

Council has received the Inspector’s list of Matters, Issues and Questions seeking updated and clarifications on elements of the Plan and dates have already been 

agreed for the initial examination sessions in July.  The Council will consult on main modifications arising from the examination on behalf of the Inspector, before the 

final decision to adopt the plan can be made. 

Garden Communities 

A key element to the Council’s housing plan is its development strategy for three new Garden Communities which make a significant contribution to meeting 
Uttlesford’s growth needs over the next 15 years.  
 
The Council is strongly committed to creating communities that will offer the same quality of life as its historic towns and villages. The Council has been focusing on 
exploring the potential of partnerships with the individual promoters, developing models for long term stewardship, designing housing that relates to the range of 
business opportunities and jobs locally, sustainable transport links and commercial investment.  
 
Councillors and officers along with members of the Youth Council have been on visits to Garden Communities outside the district. In addition, the Youth Council has 
also held its own forums on the future look and feel of these settlements. 
 
The Council has attracted a grant of £750,000 capacity funding and other support available under the garden settlements programme from the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and Homes England to continue to take this work forward. 

Investment Strategy 

The Council invested £45 million in its wholly owned company, Aspire CRP Ltd, in May 2017 to purchase a 50% share in Chesterford Research Park with an annual 

return of 4%. The Park is not yet fully developed and the Council has approved further investments of £2.74 million for the rebuild (shell and core) of The Newnham 

Building. Building work began in January 2019 and a further £4.25 million was approved by Council in December 2018 at a higher interest rate of 4.5% to reflect the 

recent interest rate rises. The new investment will fund the fitting out of the building for prospective tenants and further details on the anticipated level of return is 

detailed on the following page under Aspire (CRP) Ltd. 

In February as part of the budget setting process for future years, the Council approved a new investment strategy for a £100 million of future investment; £20 

million to invest in the growth of Chesterford Research Park and £80 million for other investments. The £80 million of other investments will be subject to the 

following criteria: 

a) Preference will be given to in-area investment as for commercial acquisitions this helps to sustain jobs and generate business rates. If however suitable 

opportunities do not arise 

P
age 60



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  vii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

b) The Council will look within the region for investment opportunities. For clarity this means the following counties 

 Essex 

 Hertfordshire 

 Cambridgeshire 

 Suffolk 

c) If suitable opportunities do not arise the Council will look outside of the region but staying within the United Kingdom. 

 
Aspire (CRP) Ltd 

The investment in the wholly owned subsidiary delivered a net surplus for the Council in 2018/19 of £1.588 million which is in line with the original business plan 

forecast. The refurbishment of the Newnham Building is ongoing. In addition to the refurbishment loan of £2.741 million, the Council agreed to loan the company an 

additional £4.25 million to enable the Newnham Building to be fully fitted. At the expected rental income, this will see a net yield of 10.16% being achieved. The 

Newnham Building is due for completion in the spring of 2020. 

Financial Outlook 

Local government funding has changed significantly over the last few years and further reforms are planned in the next two years. These changes will affect the way 

funding is allocated to local authorities. The mechanism for these changes is being assessed through the Fair Funding Review of Needs and Resources and this is 

closely linked to the reform of the Business Rates Retention Scheme, through which local authorities will move from 50% to 75% retention.  

 

There is still uncertainty about the level of funding the Council will receive in future years and it has participated in various consultations on the Government’s 

proposals,. It is expected that an announcement will be made at the time of the 2020 autumn Budget.  There are also indications that the New Homes Bonus grant 

will be limited to legacy only payments from 2020/21, with the final year of these payments being 2022/23. 

 

The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is the Council’s plan to manage its financial position over a five year period, providing an overall spending position and 

highlighting areas of risk to ensure Members and Chief Officers can make informed decisions to set a balanced budget and maintain the Council’s financial stability. 

The table below is an extract from the current MTFS approved by Council as part of the 2019/20 budget and sets out the Council’s funding streams and demonstrates 

the predicted funding changes by 2023. 

 

P
age 61



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  viii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

 
 

Business Rates Retention 

The table above shows that Business Rates is a key source of income and the Council becomes more reliant on this in future years. Business Rates Retention is 

currently set at 50% and Uttlesford acts as a collection agent for Central Government, Essex County Council and Essex Fire Authority. The total collectable income is 

split as follows: 

 Central Government – 50% 

 Local Share (50% retained within the county) 

 Uttlesford – 40% 

 Essex County Council – 9% 

 Essex Fire Authority – 1% 

 
The 40% income retained by the Council is then subject to a tariff and this is set by Central Government based on a calculation of our share of the retained income 

less our baseline funding need. 

 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

Rural Services Grant 279 0 0 0 0

New Homes Bonus 2,969 2,287 1,550 826 0

Business Rates Retention 3,353 2,800 2,900 3,000 3,100

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Funding - 5 year prediction 

P
age 62



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  ix  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

Financial Performance – 2018/19 

The following are the key factors that can affect the Council’s financial position:  
 
Income 

 Fees and charges e.g. car park charges, garden waste income, planning fees  

 Specific government grants e.g. benefits subsidy  

 Rents and service charges (Housing Revenue Account only) 

 Income generated from the investment in the council’s wholly owned company Aspire (CRP) Ltd. 

 
Expenditure  

 Employee costs including salaries, national insurance and pensions  

 Premises costs including energy costs, rates and building maintenance  

 Transport costs including fuel and vehicle maintenance  

 Inflationary increases in contracts 

 Support payments such as Housing Benefit and Local Council Tax Support 

 
A summary of the key operational financial results for 2018/19 are shown in the following tables. The figures shown are direct costs and income only, rather than the 
accounting basis used to produce figures for the Core Financial Statements. However the bottom line results are consistent with the movement in usable reserves as 
shown in the core accounting statements in the main body of this document. 
 
Full and detailed outturn reports for the General Fund Revenue Account, Housing Revenue Account, Capital Programme and Treasury Management will be presented 
to members at Cabinet on the 15 July 2019. All reports will be published and will be available for the public to view on our website from 10 July 2019 and can be 
accessed by clicking on the following link Cabinet Reports 2019  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 63

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=136


Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  x  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
General Fund Reserves 
 
The Council’s reserves have increased by a net £2.471 million. The key items that attribute to the increase are the year-end surplus, additional funding received from 
MHCLG for Garden Communities delivery, re-profiling of revenue projects funded by reserves and the financing of the Capital Programme. 
 

 
 
The above reserves table excludes the surplus of £336,000 and the £14,000 restated reduction in surplus for 2017/18 which are approved at Cabinet on 15 July 2019.  
 
General Fund Revenue Account 
  
After allowing for transfers to and from the reserves this leaves an overall net underspend of £336,000. 
 

  
 

£'000 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 Net Increase/

(Decrease)

Useable Reserves (available to spend) 12,053 13,866 1,813

Ringfenced Reserves (set aside for specific uses) 2,894 3,215 322
14,947 17,082 2,135

2017/18
£'000 Original Current

Outturn Budget Budget Outturn Variance 

Portfolio (Service) Budgets 11,555 12,982 12,965 10,224 (2,742)

Corporate Items (701) (60) 4,277 (1,736) (6,013)

Funding (6,542) (5,145) (5,145) (5,614) (469)

Net Operating Expenditure 4,313 7,776 12,098 2,875 (9,224)

Transfers to/(from) Reserves 722 (2,446) (6,767) 2,135 8,902

Overall Net Position 5,035 5,330 5,331 5,010 (322)

Restatement of 2017/18 surplus* 14

2018/19 Actual Surplus (336)

2018/19

P
age 64



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xi  Final Accounts 2018/19 

*A prior period adjustment has been actioned due to a review of the accounts and our treatment of the forward starting loans the Council set up in 2017 to fund the 
investment in Aspire (CRP) Ltd. The accounting amendment required the accounts for 2017/18 to be restated and this increased the interest charge by £14,000 and 
reduced the actual in year surplus of £336,000 to a final net outturn of £322,000. Full details relating to the restatement can be found in note 19.7 Prior Period 
Adjustments on page 90. 
 
The portfolio service budgets show a year end surplus of £2,741,578. This is due in part to various work streams and projects being carried forward to 2019/20. A 
total of £1,930,196 will be added to reserves and reallocated in 2019/20, which leaves an actual surplus for the delivery of services of £811,382. An analysis of the key 
variances and revenue allocations to reserves are detailed in the table below. 
 
Direct Services Variance Analysis 
 

 
 

Variance Variance allocated (from)/to Reserves

Description (under)/over spend

Expenditure Total Service Variance (2,741,578)

Housing Benefit Expenditure (2,688,962)

Salaries (1,178,972)

Consultants (722,758) Garden Communities Delivery 953,642

Planning Policy Fees (150,000) Development Plan Document 550,000

Agency Staff 880,613 EU Exit Funding 127,555

Vehicle maintenance and hire 236,488 Development Control (20% Fee income) 120,251

Disposal Charges for waste and recycling 113,844 Homelessness 92,263

Net of other expenditure variances (110,628) Citizen Access Project 70,725

(3,620,375) Economic Development 46,034

Income Health Improvement 26,146

Housing Benefit Subsidy Income 2,446,462 Neighbourhood Grant (23,556)

MHCLG Funding for Garden Communities Delivery (768,497) Members New Homes Bonus Grant (16,013)

MHCLG Funding EU Exit (153,846) S106 (16,851)

MHCLG Funding Homelessness Support (113,896)

Trade Waste Income (80,041)

Car Park Income and Penalties (78,517)

Net of other income variances (372,868) Total Reserves Allocation 1,930,196

878,797

Total Service Variance (2,741,578) Actual Service Variance (811,382)

P
age 65



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Reserves 
 
The HRA is governed by the 30 year Business Plan, approved and overseen by the Council’s Housing Board. The Business Plan sets out priorities for improving existing 
housing stock and identifies sites for redevelopment and new-build council housing. 
 
The HRA shows a reduction in total reserves of £2.022 million which has been used to fund the capital housing programme, for new homes, sheltered housing and 
maintenance of the existing housing stock. 
 

 
 

The above reserves table excludes the surplus of £14k which is approved at Cabinet.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

£'000 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 Net Increase/

(Decrease)

Useable Reserves (available to spend) 4,853 2,540 (2,313)

Ringfenced Reserves (set aside for specific uses) 524 489 (35)

5,377 3,029 (2,348)

Major Repairs Reserve 147 473 326

TOTAL RESERVES 5,524 3,502 (2,022)

P
age 66



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xiii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure 
 
The operating deficit of £701,000 is the net effect of reduced rental income, increased cost of housing repairs and actual adjustments to the bad debt provision and 
depreciation. 
 

 
 
The key variances in the Housing Revenue account relate to the following items: 
 
Service Delivery 

 Income reduction on housing rents of £209,000 which was offset by increased charges for services and facilities based on actual costs incurred. 

 Housing repairs had an net increase of £281,000 

Corporate Costs 

 A decrease in the provision for rental income generating a reduced revenue contribution of £100,000 

 The depreciation charge increased and this has increased the required contribution to the Major Repairs Reserve. The calculation for this is based on the 

valuation of the housing stock  

 
 
 
 

£'000 Budget Outturn Variance

Income (15,402) (15,279) 123

Expenditure 4,204 4,509 305

Corporate Items 10,552 10,825 273

Operating (Surplus)/Deficit (646) 55 701

Funding from Capital Receipts Reserve for HRA Loan (413) (413) 0

Funding of Capital Projects from the HRA 5,779 2,692 (3,087)

Transfers (to)/from reserves (4,720) (2,348) 2,372

(Surplus)/Deficit 0 (14) (14)

P
age 67



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xiv  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Capital Programme 

The budget allocated for 2018/19 was £20.091 million with total capital expenditure of £9.240 million and after allowing for capital slippage of £11.034 million, to be 
carried forward to future years projects, this left an overspend of £183,000. 
 

 
 
The key areas of requested slippage are detailed in the table below. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

£'000 Budget 2018/19 Slippage Revised Budget Outturn Variance - Actual 

(under)/over spend

General Fund 9,739 7,948 1,791 1,115 (676)

Housing Revenue Account 10,352 3,086 7,266 8,125 859

Total Capital Expenditure 20,091 11,034 9,057 9,240 183

£'000 2018/19 Slippage

General Fund

New Depot Site 4,563

Vehicle Replacement 2,174

Superfast Broadband 600

Other minor items of slippage 611

HRA

The Moors 759

Walden Place 787

Hatherley Court 482

Other minor items of slippage 1,058

Total Capital Expenditure 11,034

P
age 68



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xv  Final Accounts 2018/19 

The Capital Programme is funded by a variety of sources and the following table shows how this was funded in 2018/19. 
 

 
 

Treasury Management 
 
Treasury Management activities undertaken during the year complied fully with the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Authority’s approved Treasury Management 
Strategy. 
 
The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During the year, the Council’s 
investment balances ranged between £7.5 million and £22.5 million due to timing differences between income and expenditure. The average interest rate achieved 
for the year was 0.45% 
 
At 31 March 2019 the Council held £116 million of loans, a decrease of £4 million from 31 March 2018, as part of its strategy for funding previous and current years’ 
capital programmes and investments. The average interest rate for long term borrowing was 2.82% and 0.75% for short term borrowing. 
 
The long-term borrowing of £97 million relates to: 
 

 The major reform of the Housing Revenue Account self-financing arrangements in 2012. The Council purchased the housing stock for £88.4 million with no 

repayments for five years. The HRA started making principal repayments of £2 million per annum in 2017/18; the current balance of the outstanding borrowing 

is £84.4 million.   

£'000

Sources of Financing General Fund Housing Revenue Account

Revenue Contribution 592 699

Grants and Contributions 97 965

Reserves Funding 178 2,313

Internal Borrowing 249 0

Right to Buy Receipts 0 499

Capital Receipts 0 3,648

1,116 8,124

Total Financing requirement 9,240

P
age 69



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xvi  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 On 3 July 2017 the Council entered into a loan agreement with Phoenix Life Limited to borrow £37 million at a fixed rate of 2.86% over 40 years, with no 

principal repayments until 5 January 2022 to fund part of the investment of £47.25 million in Aspire (CRP) Ltd. The loan profile was set to be drawn down in 

three separate stages: 

 

 £10 million on 3 July 2017 

 £12 million on 3 July 2020 

 £15 million on 3 July 2021 

 
The Council entered into the forward starting loans to provide a low risk approach which minimised future interest rate risk whilst maximising investment returns. A 

measured approach was taken to the borrowing profile to fund the investment making it possible to drawdown the funding in stages and take advantage of inter 

authority borrowing for short periods of time at an average interest rate of 0.75% where our cash balances were insufficient.  Due to the Council’s predicted future 

cash flows the total investment did not need to be borrowed externally  and the Council will continue to fund the remaining £10.25 million from internal cash 

balances and short term borrowing from other local authorities.  

The principal repayment was deferred until January 2022 to allow for further investment focusing on future development of the Park and increase income returns.  

Employee Pension Scheme 

The accounts show an updated view of the Council’s share of the assets and liabilities of the Pension Fund, administered by Essex County Council. An independent 

body, Barnet and Waddington, has carried out an expense calculation and provided a report on the financial performance of the fund. The report has been prepared 

in accordance with International Accounting Standard 19. 

The Council’s estimated pension deficit is £30.787million as at 31 March 2019; this is an in-year reduction of the liability of £3.959million. 

An actuarial valuation is carried out every three years to set the contribution levels for the pension deficit. The last valuation was carried out in March 2016 and Essex 

County Council provides a breakdown of the required payments to offset the deficit. This includes various payment options and the Council took the option of paying 

a discounted three year upfront payment of £1.177million. The Council also paid an in-year pension contribution rate of 16.8% for all employees that are in the 

pension scheme. The annual contributions made for 2018/19 were £1.468million from employers and £0.599million from employees. 

  

P
age 70



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xvii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Performance indicators 

Key performance indicators are set annually to monitor service performance. A summary of the key indicators are listed below and full details of the Council’s 
performance was presented to the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee on 30 May 2019. The full report can be found at Governance Audit and 
Performance Committee_30.05.19 

 
 

 
 
 

Income Collected as a % of amount due

2017/18 2018/19

Council Tax 99.17 99.17

Business Rates 99.47 98.85

Rent Collected 98.24 98.57

Local Council Tax Support Contributions 87.52 89.44

Key Performance Indicators for Services

2017/18 2018/19

Domestic bins collected on first visit 99.88% 99.92%

Domestic waste collected that is recycled/composted 50.65% 49.69%

Customer enquiries dealt with at first point of contact N/A 87%

Supplier invoices paid within 30 days 93.68% 99.00%

Average number of days to pay supplier invoices 12.9 8.1

Accuracy of processing Housing Benefits claims 99.55% 98.71%

Average number of days to process new Housing Benefit claims 21.2 20.5

Average number of days to process a change of circumstances 6.0 5.7

P
age 71

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=337&MId=5275
https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=337&MId=5275


Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xviii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Financial Statements and what they mean 
 
Movement in Reserves Statement (page 16) 
This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into Usable Reserves (those that can be used to fund 
expenditure) and Unusable Reserves (those held to manage the accounting process). The (surplus)/deficit on the Provision of Services line shows the true economic 
cost of providing the Council’s services, details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Adjustments between the accounting 
basis of measuring cost and the statutory basis are shown, to derive a net increase/decrease in usable and unusable reserves.  
 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (page 18)  
This statement shows the cost of providing services in accordance with accounting rules, rather than the statutory amounts to be funded from taxation. Expenditure 
is categorised under standard headings that differ from the actual operational structure of the Council.  
 
Balance Sheet (page 19)  
This statement is fundamental to the understanding of the Council’s financial position at the year-end. It shows the value as at 31 March of the Council’s assets and 
liabilities. The Council’s net assets (i.e. assets less liabilities) are matched by reserves held by the Council, analysed between Usable Reserves (available to fund 
expenditure) and Unusable Reserves (held to manage accounting items, not available to spend).  
 
Cash Flow Statement (page 20)  
This statement shows the changes in the cash flow position of the Council during the financial year, and sets out the sources of funds and what they are spent on.  
 
Group Accounts (page 1-14)  
These statements and notes show the consolidated position of the Council with its wholly owned company trading as ‘Aspire Ltd’.  
 
Notes to the Core Financial Statements (page 21)  
These notes provide additional supporting information to the figures included within the core financial statements.  
 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account (page 94)  
The HRA fulfils the statutory requirement to maintain a separate ring-fenced revenue account for local authority social housing provision. This statement shows in 
more detail the income and expenditure on HRA services included as a one line summary in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account. 
 
Collection Fund (page 100) 
This shows the transactions of the Council as a billing authority relating to Council Tax and Business Rates, and shows the distribution of this income between Central 
Government and local preceptors Essex County Council, Essex Fire Authority, Essex Police and Crime Commissioner and Town and Parish Councils. The Police and 
Crime Commissioner, Town and Parishes are preceptors for Council Tax only. 
 
 

P
age 72



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xix  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties 
 

The preparation of the Statement of Accounts requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported for assets 
and liabilities as at the balance sheet date and the amounts reported for the revenues and expenses during the year. However, the nature of estimation means that 
actual outcomes could differ from those estimates.  
 

 Depreciation and amortisation are provided for Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets respectively. This enables the assets to be written down 

over their estimated useful lives and show an appropriate cost of the asset in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Management 

judgements are based on independent external advice to determine the useful economic lives of the Council’s property.  

 

 Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed for both economic and price impairment on an annual basis. As at 1 April each year the Council’s valuers carry 

out a valuation review of the Council’s assets. In addition a year-end impairment review is also undertaken. The recoverable amount is then estimated having 

regard to the application of the concept of materiality.  

 

 Pension liability estimation of future payments due depends on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries 

are projected to increase in the long term, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. These judgements are 

completed by the Essex County Council Fund Actuaries.  

 

 Business Rate appeals recognised in the provision are based on a calculation provided by our external valuers Analyse Local. This determines the likely effect 

of appeals in terms of effect on rateable value (RV), the timing of the losses expected and the overall percentage reduction in RV. Whilst the figure provided 

in the accounts is expected to be materially accurate a small variance in actual appeal costs incurred may arise.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 73



Narrative Statement   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xx  Final Accounts 2018/19 

Audit of the Accounts 

The final accounts will be published following completion of the audit by the External Auditor, BDO LLP, 16 The Havens, Ransomes Europark, Ipswich IP3 9SJ. 

 

Further Information 

The Council produces a detailed Budget Book, which sets out the financial plans for the following financial year. A copy of this may be obtained by contacting Angela 

Knight, Assistant Director – Resources, at Uttlesford District Council, Council Offices London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER. Email aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk  

For more information visit our website. https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/finance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adrian Webb 

Director of Finance and Corporate Services 

Section 151 Officer 

 

 

 

P
age 74

mailto:aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk
https://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/finance


Accounts Overview   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xxi  Final Accounts 2018/19 

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 

 
THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Council is required to: 
 

 Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration 
of those affairs. In this Council, that officer is the Director of Finance and Corporate Services.  

 Manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets 

 Approve the Statement of Accounts (by delegation to the Performance and Audit Committee) 
 
THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND CORPORATE SERVICES – RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
The Director of Finance and Corporate Services is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in accordance with proper practices as set 
out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the ‘Code’).  
 
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Director of Finance and Corporate Services has: 
 

 Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently. 

 Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

 Complied with the local authority ‘Code’. 

 Kept proper accounting records which were up to date. 

 Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 
 
I hereby certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Uttlesford District Council and its Income and Expenditure for 
the year ended 31 March 2019. 

 
Signature:  
   
   
 

Adrian Webb 
  Director of Finance and Corporate Services 
Date: 25 July 2019 

P
age 75



Accounts Overview   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  xxii  Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
 
 
APPROVAL OF THE ACCOUNTS 
 
I confirm that the Statement of Accounts was approved by a resolution of the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee on 25 July 2019. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Signature:  
 

 Councillor Edward Oliver 
Chairman Governance, Audit and Performance Committee  
Uttlesford District Council 

 
Date:     25 July 2019 

 

P
age 76



   
 
 
Group Accounts 2018/19 

  

P
age 77



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  1                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

GROUP ARRANGEMENT AND ACCOUNTS 
 
Introduction 
 
The Code of Practice requires local authorities with interests in subsidiaries, associates and/or joint ventures to prepare group accounts in addition to their own single 
entity financial statements, unless their interest is not considered material. 
 
The Council has interest in three companies that are classified as a subsidiary, all of which have been considered for consolidation. Only one of these, Aspire (CRP) Ltd is 
considered to be material to the financial statements. Details of the companies considered for consolidation are shown below. 
The Group Accounts contain the core statements similar in presentation to the Council’s single entity accounts but consolidating the figures of the Council with Aspire 
(CRP) Ltd. 
 
The following pages include: 

 Group Movement in Reserves Statement 

 Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 Group Balance Sheet 

 Group Cash Flow Statement 

 Notes to the Group Accounts 
 
Basis of Identification of the Group Boundary 
 
In its preparation of these Group Accounts, the Council has considered its relationship with the entities that fall into the following categories: 
 

 Subsidiaries – where the Council exercises control and gains benefits or has exposures to risks arising from this control. These entities are included in the group. 

 Associates – where the Council exercises a significant influence and has a participating interest. No entities identified to be included in the group. 

 Jointly Controlled Entities - where the Council exercises joint control with one or more organisations. No entities identified to be included in the group. 

 No Group Relationship – where the body is not an entity in its own right or the Council has an insufficient interest in the entity to justify inclusion in the group 
financial statements. These entities are not included in the group. 

 
In accordance with this requirement, the Council has determined its Group relationships as follows: 
 

Aspire (CRP) Ltd    Company No. 10515074  Subsidiary   Consolidated 
Aspire (CRP) General Partner Ltd Company No. 10698674  Subsidiary  Not material 
Aspire Holdings (UDC) Ltd  Company No. 10308884  Subsidiary  Not material   

 

P
age 78



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  2                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
Subsidiaries 
 
Aspire (CRP) Ltd 
 
The company was formed on 7 December 2016 and its principal activity was acquiring, developing and holding property for investment purposes. This will continue to be 
the principal activity of the Partnership for the foreseeable future. The Company commenced trading on 15 May 2017. 
 
On 3 May 2017 Uttlesford District Council loaned Aspire (CRP) Ltd the sum of £47.25million to enable it to form Chesterford Park  Limited Partnership with Aviva Life and 
Pensions UK Limited and for the new partnership to acquire the investment property at Chesterford Research Park, Little Chesterford, CB10 1XL. In the financial year 
ending 31 March 2019 the Council had invested a total of £49.991million.  
 
The final accounts of the Company for the period ending 31 March 2019 will be audited by BDO. Copies of the accounts may be obtained from Companies House or by 
request to the Council. 
 
The Directors received no emoluments for services to the company for the financial period. 
 
Aspire (CRP) General Partner Ltd 
 
The General Partner was set up on 30 March 2017 to enable the joint venture to be created between Aviva Life and Pensions UK Limited and Aspire (CRP) Ltd. 
 
Based on materiality, no group accounts have been included with the Councils Statement of Accounts for 2018/19. 
 
Aspire Holdings (UDC) Ltd 
 
The structure of the Company is that of subsidiary. Its primary activities are the development of Council owned land and the market rent of developed properties. The 
company also provides a property maintenance service for the Aspire companies within the group and other businesses outside of the group. The company has three 
subsidiaries of which two are dormant whilst the Aspire Property and Maintenance Services Ltd (Company No. 10338675) started trading on a very small scale as from 
1 April 2017, this company has traded to December 2018 but has subsequently become dormant. Based on materiality of the part-year, no group accounts have been 
included with the Councils Statement of Accounts for 2018/19. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 79



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  3                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
Basis of consolidation 
 
The Group Accounts have been prepared using the group accounts requirements of the Code. Companies or other reporting entities that are under the ultimate control of 
the Council have been included in the Council’s group accounts to the extent that they are material to users of the financial statements in relation to their ability to see 
the complete economic activities of the Council and its exposure to risk through interests in other entities and participation in their activities. 
The Subsidiary has been consolidated on a line by line basis, subject to the elimination of intra-group transactions from the statements, in accordance with The Code.  
The subsidiary has the same accounting year end to the Council’s. 
 
 
Group Movement in Reserves 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Group Usable 

Reserves

Group Unusable 

Reserves
Group Reserves

2018/19

£'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2018 (24,502) (236,779) (261,281)

(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services (2,306)                                -   (2,306)

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income                                -   (12,824) (12,824)

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income (2,306) (12,824) (15,130)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations
3,818 (3,818)                                -   

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves                                -                                  -                                  -   

(Increase) / Decrease in Year 1,511 (16,642) (15,130)

Balance at 31 March 2019 (22,991) (253,421) (276,411)

P
age 80



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  4                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
Group Movement in Reserves (continued) 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7  
  

Group Usable 

Reserves

Group Unusable 

Reserves
Group Reserves

Restated 2017/18

£'000 £'000 £'000

Restated Balance at 1 April 2017 (26,975) (209,551) (236,526)

(Surplus) or deficit on provision of services (4,226)                                -   (4,226)

Other Comprehensive Expenditure and Income                                -   (20,528) (20,528)

Total Comprehensive Expenditure and Income (4,226) (20,528) (24,754)

Adjustments between accounting basis and funding 

basis under regulations 6,801 (6,801)
                               -   

Transfers to/(from) earmarked reserves (102) 102                                -   

(Increase) / Decrease in Year 2,473 (27,228) (24,754)

Restated Balance at 31 March 2018 (24,502) (236,779) (261,281)

P
age 81



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  5                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7  
 
 
 
 
 

Gross 

Expenditure Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure

Note 

Reference

Gross 

Expenditure Gross Income

Net 

Expenditure

Restated

2017/18

Restated

2017/18

Restated

2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

2,780 (710) 2,070 Comm & Partnerships 2,748 (772) 1,976

9,914 (5,147) 4,767 Environmental Serv 10,742 (6,273) 4,469

24,271 (17,453) 6,818 Finance & Admin 22,007 (15,791) 6,216

2,365 (822) 1,543 Hsg & Eco Devt 2,516 (800) 1,716

5,123 (15,307) (10,184) HRA 8,014 (15,279) (7,265)

1,989                            -   1,989 HRA - Overheads 1,946                            -   1,946

1,279 (1,989) (710) Corporate costs 87 (1,946) (1,859)

47 (2,691) (2,645) Commercial Services 32 (2,106) (2,074)

47,768 (44,119) 3,648 Cost of Services 48,092 (42,967) 5,125

3,710 Other Operating Income and Expenditure 3,031

4,309 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure A2 6,326

(15,894) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income A3 (16,788)

(7,875) Corporate Amounts (7,431)

(4,227) Group (Surplus)/Deficit (2,306)

(13,447) Surplus on revaluation of Non-current assets (6,314)

(7,081) Actuarial gains /  losses on pensions assets / liabilities (6,516)

                           -   Other movements in Usable/Unusable Reserves                            -   

(20,528) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (12,830)

(24,754) Total Comprehensive income and Expenditure (15,136)

P
age 82



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  6                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

Group Balance Sheet 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 
 

 31 March 2018

Restated

£'000 

Notes

 31 March 2019

£'000 

363,385 Property Plant & Equipment 372,325

935 Heritage Assets 951

219 Intangible Assets 263

46,401 Long-term Investments A4 46,282

1,280 Long-term Debtors 1,325

412,220 Long-term Assets 421,146

10,500 Short-term Investments 12,000

48 Inventories 45

3,380 Short-term Debtors A5 4,201

4,482 Cash and Cash Equivalents A6 4,799

18,410 Current Assets 21,046

(23,500) Short-term borrowing (19,000)

(6,387) Short-term Creditors A3 (11,716)

(1,979) Provisions (1,432)

(31,866) Current Liabilities (32,149)

(96,407) Long-term Borrowing (96,907)

(4,740) Deferred Liabilities (4,620)

(1,597) Grant Receipts in Advance (1,319)

(34,746) Pension Scheme Liabilities (30,787)

(137,490) Long-term Liabilities (133,632)     

261,275 Net Assets 276,411

24,497 Usable Reserves A7 22,991

236,778 Unuseable Reserves 253,420

261,275 Total Reserves 276,411

P
age 83



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  7                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

Group Cash Flow Statement 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000 Notes

4,227 Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services 2,306 CIES

6,726 
Adjustments to net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services  -  non 

cash movements
9,983

(2,993)
Adjust for items included in the net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of 

services that are investing and financing activities
(2,904)

7,960 Net cash flows from operating activities 9,385 A8

(36,613) Net cash flows from investing activities (7,649) A9

32,502 Net cash flows from financing activities (1,419) A10

3,849 Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 317

633 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 4,482

4,482 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 4,799 A11

P
age 84



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  8                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

SECTION A - NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS 
 
A1. Accounting Policies 
 
1. General Principles 
 
The Accounting policies of the Group are the same as those applied to the Council’s single entity accounts except for the following policies which are specific to the Group 
Account.  
 
2. Tax Expense 
 
The tax expense represents the sum of the estimated tax currently payable and any adjustments from the previous years’ estimate. The tax payable in respect of the year 
is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are 
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is an estimate based on similar 
transactions in the accounts to 2017/18. The final tax computation will be completed by December 2019. 
 
3. Disclosures 
 
The group account disclosures illustrate the material variances between the UDC accounts and the consolidated group.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 85



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  9                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
 
 
 

P
age 86



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  10                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

NOTES TO THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

 
A2. Investment and Financing Income and Expenditure 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 
 
 
A3. Taxation  
 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

3,254 Interest payable and similar charges 3,412

1,073 Pensions - Net interest on the Defined Benefit Liability/(Asset) 896

0 Changes in the Fair Value of investments 2,119

(18) Interest Receivable and similar income (101)

4,309 Total Investment and Financing Income and Expenditure 6,326

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

357 Profits chargeable to corporation tax 420

68 Taxation on ordinary activities 80

P
age 87



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  11                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET 
 
A4. Long-term Investments 
 

 
 
Due to the transition to IFRS 9 for 2018/19 accounts, investments previously held at cost are now held at Fair Value and charged through the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. For more information detailing the transition to IFRS 9 see note 18.7 in the main accounts. 
 
A5. Short-term Debtors 
 

 
 
 
 

£'000

IAS39 balance held at 31 March 2018 46,401

Gain/(Loss) in fair value (2,694)

IFRS 9 Balance at 1 April 2018 43,707

Additional investment 2,000

Gain/(Loss) in fair value adjusted for 18/19 576

Investment balance at 31 March 2019 46,283

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

271 Central Government Bodies 1,029

439 Other Local Authorities 619

4,128 Other entities and Individuals 4,009

4,838 Total Debtors 5,657

(1,458) UDC impairment Allowances (1,456)

3,380 Net Total 4,201

P
age 88



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  12                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

A6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

 
 
 
A7. Usable Reserves 
 

 
The consolidated adjustment to UDC is the removal of the total inter-group interest on the loan from UDC to Aspire, the loan cost from Aspire to UDC is removed from the 
profit/loss from subsidiary line removing all inter-group transactions for the consolidation. 
 
 
  

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Restated

£'000 £'000

2,753 UDC cash and cash equivalents 2,525

1,729 Subsidiary Cash at bank 2,274

4,482 Total 4,799

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

UDC Reserves

1,321 General Fund Working Balance 1,272

13,627 General Fund Other Usable 16,147

524 HRA Working Balance 489

5,000 HRA Other Usable 3,026

3,295 Capital Receipts 3,674

1,293 Grants 1,079

(1,726) Consolidated adjustment to UDC (1,894)

23,333 Total UDC reserves 23,793

1,164 Profit/(Loss) from Subsidiary (802)

24,497 22,991

P
age 89



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  13                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
Notes to the Cash flow 
 
A8. Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 
 

 

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

4,227 Net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services 2,306

Adjustments to net surplus/(deficit) on the provision of services for non-cash 

movements

5,516 Depreciation 6,265

(3,241) Impairment and downward valuations (1,949)

84 Amortisation 70

(7) Adjustments for effective interest rates -

844 Increase/(decrease) in creditors 3,136

(2) (Increase)/decrease in debtors (820)

(4) (Increase)/decrease in inventories 2

1,623 Pension liability 2,557

832 Contribution to provisions (547)

1,081 Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 1,280

- Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision (11)

 of services

6,726 Total 9,983

(2,993)
Adjustments for items included in the net (deficit) on the provision of services 

that are investing or financing activities
(2,904)

7,960 Net cash flows from operating activities 9,385

P
age 90



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  14                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

A9. Cash Flows from Investing Activities 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 
 
 
A10. Cash Flows from Financing Activities 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

(10,251)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment 

property and intangible assets & movement in capital creditor (9,470)

(28,897) Movements in net short term investments (1,194)

(75) Other payments for investing activities -

1,804 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,716

806 Capital grants received 910

(36,613) Total Cash Flows from Investing Activities (8,038)

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

31,877 Movement in short and long-term borrowing (4,000)

741 Billing Authorities - Council Tax & NNDR Adjustment 2,702

(116) Cash Payments for the Reduction of the outstanding Liabilities (90)

32,502 Total Cash Flows from Financing Activities (1,388)

P
age 91



Group Arrangement and Accounts   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  15                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

A11. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

A12. Interest on Balances  

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

4,482 Cash and Bank Balances 4,799

4,482 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,799

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

3,206 Interest paid (3,415)

(52) Interest received 12

3,154 Net interest paid (3,403)

P
age 92



 
  

 

 

Uttlesford District Council 

Core Financial Statements 2018/19 

  

P
age 93



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  16                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

Movement in Reserves 2018/19 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

GF 

Reserves

HRA 

Balance

Earmarked 

HRA 

Reserves

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Usable 

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 31 March 2018 (1,321) (13,629) (523) (4,853) (147) (3,295) (1,296) (25,063) (236,779) (261,842)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 

Services (accounting basis)
(1,633) - (2,415) - - - - (4,048) - (4,048)

Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure
- - - - - - - - (12,830) (12,830)

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure
(1,633) - (2,415) - - - - (4,048) (12,830) (16,878)

Adjustments between accounting 

basis & funding basis under 

regulations (Note 1.1)

(1,255) - 5,164 - (326) (379) 217 3,421 (3,421) -

Net (increase)/decrease before 

transfers to earmarked reserves
(2,888) - 2,749 - (326) (379) 217 (627) (16,251) (16,878)

Transfers to/(from) Reserves 2,937 (2,519) (2,714) 2,300 - - - 2 - 2 

(Increase)/decrease in year 49 (2,519) 35 2,300 (326) (379) 217 (625) (16,251) (16,876)

Balance as at 31 March 2019 (1,273) (16,148) (488) (2,553) (473) (3,674) (1,079) (25,688) (253,030) (278,718)

P
age 94



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  17                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

Movement in Reserves 2017/18 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

 

 

 

 

Restated

General 

Fund 

Balance

Earmarked 

GF 

Reserves

HRA 

Balance

Earmarked 

HRA 

Reserves

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Usable 

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Capital 

Grants 

Unapplied

Total 

Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Total 

Authority 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 31 March 2017 (1,268) (12,973) (498) (6,667) (164) (4,530) (876) (26,976) (209,551) (236,527)

(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of 

Services (accounting basis) 1,147 - (5,934) - - - - (4,787) - (4,787)

Other Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure - - - - - - - - (20,528) (20,528)

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure 1,147 - (5,934) - - - - (4,787) (20,528) (25,315)

Adjustments between accounting 

basis & funding basis under 

regulations (Note 1.1) (1,507) - 7,373 - 17 1,235 (317) 6,801 (6,801) -

Net (increase)/decrease before 

transfers to earmarked reserves (360) - 1,439 - 17 1,235 (317) 2,014 (27,329) (25,315)

Transfers to/(from) Reserves 306 (656) (1,464) 1,814 - - (103) (101) 101 -

(Increase)/decrease in year (53) (656) (25) 1,814 17 1,235 (420) 1,913 (27,228) (25,315)

Balance as at 31 March 2018 (1,321) (13,629) (523) (4,853) (147) (3,295) (1,296) (25,063) (236,779) (261,842)

P
age 95



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  18                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

  

Gross 

Expenditure

Restated

Gross 

Income

Restated

Net Expenditure of

Continuing Operations

Restated Note

Gross 

Expenditure

Gross 

Income

Net Expenditure

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 Reference 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

2,780 (710) 2,070 Communities & Partnerships 2,748 (772) 1,976 

9,914 (5,147) 4,767 Environmental Services 10,742 (6,273) 4,470 

24,271 (17,745) 6,526 Finance & Administration 22,007 (15,868) 6,139 

2,365 (822) 1,543 Housing & Economic Development 2,516 (800) 1,716 

5,123 (15,307) (10,184) Housing Revenue Account 8,014 (15,279) (7,266)

1,989 - 1,989 Housing Revenue Account - Overheads 1,946 - 1,946 

1,279 (1,989) (710) Corporate costs 87 (1,946) (1,859)

47,721 (41,720) 6,002 Cost of Services 48,060 (40,938) 7,122 

2,590 Other Operating Expenditure 5.1 3,031 

2,583 Financing & Investment Income and Expenditure 5.2 2,679 

(15,962) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 5.3 (16,880)

(10,789) Corporate Amounts (11,170)

(4,787) (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (4,048)

(13,447) Surplus on Revaluation of Non-Current Assets (6,314)

(7,081)
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pension Assets                                   

/Liabilities
(6,516)

- Other Movements in Usable/Unusable Reserves -

(25,315) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (16,878)

P
age 96



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  19                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Balance Sheet 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

31 March 2018 Notes 31 March 2019

Restated

£'000 £'000

363,385 Property, Plant and Equipment 7.1 372,325 

935 Heritage Assets 7.3 951 

219 Intangible Assets 6.1 263 

47,473 Long-term Investments 8.1 49,601 

1,280 Long-term Debtors 8.2 1,325 

413,292 Total Long-term Assets 424,466 

10,500 Short-term Investments 18.1 12,000 

48 Inventories 9.1 45 

4,503 Short-term Debtors 9.2 - 9.3 5,363 

2,753 Cash & Cash Equivalents 9.5 2,525 

17,804 Total Current Assets 19,933 

(23,500) Short-term Borrowing (19,000)

(6,291) Short-term Creditors 10.1 (11,619)

(1,979) Short-term Provisions 10.2 (1,432)

(31,769) Total Current Liabilities (32,051)

(96,407) Long-term Borrowing 18.2 (96,907)

(4,740) Deferred Liabilities 11.2 (4,620)

(1,597) Grant Receipts in Advance 11.3 - 11.4 (1,319)

(34,746) Pension Scheme Liability 3.5 (30,787)

(137,490) Total Long-term Liabilities (133,632)

261,837 Total Net Assets 278,716 

Represented by:-

25,059 Usable Reserves 2.1 - 2.4 25,685 

236,778 Unusable Reserves 3.1 - 3.6 253,031 

261,837 Total Reserves 278,716 

 

I certify that the statement of accounts gives a true and fair 

view of the financial position of the authority as at 31 March 

2019 and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 

March 2019. 

 

 

 
Adrian Webb 
Director of Finance and Corporate Services - Section 151  
25 July 2019 P

age 97



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  20                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

  
Cash Flow Statement 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared using the indirect method in accordance with IAS 7. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000 Notes

4,787 Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services 4,048 Page 16

5,513 
Adjustments to net Surplus/Deficit) on the Provision of Services - non cash 

movements 10,909

(2,993)
Adjustment for items included in the Net Surplus/Deficit) on the Provision of 

Services that are investing and financing activities
(2,904)

7,307 Net cash flows from operating activities 12,053 13.1

(37,689) Net cash flows from investing activities (10,862) 13.2

32,502 Net cash flows from financing activities (1,419) 13.3

2,120 Net (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (228)

633 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 2,753 13.4

2,753 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 2,525 13.4

P
age 98



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  21                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

SECTION B – NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1.0 – Movement in Reserves 

 

1.1 – Movement in Reserves Statement – Adjusting between Accounting and Funding Basis under Regulations 2018/19 

 
 

 

2018/19

General 

Fund 

Balance

HRA 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied 

Reserve

Movement 

Unusable 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Charges for depreciation and impairment movements on non-current assets (1,647) (3,245) - - - 4,892 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (55) (15) - - - 70 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (821) (32) - - - 853 

Amount of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the CI&E (102) (1,178) - - - 1,280 

Statutory provision for financing capital investment 541 2,000 - - - (2,541)

Capital expenditure charges against the General Fund and HRA balances 769 2,692 - - - (3,461)

Provision for expected credit gain/loss (390) - - - - 390 

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing from unapplied reserves 362 - - - 1,041 (1,403)

Capital grants and contributions that have been credited to the CI&E 681 143 - - (824) -

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gains/losses on disposal to 

the CI&E 12 1,718 (1,730) - - -

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - (413) 911 - - (498)

Contribution from Capital Receipts Reserve towards administrative costs of 

non-current asset disposal - (14) 14 - - -

Contribution from Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the payments to the 

Government Capital Receipts Pool - (426) 426 - - -

P
age 99



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  22                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

Movement in Reserves Statement – Adjusting between Accounting and Funding Basis under Regulations 2018/19 (continued) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2018/19

General 

Fund 

Balance

HRA 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied 

Reserve

Movement 

Unusable 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments involving the Major Repairs Reserve

Additions to Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - 4,296 - (4,296) - -

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - - - 3,970 - (3,970)

Adjustments involving the Pension Reserve

Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited or 

credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CI&E (3,557) (575) - - - 4,132 

Employers pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 

payable in year. 1,362 213 - - - (1,575)

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Amount by which net Collection Fund income debited/credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from 

Council Tax & NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance with 

statutory requirements 1,593 - - - - (1,593)

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Adjustments in relation to short-term compensated absences (4) - - - - 4 

Total Adjustments (1,256) 5,164 (379) (326) 217 (3,420)

P
age 100



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  23                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Movement in Reserve Statement – Adjusting between Accounting Funding Basis under Regulations 2017/18 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

2017/18

General 

Fund 

Balance

HRA 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied 

Reserve

Movement 

Unusable 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments involving the Capital Adjustment Account

Charges for depreciation and impairment movements on non-current assets (1,625) (650) - - - 2,275 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets (67) (17) - - - 84 

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (1,170) (32) - - - 1,202 

Amount of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 

gain/loss on disposal to the CI&E 2 (1,083) - - - 1,081 

Statutory provision for financing capital investment 403 2,000 - - - (2,403)

Capital expenditure charges against the General Fund and HRA balances 913 4,416 - - - (5,329)

Adjustments involving the Capital Grants Unapplied Account

Application of grants to capital financing from unapplied reserves - - - - 424 (424)

Capital grants and contributions that have been credited to the CI&E 1,076 83 - - (741) (418)

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts Reserve

Transfer of sale proceeds credited as part of the gains/losses on disposal to 

the CI&E 16 1,804 (1,820) - - -

Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - (2,000) 2,612 - - (612)

Contribution from Capital Receipts Reserve towards administrative costs of 

non-current asset disposal (1) (14) 16 - - (1)

Contribution from Capital Receipts Reserve to finance the payments to the 

Government Capital Receipts Pool - (427) 427 - - -

P
age 101



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  24                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Movement in Reserves Statement – Adjusting between Accounting and Funding Basis under Regulations 2017/18 (continued) 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18

General 

Fund 

Balance

HRA 

Balance

Capital 

Receipts 

Reserve

Major 

Repairs 

Reserve

Capital Grants 

Unapplied 

Reserve

Movement 

Unusable 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments involving the Major Repairs Reserve

Additions to Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - 3,539 - (3,539) - -

Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure - - - 3,556 - (3,556)

Adjustments involving the Pension Reserve

Reversal of items relating to post-employment benefits debited or 

credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the CI&E

(3,654) (684) - - - 4,338 

Employers pension contributions and direct payments to pensioners 

payable in year. 2,276 439 - - - (2,715)

Adjustments involving the Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Amount by which net Collection Fund income debited/credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from 

Council Tax & NNDR income calculated for the year in accordance with 

statutory requirements 341 - - - - (341)

Adjustments involving the Accumulated Absences Account

Adjustments in relation to short-term compensated absences (15) - - - - 15 

Total adjustments (1,505) 7,374 1,235 17 (317) (6,804)

P
age 102



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  25                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

2.0 – Usable Reserves 

 
The following Usable Reserves, as identified in the Movement of Reserves Statement, can be used to fund future expenditure or reduce future local taxation demands. 
 
2.1 – General Fund - Revenue Balances 

 
 For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7   

31 March 2018

Restated Transfer In Transfer Out 31 March 2019 Purpose of Reserve

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Working Balance 1,320 - (48) 1,272 Maintained to protect the Council's budget from unexpected risks.

Working Balance Sub Total 1,320 0 (48) 1,272 

Business Rates 1,500 664 (384) 1,780 Business Rates income contingency against future years' deficits.

Capital Slippage 466 924 (219) 1,171 Balance of projects slipped into the next financial year.

DWP 71 - - 71 To support possible clawbacks relating to the benefit subsidy audit.

Licensing - 103 (12) 91 Reserve to absorb excess of costs over income in relation to taxi licensing services.

MTFS 1,000 336 - 1,336 To support the Council against funding reductions and financial shortfalls over the 

life of the MTFS.

Transformation 1,728 - (559) 1,169 To support projects that enable the Council to operate more efficiently.

Emergency Response 40 - - 40 To cover costs falling on the Council as a result of a response to civil emergency.

Economic Development 15 46 - 61 To assist economic growth in the district and support local businesses.

Elections 75 25 - 100 Contributions towards future election costs.

Homelessness 126 114 (22) 218 Cover unbudgeted additional demand within the homelessness service.

Planning Development 1,384 670 (303) 1,751 To fund additional expenditure relating to all planning activities.

Strategic Initiatives 2,660 - (500) 2,160 Support initiatives in accordance with the stated purpose of the fund/key criteria.

Waste Depot Relocation 4,119 350 (69) 4,400 Project funding for the relocation of the Dunmow depot.

Waste Management 201 - - 201 Funds held to support service in unpredicted market fluctuations.

Development Projects - 1,152 - 1,152 To fund future development projects.

Private Finance Initiative 180 67 - 247 Supporting future years inflationary impacts relating to the leisure contract.

EU Exit - 128 - 128 Relates to additional costs as a direct result of the EU exit planning.

Net Other Services 62 38 (28) 72 

Other GF Usable Sub Total 13,627 4,617 (2,096) 16,148 

GF Usable Reserves Total 14,947 4,617 (2,144) 17,420 

P
age 103



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  26                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

2.2 – Housing Revenue Account - Reserve Balances 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

31 March 2018 Transfer 

In

Transfer 

Out

31 March 2019
Purpose of Reserve

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Working Balance 524 - (35) 489 Maintained to protect the budget from unexpected risks.

Working Balance Sub Total 524 - (35) 489

Transformation/Change Management 180 - - 180 To support projects that enable the Council to operate more efficiently.

Revenue Projects 60 - - 60 To finance outstanding revenue business plan actions.

Revenue Reserves Sub Total 240 - - 240

Potential Development Projects 849 13 (849) 13 Funding for new build schemes.

Slippage Reserve 3,764 849 (2,313) 2,300 Balance of projects slipped into the following financial year.

Earmarked Reserves Total 4,613 862 (3,162) 2,313

Major Repairs 147 4,296 (3,970) 473 Funding for future capital expenditure.

Other Capital Reserves Total 147 4,296 (3,970) 473

Capital Reserves Sub Total 4,760 5,158 (7,132) 2,786

Housing Revenue Balances Total 5,524 5,158 (7,167) 3,515

P
age 104



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  27                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

2.3 – Capital Receipts Reserve 

 

The Capital Receipts Reserve identifies capital receipts which are available to finance capital expenditure in future years.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

4,529 Balance as at 1 April 3,295

Receipts

16 Capital receipts - General Fund 12

1,804 Capital receipts - Housing Revenue Account 1,718

Applied

(427) Paid to government housing receipts pool (426)

(2,612) Capital receipts used for financing (911)

(16) Expenses from sales of capital assets (14)

(1,234) Movements in year 379

3,295 Balance as at 31 March 3,674

P
age 105



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  28                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

2.4 – Grants and Contributions without Conditions (Unapplied)  

 

 
 

  

31 March 2018 Income Interest
Draw Down 

Capital

Draw Down 

Revenue
31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

S106 Unapplied

Affordable Housing; 919

   -Land at the Canfield Service Station - 262 - - -

   -Land adjacent to Stevens Farm, Felsted - 54 - - -

   -Land at Ventnor Lodge, Cambridge Road, Quendon - 134 - - -

   -Draw Down - - - (693) -

Sub-Total - Affordable Housing 919 450 - (693) - 676

Dunmow Eastern Sector 18 - - - - 18

Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow 36 - - - - 36

Bell College, Saffron Walden 15 - - - - 15

Priors Green, Takeley 8 - - - - 8

Foresthall Park, Stansted 141 - - (108) - 33

Lt Walden Road/Ashdon Road, Saffron Walden 98 - - - - 98

Oakwood Park, Takeley 5 - - - - 5

SUB TOTAL 1,240 450 - (801) - 889

Capital Grants Unapplied

Reynolds Court - 143 - (143) - -

Heritage England 56 - - - - 56

DCLG; Parks Improvement Grant - 17 - - - 17

Disabled Facility Grant - 214 - (97) 117

SUB TOTAL 56 374 - (240) - 190 

Grants and Contributions Unapplied Total 1,296 824 - (1,041) - 1,079 

P
age 106



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  29                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

3.0 – Unusable Reserves 

 

3.1– Revaluation Reserve 

 

The Council is required to record unrealised gains and losses arising from holding non-current assets in a designated account ‘Revaluation Reserve’.  The reserve is 

matched by the fixed assets held on the balance sheet and is therefore not available to fund future capital expenditure. 

 

 

General Fund HRA Total General Fund HRA Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

7,161 96,561 103,722 Balance as at 1 April 11,104 105,366 116,470

4,220 9,196 13,416 Net Gain/(Loss) in Valuation of Assets 3,589 4,089 7,679

4,220 9,196 13,416 In Year Surplus on Revaluation of Non-Current Assets 3,589 4,089 7,679

(277) (33) (310) Revaluation Depreciation to Capital Adjustment Account (281) (1,630) (1,911)

- (358) (358) Disposal of Assets 0 (280) (280)

(277) (391) (668) In Year Amounts written out to the Capital Adjustment Account (281) (1,910) (2,191)

- - - Write-out of asset (1,409) - (1,409)

11,104 105,366 116,470 Balance as at 31 March 13,003 107,545 120,549

2017/18 2018/19

P
age 107



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  30                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

3.2 – Capital Adjustment Account 

The Capital Adjustment Account provides a balancing mechanism between the different rates at which assets are depreciated in accordance with the proper accounting 

policies and financed in accordance with the capital finance regime.  As with the Revaluation Reserve, the reserve is matched by non-current assets within the Balance 

Sheet and therefore is not available to finance capital expenditure in general terms. 

 

 
 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000 £'000

145,675 Balance as at 1 April 154,342

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or credited to the 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

(5,516) Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets (6,265)

3,241 Revaluation gains on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,373

(84) Amortisation of Intangible Assets (70)

(1,202) Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute (853)

(1,081)

Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part of gain/loss on 

disposal to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (1,280)

- Expected Credit Gains or Losses on Financial Instruments (390)

668 Adjusting amounts written out of Revaluation Reserve 2,191

(3,974) (5,294)

Capital financing applied in the year

612 Use of Capital Receipts Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 498

3,556 Use of Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 3,970

741 Capital Grants and Contributions applied to capital financing 1,404

2,403 

Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged against the 

General Fund and HRA balances 2,541

5,329 Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund and HRA balances 3,461

12,641 11,874

154,342 Balance as at 31 March 160,922

P
age 108



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  31                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

3.3 – Deferred Capital Receipts 

Deferred Capital Receipts relate to rent to mortgage arrangements for council dwellings where a charge is held on various properties at Land Registry.  The balance held 

reflects the vacant possession value of the proportion of the property held as a charge against the Land Registry.   

 

 
 

 

3.4 – Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account 

 

The Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund Balance from accruing for 

compensated absences earned but not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitlement carried forward at 31 March.  Statutory arrangements require that the impact on 

the General Fund Balance is neutralised to or from the account.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

1,174 Balance as at 1 April 1,205 

31 Increase/(decrease) in value 45 

1,205 Balance as at 31 March 1,250 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

(145) Balance as at 1 April (161)

(16) In year adjustment (4)

(161) Balance as at 31 March (165)

P
age 109



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  32                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

3.5 – Pension Reserve 

 

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in 

accordance with statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are 

earned by employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set 

aside to meet costs. However, statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be recognised as the Council makes employers’ contributions to pension funds or when 

any other obligations are settled. The debit balance on the Pension Reserve therefore shows a shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the 

resources the Council has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid. 

 

The movement on the pension reserve can be seen in detail in note 17. 

 

 
 

3.6 – Collection Fund Adjustment Account 

Collection Fund Adjustment Account (CFAA) – is a specific accounting mechanism used to reconcile the differences arising from the recognition of council tax and non-

domestic rates income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to those amounts required to be charged by statute to the General Fund. For example, a 

credit balance on the CFAA would show that more tax has been collected than an authority is permitted to transfer out of the Collection Fund. 

 

2017/18 Notes 2018/19

£'000 £'000

(40,203) Balance as at 1 April (34,745)

(1,623) Surplus/(Deficit) on Provision of Services in CI&E 17.2 (2,557)

7,081 Actuarial Gain/(Loss) 17.9 6,516 

(34,745) Balance as at 31 March (30,786)

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

(673) Surplus/(Deficit) as at 1 April (333)

(111)

Amount by which Council Tax income credited to the CIES is different from Council 

Tax income calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 15 

451 

Amount by which NNDR income credited to the CIES is different from NNDR income 

calculated for the year in accordance with statutory requirements 1,579 

(333) Surplus/(Deficit) as at 31 March 1,261 

P
age 110



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  33                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

SECTION C – COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 

 

4.0 – Notes relating to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

4.1– Revenue Contracts 

 

The Council has undertaken a review of its income streams that meet the requirements for IFRS 15 Revenue Contracts. The impact to the accounts was approximately 

£200k and not material. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 111



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  34                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

4.2 – Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

 

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis (EFA) table illustrates how annual expenditure and funding is used across the council’s portfolios. 

The analysis shows how the accounts arrive at the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement by presenting the movements required under statute as shown in 

note 1.1 and the following note to the EFA. 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

 

 

  

Reported 

Outturn
Net 

Recharges

Net 

expenditure 

chargeable to 

the General 

Fund & HRA 

balances

Adjustments 

between Funding 

and Accounting 

Basis to arrive at 

the CIES

Other 

(Non-statutory) 

adjustments

Net expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income & 

Expenditure 

Statement

Reported 

Outturn

Net 

Recharges

Net 

expenditure 

chargeable to 

the General 

Fund & HRA 

Balances

Adjustments 

between Funding 

and Accounting 

Basis to arrive at 

the CIES

Other 

(Non-statutory) 

adjustments

Net expenditure 

in the 

Comprehensive 

Income & 

Expenditure 

Statement

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

854 146 1,001 1,216 (146) 2,071 Community & Partnerships 778 190 968 1,198 (190) 1,976 

3,304 1,470 4,774 1,463 (1,470) 4,767 Environmental Services 2,454 1,560 4,014 2,016 (1,560) 4,470 

5,957 (3,335) 2,622 568 3,335 6,525 Finance & Administration 5,507 (3,337) 2,170 632 3,337 6,139 

1,439 78 1,517 104 (78) 1,543 Housing & Economic Development 1,485 15 1,500 231 (15) 1,716 

- (348) (348) 1,279 (1,641) (710) Corporate Costs 87 (374) (287) - (1,572) (1,859)

11,554 (1,989) 9,566 4,630 - 14,196 General Fund Total 10,311 (1,946) 8,365 4,077 (0) 12,442 

(10,945) 1,641 (9,304) 761 (8,543) Housing Revenue Account (10,753) 1,572 (9,181) 3,487 (1,572) (7,266)

348 348 348 Housing Revenue Account  - Overheads - 374 374 - 1,572 1,946 

609 0 610 5,391 - 6,001 Net Cost of Service (442) - (442) 7,564 (0) 7,121 

469 (11,257) (10,788) Other Income and Expenditure 306 (11,475) (11,169)

1,079 (5,866) - (4,787) (Surplus)/Deficit (136) (3,911) (0) (4,048)

21,404 Opening General Fund and HRA Balance 16,617 

(4,787) Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services (4,048)

16,617 Closing General Fund and HRA Balance 12,569 

P
age 112



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  35                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

4.3 – Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net 

Pensions 

Adjustments

Other 

Adjustments

Net 

Adjustments

Adjustments 

for Capital 

Purposes

Net 

Pensions 

Adjustments

Other 

Adjustments

Net 

Adjustments

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Restated Restated Restated Restated

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1,193 23 - 1,216 Community & Partnerships 1,151 47 - 1,198 

1,247 215 - 1,463 Environmental Services 1,328 688 - 2,016 

393 175 - 568 Finance & Administration 112 520 - 632 

29 74 - 104 Housing & Economic Development 35 197 - 232 

- 1,279 - 1,279 Corporate Costs - - - -

2,863 1,767 - 4,630 General Fund Outturn 2,626 1,452 - 4,078 

699 62 - 761 Housing Revenue Account 3,277 210 3,487 

3,562 1,829 - 5,391 Net Cost of Service 5,903 1,662 - 7,565 

(10,726) (206) (325) (11,257) Other Income and Expenditure (9,594) 896 (2,777) (11,476)

(7,164) 1,623 (325) (5,866)
Adjustment to the Surplus/Deficit on Provision of 

Services
(3,691) 2,558 (2,777) (3,911)

1,447 695 (325) 1,817 Adjustments to the General Fund 1,692 2,195 (2,634) 1,253 

(8,611) 928 - (7,683) Adjustments to the Housing Revenue Account (5,384) 362 (143) (5,164)

P
age 113



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  36                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

4.4 – Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7   

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

Expenditure

15,973 Employee benefits expenses 16,007

27,309 Other service expenses 25,103

3,540 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 5,903

3,269 Interest payments 3,792

2,886 Precepts and levies 3,155

427 Payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool 426

53,403 Total Expenditure 54,386

Income

(22,947) Fees, charges and other service income (23,294)

(1,759) Interest and investment income (2,009)

(10,494) Income from Council Tax, Business Rates (12,549)

(22,251) Government grants and contributions (20,029)

(738) Gains on the disposal (553)

(58,190) Total Income (58,434)

(4,787) (Surplus)/Deficit on the provision of services (4,048)

P
age 114



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  37                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

5.0 – Notes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

5.1– Total Other Operating Expenditure 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

5.2 – Total Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

2,886 Parish Council Precepts 3,155 

427 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 426 

(738) (Gain)/Loss on the Disposal of Non-Current Assets (553)

16 Other Non-Service Specific Expenditure 4 

2,591 Total Other Operating Expenditure 3,032 

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

3,268 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 3,412 

- Interest Revenue calculated using the Effective Interest Rate 379 

1,073 Pensions - Net Interest on the Defined Benefit Liability (Asset) 896 

(1,758) Interest Receivable and Similar Income (2,009)

2,583 Total Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 2,678 

P
age 115



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  38                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

5.3 – Total Taxation and Non Specific Grants  

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

Council Tax Income

(5,035) - District Council element (5,330)

(2,886) - Town/Parish Councils element (3,155)

Business Rates Retention

(2,313) - District Council element of NNDR income in year (2,201)

141 - Safety Net reimbursement/Levy payment due 762 

(1,088) - Section 31 funding from Central Government (1,274)

Collection Fund

(82) - Council Tax - Net value of estimated/actual income recognised in CI&E (28)

768 - NNDR - Net value of estimated/actual income recognised in CI&E (1,321)

Non Ring Fenced Government Grants

(3,772) - New Homes Bonus (2,864)

(285) - Supplementary Grants (279)

Other

(252) - Formula Funding from Central Government -

(1,159) - Capital Grants and Contributions (1,188)

(15,963) Total Taxation and Non-Specific Grants Income (16,880)

P
age 116



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  39                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

SECTION D – BALANCE SHEET 

 

6.0 – Intangible Assets 

 

Intangible fixed assets are those items which, although the cost incurred in their acquisition is of a capital nature there is no physical tangible asset to show.  The 

movement in intangible assets during 2018/19 are detailed below. 

 

6.1– Intangible Assets 

 

 
  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

766 Gross Balance at 1 April 585 

26 Additions 114 

(207) Asset write out -

585 Gross Balance carried forward at 31 March 699 

(489) Amortisation as at 1 April (366)

(84) Amortisation in year (70)

207 Amortisation write out -

(366) Amortisation Balance carried forward 31 March (436)

219 Net Value at 31 March 263 

P
age 117



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  40                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

7.0 – Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

7.1 - Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

 

2018/19
Council 

Dwellings

Other Land 

and Buildings

Vehicles Plant 

and Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 1 April 2018 341,111 36,340 11,208 558 866 7,132 397,215

Revaluation Gain recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 7,098 3,882 - - - - 10,981

Revaluation Loss recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (3,180) (122) - - - - (3,302)

Revaluation recognised in the CIES 1,038 351 - - - - 1,389

Additions 4,332 82 541 - 43 3,830 8,829

De-recognition - Disposals (1,270) - (163) - - - (1,432)

De-recognition - Other - (1,766) - - - - (1,766)

Asset Impairment write out - - - - - - -

Reclassification 8,398 - - - - (8,398) -

Balance as at 31 March 2019 357,528 38,768 11,587 558 909 2,564 411,915

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2018 (20,553) (5,303) (7,793) (108) (74) - (33,831)

Depreciation in year (4,138) (894) (1,197) (28) (11) - (6,268)

Disposal Depreciation write outs 91 - 164 - - - 255

De-recognition - Other - 254 - - - - 254

Reclassification - - - - - - -

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31 March 2019 (24,600) (5,943) (8,826) (136) (85) - (39,590)

Net Book Value as at 31 March 2019 332,928 32,825 2,761 422 824 2,564 372,325

Net Value as at 31 March 2018 320,558 31,037 3,415 450 792 7,132 363,384

Assets owned outright 332,928 16,231 2,379 422 824 2,564 355,348

Donated Assets - - 41 - - - 41

Finance lease on assets - - - - - - -

Assets used under contractual PFI agreement - 16,594 341 - - - 16,935

Total 332,928 32,825 2,761 422 824 2,564 372,324

P
age 118



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  41                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
 

 

  

2017/18

Council 

Dwellings

Other Land 

and Buildings

Vehicles Plant 

and Equipment

Infrastructure 

Assets

Community 

Assets

Assets Under 

Construction

Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 1 April 2017 322,547 31,976 11,228 541 853 5,740 372,885 

Revaluation Gain recognised in the Revaluation Reserve 15,774 4,671 - - - - 20,445 

Revaluation Loss recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (6,531) (498) - - - - (7,029)

Revaluation recognised in the CIES 3,163 100 - - - - 3,263 

Additions 4,667 91 469 17 13 4,037 9,294 

Disposals (1,154) - (239) - - - (1,393)

Asset Impairment write out - - (250) - - - (250)

Reclassification 2,645 - - - - (2,645) -

Balance as at 31 March 2018 341,111 36,340 11,208 558 866 7,132 397,215 

Accumulated Depreciation as at 1 April 2017 (17,268) (4,448) (7,014) (82) (64) - (28,876)

Depreciation in year (3,356) (855) (1,278) (26) (10) - (5,525)

Disposal Depreciation write outs 71 - 241 - - - 312 

Depreciation Impairment write outs - - 258 - - - 258 

Reclassification - - - - - - -

Accumulated Depreciation as at 31 March 2018 (20,553) (5,303) (7,793) (108) (74) - (33,831)

Net Book Value as at 31 March 2018 320,558 31,037 3,415 450 792 7,132 363,384 

Net Value as at 31 March 2017 305,278 27,529 4,215 459 789 5,740 344,010 

Assets owned outright 320,558 13,610 2,671 450 428 7,132 344,849 

Donated Assets - 1,512 62 - - - 1,574 

Finance lease on assets - - - - 364 - 364 

Assets used under contractual PFI agreement - 15,915 682 - - - 16,597 

Total 320,558 31,037 3,415 450 792 7,132 363,384 

P
age 119



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  42                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

7.2 – Capital Expenditure and Financing 

 

The total amount of capital expenditure, including finance leases, incurred in the year and the sources of financing are detailed in the table below. 

Where the capital expenditure is not financed in the year of purchase, the Council will apply a capital charge over the life of the asset to revenue budgets. This method of 

financing creates an initial increase in the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), which is subsequently reduced by the yearly capital charge.  

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

95,757 Opening Capital Financing Requirement as at 1 April 141,142

Capital Expenditure

9,295 Property Plant and Equipment 8,828

26 Intangible Assets 114

52 Heritage Assets 16

47,473 Aspire Investment 2,518

1,202 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute 853

58,048 Total Capital Expenditure 12,329

(22) Increase in non-dwelling HRA assets not reversed to unusable reserves (17)

- Expected Credit Gains or Losses on Financial Instruments 390

(22) Sub Total 373

Financed By

(612) Usable Capital Receipts (498)

(741) Government Grants and Other Contributions (1,404)

(5,329) Capital Expenditure Financed from Revenue Contributions (3,461)

(3,556) Major Repairs Reserve (3,970)

(2,403) Minimum Revenue Provision (2,541)

(12,641) Total Capital Financing (11,874)

141,142 Closing Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March 141,970

Explanation of Movement

47,788 Increase in underlying need to borrow 3,368

(2,403) Minimum Revenue Provision (2,541)

45,385 Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Financing Requirement 827

P
age 120



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  43                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

7.3 – Heritage Assets 

The following Council assets meet the definition of ‘Heritage Assets’ under Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 30 and are held on the balance sheet as: 

 

 
 

Saffron Walden Motte and Bailey Castle: 

The structure and retaining wall is a Grade 1 scheduled monument which was passed to the Council’s ownership in 1979. 
The castle is Norman dating from the 12th century. The wall surrounding the castle is also listed. To date there have been no excavations on the site of notable interest.  
The movement in Heritage Assets on the balance sheet is expenditure incurred on the Motte and Bailey Castle. 
For proposals of future works to the Castle please refer to the Council’s website www.uttlesford.gov.uk  

 
Saffron Walden Museum Artefacts 
Under the terms of a 99 year lease with Saffron Walden Museum Society Limited, the Council is responsible for operating and managing the Saffron Walden Museum and 
associated artefacts. It has been established that the risks and rewards associated with the arrangement are held by the Council and therefore the Fine Arts Collection is 
included in the accounts*. Under the terms of the lease the Council is responsible for the repair and restoration of the museum artefacts and the nature of the displays, 
acquisitions and disposals. Governance arrangements are also conducted through the Museum Board of the Society and the Council’s Museum Management Working 
Group. 
 
The collection of an estimated 11,000 artefacts is, on the whole, of significant local worth, with a small proportion of high value items. Valuations were carried out for the 
following collections; Natural Sciences undertaken by G Lucy – Geologist (2001) derived a value of £0.5million and Decorative Collection undertaken by J Dutton – 
Ceramics specialist (2011) these resulted in a value of £1.3million. 
  
The valuations undertaken were not commissioned valuations in line with accounting requirements and therefore the Council is unable to place reliance on the valuations 
for the Accounts. 

 
*As per FRS 30 it is considered that the cost of seeking valuations for the remaining artefacts would be disproportionate to the benefit gained from their recognition on 
the balance sheet, therefore the Council are only holding the Fine Arts Collection on the Balance Sheet. 
  

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

780 Saffron Walden Motte and Bailey 797

155 Museum Artefacts - Fine Arts Collection 155

935 Total 952

P
age 121

http://www.uttlesford.gov.uk/


Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  44                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

7.4 – Significant Commitments under Capital Contracts 
 

As at 31 March 2019, the Council has the following contractual obligations for capital expenditure: 

 

 
 

 

8.0 – Other Long Term Assets 

 

8.1 – Long Term Investments  

 

The Council has one long-term investment totalling £49.601million over a fifty year period to Aspire (CRP) Ltd, the Council’s wholly owned subsidiary, to enable an 

investment into Chesterford Research Park. Under IFRS 9 an estimated credit loss adjustment has been actioned totalling £389K through the Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement reflecting potential future losses on repayments due. 

 

8.2 – Long Term Debtors 

 

The Council has long term debtors relating to ‘Rent to Mortgages’ which is shown in Financial Instruments – 18.1 and 18.6 and a further £75k for a scheme funded by the 

‘Private Lease Agreements Converting Empties’(PLACE) scheme.  

 

 

 

 

Work in progress 

31 March 2019

Total Remaining 

Commitment

£'000 £'000

Capital Scheme

Housing

Hatherley Court 1,305 499

Newton Grove 510 258

Frambury Lane 434 462

Total 2,249 1,219P
age 122



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  45                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

9.0 – Current Assets 

 

9.1 – Inventories (Stock) 

 

 
 

9.2 – Debtors 

 

 
 

9.3 – Impairment Allowances (for Non-Collection) 

 

 
 

The Debtors figure in the Balance Sheet is the total of tables 9.2 & 9.3 (i.e. presented net of impairment allowances). 

 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

48 Housing Stores 42

48 Total 42

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

271 Central Government Bodies 1,029

439 Other Local Authorities 619

5,250 Other Entities and Individuals 5,171

5,960 Total 6,819

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

(296) Business Rates (235)

(144) Council Tax (168)

(227) Housing Rents (210)

(762) Overpaid Benefit (807)

(28) Sundry Debtors (36)

(1,457) Total (1,456)

P
age 123



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  46                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

9.4 – Short-term Investments 

 

The Council has £12million in short term investments which is detailed in Section 18 – Financial Instruments. 

 

9.5 – Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

1,818 Net Cash Equivalent as per Balance Sheet 2,413

(59) Receipts Accounts - Cash in Transit 114

(5) Payments Accounts - Cash in Transit (2)

1,754 Total 2,525

P
age 124



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  47                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

10.0 – Current Liabilities 

 

10.1 – Creditors 

 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

10.2 – Provisions 

 

 

The total provision available for Business Rates appeals as at 31 March 2019 is £2.846million; the above table reflects the Council’s share of the provision at a value of 

£1.138million.   

 

 

 

  

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Restated

£'000 £'000

784 Central Government Bodies 3,005

966 Other Local Authorities 2,197

4,540 Other Entities and Individuals 6,178

6,290 Total 11,380

31 March 2018 In Year Provision 

Created

Provision Applied 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

245 Legal - - 245

49 New Homes Bonus - Parish Councils - - 49

1,685 Business Rates Appeals 544 (1,090) 1,138 

1,979 Balance as at 31 March 544 (1,090) 1,432 

P
age 125



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  48                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

11.0 – Long Term Liabilities 

 

11.1 – Long Term Borrowing 

 

The long term borrowing consists of two elements; borrowing for the Housing Revenue Account and for Aspire (CRP) Ltd for the investment in Chesterford Research Park. 

 

The Council was required to borrow £88.407million on the 28 March 2012 to buy itself out of the subsidy regime. The Housing Revenue Account maintains a 30 year 

rolling business plan as part of the council’s financial planning this gives details of income, expenditure, financing and repayments. 

 

The Council has set up a subsidiary company (Aspire (CRP) Ltd) to undertake an investment in Chesterford Research Park, to enable the investment the council has 

committed to a forward starting loan totalling £37million. In 2017/18 the first element of the loan was drawn down totalling £10million. The borrowing will be drawn 

down to reduce internal cash balances loaned to Aspire (CRP) Ltd over a three year period with the second draw down in 2020/21 of £12million and the final element of 

£15million in 2021/22. For further information on this please refer to Section 18 Financial Instruments. 

 

The maturity profile of the debt is detailed in Note 18.7 - Financial Instruments 

 

11.2 – Deferred Liabilities 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19 1 Year 2 - 5 Years 6 - 10 Years 11 - 15 Years 16 - 20 Years

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Leisure - PFI

4,852 Opening Balance 4,740 4,619 4,488 3,844 2,689 968

(112) Principle Repayment (121) (131) (644) (1,155) (1,721) (968)

4,740 Closing Balance 4,619 4,488 3,844 2,689 968 -

4,740 Deferred Liabilities as at 31 March 4,619 4,488 3,844 2,689 968 -

P
age 126



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  49                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

11.3 – Creditor – Grants and Contributions with Conditions 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

31 March 2018 Income Adjustment
Drawn Down - 

Capital

Drawn Down - 

Revenue
31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

S106 Receipts in Advance

Priors Green, Takeley 163 - - (85) - 78

Felsted 10 - - - - 10

Rochford Nurseries/Foresthall Park, Stansted 316 - - (256) - 60

The Orchard, Elsenham 42 - - - - 42

Wedow Road, Thaxted 54 - - - - 54

Sector 4 Woodlands Park, Gt Dunmow 10 - - - - 10

Keers Green Nurseries, Aythorpe Roding 120 - - - - 120

Land adjacent to Saffron Walden Hospital 31 - - - - 31

Land at Blossom Hill Farm, Henham 33 - - - - 33

Land at Webb & Hallett Road, Flitch Green, Felsted 33 - - - - 33

Land South side of Radwinter Road 49 - - - - 49

Land at Ventnor Lodge, Cambridge Road, Quendon - 21 - (21) - -

SUB TOTAL 861 21 - (362) - 520

Capital Grants - Receipts in advance

Heritage Quest Centre Grants 26 - - - - 26

PLACE Scheme 75 - - - - 75

SUB TOTAL 101 - - - - 101

Grants and Contributions with Condtions 962 21 0 (362) 0 621

P
age 127



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  50                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

11.4 – Creditor – Grants and Contributions to Other Bodies 

 

 
 

 

 

 

31 March 2018 Income Adjustment
Transferred to 

Other Bodies
31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

S106 Receipts in Advance

Sector 4 Woodlands Park (Helena Romanes School) 165 - - - 165

Brewers End, Takeley 31 - - - 31

Land adj Hailes Wood, Elsenham 10 - - - 10

Land at Flitch Green, Felsted 67 - - - 67

Land adjacent to S/W Hospital 16 - - - 16

Ashdon Road Commercial Centre 135 673 - (782) 26

Land south of Stansted Road, Elsenham 53 - - - 53

Land south of Ongar Road, Gt Dunmow 17 - - - 17

Land at 119 Radwinter Road, adj S/W Hospital 15 - - - 15

Land north of Ongar Road, Gt Dunmow 21 79 - (79) 21

Land at Bury Water Land, Newport 29 - - - 29

Land south side of Radwinter Road 36 - - - 36

Land at Elsenham Nurseries 14 - - - 14

Bury Water Lane, Newport 26 - - - 26

Land to the North of Stebbing Primary School - 239 - (239) -

Land at Whiteditch Lane, Newport - 151 - (151) -

Walpole Farm, Cambridge Road, Stansted - 408 - (355) 53

Land at Thorpe Lea, Walden Road, Gt Chesterford - 59 - (59) -

Land at Little Walden Road, Saffron Walden - 120 - - 120

Grants and Contributions to Other Bodies 635 1,729 - (1,665) 699 

P
age 128



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  51                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

11.5 – Pension Liability 

 

The pension liability is the current obligation of the future retirement benefits the council has to its members, this is calculated as a net of the fair value of assets less the 

current obligation. For more information on the obligation, the accounting treatment and reserve please see note 3.5. 

 

 

12.0 – Tax Payers Equity 

 

12.1 – Usable Reserves 

 

The usable reserves are monies that are set aside and can be used by the council to fund future projects and initiatives, as directed by Members and the senior 

management team, that are not part of the normal running of the council services.   For details please refer to Section B notes 2.1-2.4. 

 

12.2 – Unusable Reserves 

 

The unusable reserves are unrealised gains and losses of the council that relate to the financing of capital expenditure as well as timing differences between recognition of 

assets and liabilities under accounting rules and statutory regulations.  For details please refer to Section B notes 3.1-3.7. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 129



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  52                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

SECTION E – CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

 

13.0 – Cash Flow Activities 

 

13.1 – Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

Restated

£'000 £'000

4,787 Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services 4,048 

Adjustments to net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services for non-cash 

movements

5,516 Depreciation 6,265 

(3,241) Impairment and downward valuations (1,373)

84 Amortisation 70 

(7) Adjustments for effective interest rates -

749 Increase/(Decrease) in creditors 3,134 

(1,120) Increase/(Decrease) in debtors (860)

(4) (Increase)/Decrease in inventories 2 

1,623 Pension liability 2,557 

832 Contribution to provisions (547)

1,081 Carrying amount of non-current assets sold 1,280 

- Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision 381 

 of services

5,513 Total 10,909 

(2,993)

Adjustments for items included in the net (deficit) on the provision of 

services that are investing of financing activities (2,904)

7,307 Net cash flows from operating activities 12,053 

P
age 130



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  53                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

13.2 – Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities 

 

 
 

 

13.3 – Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

(10,251) Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property 

and intangible assets & movement in capital creditor

(9,470)

(30,973) Movements in net short-term investments (4,018)

(75) Other payments for investing activities -

1,804 Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,716 

806 Capital grants received 910 

(38,689) Total Cash Flows from Investing Activities (10,862)

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

31,877 Movement in short and long-term borrowing (4,000)

741 Billing Authorities - Council Tax & Business Rates Adjustment 2,702 

(116) Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liabilities (121)

32,502 Total Cash Flows from Financing Activities (1,419)

P
age 131



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  54                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

13.4 – Cash Flow Statement – Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

 
 

 

 

13.5 – Cash Flow Statement – Interest on Balances 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19
Movement in 

year

£'000 £'000 £'000

1,753 Cash and Bank Balances 2,526 773 

1,753 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,526 773 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

3,206 Interest paid 3,415 

(54) Interest received 1,903 

3,152 Net Interest Paid 5,318 

P
age 132



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  55                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

SECTION F – SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

14.0 – Leasing Arrangements and Private Finance Initiative 

 

14.1 – Private Finance Initiative 

 

The Council’s Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Scheme provided two new Leisure Centres in Great Dunmow and Stansted Mountfitchet and the refurbishment of the Lord 

Butler Fitness and Leisure Centre in Saffron Walden. The PFI contract is with 1Life who manages the three Leisure Centres on the Council’s behalf. 

 

The carrying value of the PFI assets as at 31 March 2019 was £16.6million. 

 

The contract was operational from the financial year 2003/04 and runs for a period of 32 years (ending 2035/36) leaving 17 years outstanding.  The total contract 

payments estimated at the time of entering into the contract were £39.9million.  Actual payments are dependent on the service provided.  The remaining capital liability 

as at the balance sheet date is £4.62million (Note 11.2). The figures have been updated in line with RPI. 

 

The PFI unitary charge has been forecast to increase by an average RPI of 2.4% to the end of the PFI contract. This reflects the latest short to medium term RPI inflation 

forecasts. 

 

 
 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19 1 year 2 - 5 years 6 - 10 years 11 - 15 years 16 - 20 years

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

1,056 Leisure PFI - Unitary Charge 1,098 1,120 4,703 6,426 7,105 3,051

112 Capital repayment 121 131 644 1,155 1,721 968

403 Interest expense 393 383 1,414 1,418 852 102

268 Contingent rent 291 309 1,379 2,225 2,876 1,674

273 Services 293 297 1,266 1,628 1,656 307

1,056 Total Unitary Charge 1,098 1,120 4,703 6,426 7,105 3,051

P
age 133



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  56                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

15.0 – Members, Officers and Related Parties 

 

15.1 – Members Allowances 

 

The Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Government (Members Allowances) Regulation 2003 require the council to appoint an independent remuneration panel to 

review its scheme for Members Allowances. The panel make recommendations to the Council regarding the scheme to be operated in 2018/19. The total Members 

allowances paid in 2018/19 was £282,896 (£283,808 for 2017/18), these are detailed below. 

 

 
 

15.2 – Related Party Transactions 

 

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced by 

the Council. 

 

15.2.1 - Members of the Council 

 

Members of the Council have direct control over the Council’s financial and operating activities. Any contracts entered into by the Council are in full compliance with the 
Council’s constitution and any decisions made take full consideration of any declarations of interest.  
 
A register of Members Interests is held and records all transactions and declarations, this is available for public inspection during office opening times at the London Road 
offices, alternatively current Members records can be found on the Council’s website.  
 

  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

Allowance:

198 Basic Allowance 199

4 Group Leaders Allowances 4

69 Special Responsibility Allowances 70

13 Travel and Subsistence 10

284 Total 283

P
age 134



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  57                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

15.2.2 - Senior Officers of the Council 

 

Senior Officers have control over the day-to-day management of the Council. The Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant Directors are required to declare any related 

party transactions.  All transactions are recorded in the register of Officers Interest, Gifts and Hospitality and this is available for public inspection during office opening 

hours. 

 

The Director of Finance and Corporate Services, Assistant Director of Corporate Services and Assistant Director ICT and Facilities are all Directors of the Council’s wholly 

owned subsidiary Companies under the Aspire name and 2 companies enabling the set-up of a Joint venture; Chesterford Park (Nominee) Limited and Chesterford Park 

(General Partner) Limited . Further information relating to the companies can be found in the narrative report and the Group Accounts.  

 

There are no other disclosures from Senior Officers of any material related party transactions. 

 

15.2.3 – Central Government 

 

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the authority – it is responsible for providing the statutory framework, within which the 

authority operates, provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions that the authority has with other parties 

(e.g. Council Tax bills, Housing Benefits). 

 

Further information on significant funding streams from Central Government is included within the narrative report. 

 

 

15.2.4 – Companies and Organisations 

 

 Turpin’s Indoor Bowling Club Limited 

Under the terms of a 23 year lease (a new lease was started in December 2014), Turpin’s Indoor Bowling Club Limited leases property owned by the Council.  The 

asset is leased to the company for a market rent; taking account of the covenant within the terms of the lease, 40% of the facility is for the use of community 

residents.  To protect the Council’s interest two Council Members have a seat on the organisation’s board.   

 

 Saffron Walden Pig Market 

Uttlesford District Council is the sole trustee of the Saffron Walden Pig Market Charity.  The Charity owns a proportion of a public pay and display car park and 

their income is derived from this asset. 

P
age 135



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  58                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

The Car Park is maintained and run by the North Essex Parking Partnership on behalf of the District Council and the Charity receives a 19.86% share of the net 

income. 

 

The Charity distributes the income it receives by way of grants to charities that work in the Saffron Walden area. The last two years grant distributions have been 

as follows: 

Citizens Advice Bureau   2018/19 - £41,366 

   2017/18 - £40,488 

 

 Saffron Walden Museum Society Limited 

The Council rents the Saffron Walden Museum and Museum artefacts under the terms of a 99 year lease from the Museum charity at a nominal annual rent.  The 

asset is classified as a donated asset under the International accounting standards, on the basis that the Council receives all the rewards and benefits of the asset 

used to provide a service.  The Museum service is fully funded by the Council and all staff associated with this service are employed by the Council.  A nominated  

Council Member has a seat on the Museum Charity board. 

 

The net costs of running the Museum are;  

    2018/19 - £293,042     

2017/18 - £311,623 + £448,557 impairment to land and buildings for the Museum Store 

 

15.2.5 – Partnership Schemes 

 

 Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) – Uttlesford Futures 

Uttlesford Futures Management Board work together in relation to the Strategic needs of the district.  

  

The Partnership consists of Uttlesford District Council, Essex County Council, Essex Police, Essex Fire Authority, West Essex Clinical Commissioning Group, 

Uttlesford Council for Voluntary Services, Federation of Small Businesses, Sustainable Uttlesford, Uttlesford Association of Local Councils and Learning Skills 

Council. 

The Council’s contribution for 2018/19 was £5,000 (£5,000 for 2017/18). 

 

 

 

P
age 136



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  59                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

 Community Safety Partnership 

The Council is a member of the district wide Community Safety Partnership, this comprises of statutory, private and voluntary organisations working together to 

tackle crime and disorder.   

 

The Partnership consists of Uttlesford District Council, Essex County Council, Essex Police, Essex Fire Authority, West Essex Clinical Commissioning Group and 

Uttlesford Council for Voluntary Services.  The Partnership reports into the Local Strategic Partnership. 

 

The table below shows the finances of the Partnership over the last 2 financial years. The unspent funds will contribute towards the costs of the partnership’s 

strategic vision in future financial years. 

 
 

15.2.6 – Parking Partnership 

 

 The Council is a member of the North Essex Parking Partnership which was formed with Colchester Borough Council, Braintree District Council, Epping Forest 

District Council, Harlow District Council and Tendring District Council with effect from the 1 April 2011.  The Partnership operates the Councils’ off-street pay and 

display car parks for Colchester, Braintree, Harlow, Uttlesford and administers the on street parking services on behalf of Essex County Council.  The lead authority 

is Colchester Borough Council and they provide the support services and accommodation for the Partnership. 

 

The Partnership is governed by a Joint Committee, on which each partner Council has a representative.  The Joint Committee produces its own accounts which 

summarise the surplus/deficit for each year as well as the reserves held at each year-end. 

 

The Partnership is funded by previously agreed contributions by each Council partner; these are expected to remain constant.  In the event that the Partnership 

falls into deficit (costs exceed income) then an increase in the contributions may be required.  The Partnership’s cumulative reserves will be used as a contingency 

to ensure financial stability.  If deemed appropriate by the Joint Committee, a proportion of the reserves may be returned to the partners.     

2017/18 2018/19

(62) Balance at 1 April (67)

(22) Income in Year (16)

16 Expenditure in Year 37

(67) Balance at 31 March (45)

P
age 137



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  60                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

15.3 – Officers Remuneration 

 

Senior Officers remuneration is detailed below 

 

 
 

(*) Job title change - formerly Assistant Director - Housing and Environmental Services 

(**) Assistant Director - Governance and Legal post appointed 1 February 2018 

(***) Assistant Director - Environmental Services post appointed 14 December 2018 at an annualised salary of new appointment £67,993 

  

Salary, Fees 

and 

Allowances

Bonuses Car 

Allowances

Benefits 

in Kind

Redundancy Total Remuneration 

Excluding Pension 

Contributions

Pension 

Contributions

Total Remuneration 

including Pension 

Contributions

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive 2017/18 109,080 - - - - 109,080 18,325 127,405

2018/19 112,807 - - - - 112,807 18,984 131,791

Director of Public Services 2017/18 86,860 - - - - 86,860 14,592 101,452

2018/19 89,627 - - - - 89,627 15,057 104,684

Director of Finance and Corporate Services 2017/18 86,860 - - - - 86,860 14,592 101,452

2018/19 89,627 - - - - 89,627 15,057 104,684

Assistant Director - Corporate Services 2017/18 66,660 - - - - 66,660 11,199 77,859

2018/19 69,023 - - - - 69,023 11,596 80,619

Assistant Director - Housing, Health and 2017/18 66,660 - - - - 66,660 11,199 77,859

Communities(*) 2018/19 69,023 - - - - 69,023 11,596 80,619

Assistant Director - Planning and Building 2017/18 66,660 - - - - 66,660 11,199 77,859

Control 2018/19 69,023 - - - - 69,023 11,596 80,619

Assistant Director - Resources 2017/18 66,660 - - - - 66,660 11,199 77,859

2018/19 69,023 - - - - 69,023 11,596 80,619

Assistant Director - ICT and Facilities 2017/18 66,660 - - - - 66,660 11,199 77,859

2018/19 69,023 - - - - 69,023 11,596 80,619

Assistant Director - Governance and Legal(**) 2017/18 11,110 - - - - 11,110 1,866 12,976

2018/19 67,993 - - - - 67,993 11,423 79,416

Assistant Director - Environmental Services(***) 2017/18 - - - - - - - -

2018/19 20,288 - - - - 20,288 3,408 23,696

P
age 138



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  61                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

15.4 – Employees Salary over £50,000 

 

The Council’s employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (excluding employer’s pension contributions) are shown in the table below. 

 

 
 

 

The number of employees shown above includes the senior officers shown in the preceding senior officers’ note (15.3) 

 

The table reflects actual payments made during the year; the Assistant Director – Environmental Services was appointed 14 December 2018 and therefore does not meet 

the criteria to be included in this table. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

No. of Employees Remuneration Band No. of Employees

2017/18 2018/19

5 £50,000 - £54,999 7 

5 £65,000 - £69,999 6 

2 £85,000 - £89,999 2 

1 £105,000 - £109,999 -

- £110,000 - £114,999 1 

13 Total 16 

P
age 139



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  62                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

15.5 – Termination Benefits 

 

The Council terminated the contracts of 3 employees in 2018/19 (2 in 2017/18) incurring liabilities of £28,516 (£7,077 in 2017/18). The table below identifies the number 

of exit packages in bands of £20,000. 

 

 
 

16.0 – Fees Payable 

 

16.1 – External Audit Fees Payable 

 

External audit costs incurred by the Council are detailed in the following table.  

 

 
*Previously invoiced as part of the main audit fee during the financial year of the audit. The claims audit is engaged separately in 2018/19 and will be paid in year of work 

undertaken at £17k. 

 

2017/18 Exit Package Cost Band 2018/19

Number of 

Compulsory 

Redundancies

Number of 

other 

Departures 

Agreed

Total Number 

of Exit Packages

Number of 

Compulsory 

Redundancies

Number of 

other 

Departures 

Agreed

Total Number 

of Exit Packages

- 2 2 £0 - £20,000 1 2 3 

- - - £20,001 - £40,000 - - -

- 2 2 Total Number of Packages 1 2 3 

- 7,077 7,077 Total Cost (£) 13,940 14,576 28,516 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

53 Fees payable in relation to External Audit Services carried out by 

the appointed auditor

41                    

23 Fees payable in relation to Certification of Grant Claims and returns* -

4 Fees payable in relation to other Audit Services 8                      

80 Total 49

P
age 140



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  63                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

7.0 – Pension Scheme 

 

17.1 – Pension Scheme Disclosure 

 

The Council offers membership to a Pension Scheme with defined benefits as part of their employment terms and conditions to all employees.  The benefits of the scheme 

are not payable until the employees retire, but the Council has a commitment to make payments which need to be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future 

entitlement. 

 

The Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Essex County Council.  This is a funded scheme which means both the Council and 

employee pay contributions into the fund, the contributions are calculated at a level intended to balance pension liabilities with investment assets over the long term. 

 

The contributions are based on rates determined by the fund’s professionally qualified actuaries and these are reviewed every 3 years.  Under regulation the actuarial 

valuation of the fund is undertaken every three years the reported financial year is the third year as a result of the actuarial valuations and the next valuation of the fund 

will be carried out as at 31 March 2019 and will set contributions for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2023. 

 

The Pension Scheme has been calculated based on the revised IAS19 standard.   

 

The Council currently has 997 members enrolled in the pension scheme, of which an assumption has been made by the Actuary that members will exchange half of their 

commutable pension for cash at retirement and that the proportion of active members who opted to pay 50% of contributions for 50% of benefits at the last valuation 

date remains the same. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 141



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  64                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.2 – Transactions Relating to the Pension Scheme 

 

The Council is required to recognise the cost of retirement benefits in the Net Cost of Services when they are earned by employees rather than when the benefits are 

actually paid.  The real cost of retirement benefits are reversed out of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement via the movement in reserves, the actual 

charge the Council is required to make against the Council Tax is based on the cash payable in the year.  The following transactions reflect these accounting entries. 

 

With effect from the 1 April 2011 public service pensions have been up-rated in line with Consumer Price Index (CPI) rather than Retail Price Index (RPI). 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

3,265 Current service cost 3,236

1,049 Net interest on the Defined Liability/Asset 866

24 Administration Cost 30

4,338 Net Charge to Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 4,132

1,623 Reversal of Net Charge made for retirement benefits in accordance with IAS19 2,557

Actual amount charged against Council Tax for Pensions in the year:

1,425 Employer contributions to the Pension Fund 1,468 

1,177 Deficit contribution payments -

14 Contributions to the Pension Fund in respect of early retirement -

102 Added years discretionary payments 104 

2,718 Payments to the Pension Fund During the Year 1,572 

4,341 Total 4,129 

P
age 142



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  65                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.3 – Pension Liabilities - Summary 

 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments the Council has in the long term to pay future retirement benefits.  The deficit on the scheme will be decreased by 

increased contributions over the remaining working life of the employees, as assessed by the scheme actuary. 

 

A reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the present value of the scheme liabilities for retirement benefits attributable to the Council as at 31 March 2019 

are as follows: 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

109,030 Present Value of Scheme Obligation as at 1 April 108,975 

3,248 Current cost of service 3184

2,913 Interest cost 2747

(3,935) Change in financial assumptions 3,938 

- Change in demographic assumptions (6,183)

(2,768) Benefits/transfers paid (2,977)

17 Past service cost and curtailments 52 

572 Contributions by scheme participants 599 

(102) Unfunded pension payments (104)

(55) 1,256 

108,975 Present Value of Scheme Obligation as at 31 March 110,231 

P
age 143



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  66                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.4 – Pension Liabilities - Sensitivity Analysis 

 

Additional information in respect of how potential fluctuations would affect the scheme obligation value is provided below: 

 

 
 

17.5 – Pension Assets 

 

A reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the present value of the scheme assets for retirement benefits attributable to the Council as at 31 March 2019 are 

as follows: 

 

 
  

Adjustments made to:- +1 year/ No - 1 year/

+0.1% change -0.1%

change change

£'000 £'000 £'000

Mortality age rating (increase/decrease by 1 year) 114,330 110,132 106,092

Rate of increase in salaries (increase/decrease by 0.1%) 110,307 110,132 109,959

Rate of increase in pensions (increase/decrease by 0.1%) 111,888 110,132 108,408

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase/decrease by 0.1%) 108,236 110,132 112,064

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

68,827 Fair Value of Scheme Assets as at 1 April 74,230 

1,864 Interest on assets 1,881 

3,149 Return on assets less interest 4,172 

(27) Administration expenses (30)

2,715 Contributions by employer including unfunded 1,575 

572 Contributions by scheme participants 599 

(2,870) Estimated benefits paid plus unfunded net of transfers in (3,081)

5,403 5,116 

74,230 Fair Value of Scheme Assets as at 31 March 79,346 

P
age 144



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  67                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.6 – Pension Scheme History 

 

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the Council has in the long term to pay employment retirement benefits.  The total liability for 2018/19 of 

£34.745million (£34.745million in 2017/18) has a substantial impact on the net worth of the Council as recorded in the balance sheet.  However, statutory arrangements 

are in place for funding the deficit to maintain a healthy financial position of the Council, by the following; 

 

 Increased contributions over the remaining working life of employees (before payments fall due), as assessed by the actuary. 

 Finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the pensions are actually paid. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Estimated Liabilities in the scheme (89,708) (89,453) (109,030) (108,975) (110,132)

Estimated Assets in the scheme 58,174 58,552 68,827 74,230 79,346 

Net (deficiency) in the fund (31,535) (30,901) (40,203) (34,745) (34,745)P
age 145



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  68                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.7 – Basis for Estimating the Pension Scheme Assets and Liabilities 

 

These assumptions are set with reference to market conditions as at 31 March 2019. 

The discount rate is the annualised yield at the 17 year point on the Merrill Lynch AA-rated corporate bond yield curve which has been chosen to meet the requirements 

of IAS 19 and with consideration of the Employer’s liabilities. This is consistent with the approach used at the last accounting date. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

Mortality Assumptions:

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners (years)

24.4 Men 22.9

27 Women 25.4

Financial Assumptions:

3.35% Rate of Inflation - RPI 3.40%

2.35% Rate of Inflation - CPI 2.40%

3.85% Rate of Increase in Salaries (reflects long-term salary growth assumptions) 3.90%

2.35% Rate of Increase in Pensions 2.40%

2.55% Rate of Discounting Scheme Liabilities 2.40%

50% Contribution rate under new LGPS to receive 50% of benefits at retirement 50%

P
age 146



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  69                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.8 – Analysis of Assets Held 

 

The assets held by the fund attributable to Uttlesford District Council as at 31 March 2019 are detailed below; 

 

 
 

17.9 – History of Actuarial Gains and Losses 

 

 
*This is the total pension cost as recognised in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

 

  

£'000 % £'000 %

48,446 65% Equity Investments 49,401 62%

4,938 7% Gilts 4,211 5%

2,758 4% Other Bonds 4,637 6%

7,041 9% Property 7,055 9%

2,553 3% Cash 2,090 3%

5,483 7% Alternative Assets 7,736 10%

3,011 4% Other Managed Funds 4,216 5%

74,230 100% Total 79,346 100%

31 March 201931 March 2018

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Return on plan assets in excess of interest 4,823 (465) 9,303 3,149 4,172 

Asset Gain/(Loss) 219 - 238 - -

Liability Gain/(Loss) (44) 5 (288) - -

Change in Demographic Assumptions - - 2,131 - 6,183 

Change in Assumptions (9,729) 3,038 (18,822) 3,935 (3,839)

Net Actuarial Gain/(Loss)* (4,731) 2,578 (7,438) 7,084 6,516 

P
age 147



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  70                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

17.10 – Pension Reserve 

 

The Pension Reserve has been set up as part of the requirements to comply with IAS19 – Employee Benefits.  This reserve represents the actuarially calculated deficit 

between the value of all pension liabilities and the assets held by the Pension Fund as at 31 March 2019.  The deficit also includes the difference between the cost of 

statutory required payments to the Pension Fund and the IAS19 accounting cost charged to the CIES. See Note 3.5 for the reserve balance as at 31 March 2019. 

 

Further information can be found in Essex County Council’s Pension Fund’s Annual Report which is available upon request from Essex County Council, County Hall, 

Chelmsford, Essex, CM1 1JZ. 

 

  

P
age 148



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  71                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

18.0 – Financial Instruments 

 

Financial Instruments Classifications  

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.  Non-exchange 

transactions, such as those relating to taxes and government grants, do not give rise to financial instruments. 

Financial Liabilities 

A financial liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the Council and can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial 

assets or an obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that are potentially unfavourable to the Council. 

 

The Council’s non-derivative financial liabilities held during the year are measured at amortised cost and comprised:  

 long-term loans from the Public Works Loan Board and commercial lenders 

 short-term loans from other local authorities 

 Private finance initiative contracts detailed in note 11.2 

 Trade payables for goods and services received 

 

Financial Assets 

A financial asset is a right to future economic benefits controlled by the Council that is represented by cash, equity instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or 

other financial assets or a right to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially favourable to the Council.  The financial assets held by the 

Council during the year are held under the following classifications.  

Amortised Cost (financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments and are not quoted in an active market) comprising: 

 cash in hand 

 bank current and deposit accounts with Barclays Bank Plc 

 loans to other local authorities 

 trade receivables for goods and services delivered 

 

Fair Value through profit and loss comprising: 

 Money Market Funds 

 

P
age 149



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  72                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Financial assets held at amortised cost are shown net of a loss allowance reflecting the statistical likelihood that the borrower or debtor will be unable to meet their 

contractual commitments to the Council. 

 

18.1 - Financial Instruments – Balances 

 
*  The investment of £1m held in a MMF has been restated for 2017/18 into the correct category 

**  The long term contractual debtors figure for 2017/18 has been restated due to a typing error 

***  Outstanding short-term investments as at 31 March 2019 as detailed in Note 18.1.1 

****  Reconciliation shown in table 9.5, which details the Cash and Cash Equivalents movements from the Balance Sheet values to the Financial Instrument book values. 

*****  Outstanding short-term borrowing at 31 March 2019 as detailed in Note 18.1.2 

 

As at 31 March 

2018 Book Value

Restated as at 

31 March 2018

As at 31 March 

2019 Book Value

As at 31 March 

2018 Book Value

Restated as at 

31 March 2018

As at 31 March 

2019 Book Value

£’000 £'000 £’000 £’000 £'000 £’000

Financial Assets available for Sale

- - - Short term investments - Money Market Funds * - 1,000 -

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

1,249 1,280 1,325 Debtors (Contractual) ** 578 578 480 

- - - Short term investments *** 11,500 9,500 11,000 

47,473 47,473 49,601 Long term investments - - -

- - - Cash and Cash Equivalents **** 1,753 2,753 2,525 

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

- - - Short term Investments - Money Market Fund*** - - 1,000 

48,722 48,753 50,926 Total 13,831 13,831 15,005 

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost:

- - - Creditors (Contractual) (813) (813) (2,430)

- - - Short term Borrowing ***** (23,500) (23,500) (19,000)

(96,846) (96,407) (96,907) Long term loans borrowed - - -

(4,740) (4,740) (4,619) Deferred Liabilities - PFI - - -

(101,586) (101,147) (101,526) Total (24,313) (24,313) (21,430)

(52,864) (52,394) (50,600) Net Total (10,482) (10,482) (6,425)

Long Term Financial Instruments Short Term Financial Instruments

P
age 150



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  73                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

18.1.1 – Outstanding short-term investments 

 

 
 

18.1.2 – Outstanding short-term borrowing 

 

 
  

Date Institution Amount Interest Rate %

25-Apr-14 CCLA 500,000              0.66

26-Mar-15 CCLA 500,000              0.66

05-Nov-18 London Borough of Eastleigh 3,500,000          0.85

11-Dec-18 Salford City Council 2,000,000          0.92

11-Dec-18 Slough Borough Council 1,500,000          0.92

05-Dec-18 Redcar & Cleaveland Borough Council 2,000,000          1.00

29-Mar-19 DMO 2,000,000          0.52

Total 12,000,000        

Date Institution Amount Interest Rate %

22-Oct-18 London Borough of Ealing 2,000,000 0.95

22-Oct-18 Ryedale District Council 1,000,000 0.95

01-Nov-18 London Borough of Newham 1,000,000 0.85

21-Jan-19 North West Leicestershire DC 1,500,000 0.92

19-Feb-19 Vale of Glamorgan 1,500,000 0.98

19-Feb-19 Broxbourne Borough Council 1,000,000 0.92

15-Feb-19 Vale of Glamorgan 1,500,000 0.92

22-Feb-19 Fareham Borough Council 1,000,000 0.92

19-Mar-19 Basildon Borough Council 1,000,000 1.00

19-Mar-19 Devon County Council 2,500,000 0.95

19-Mar-19 Middlesborough Teeside Pension Fund 3,500,000 0.88

28-Mar-19 Staffordshire County Council 1,500,000 0.90

Total 19,000,000        

P
age 151



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  74                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

18.2 - Long-term Borrowing 

 

The long term borrowing consists of three elements; borrowing for the Housing Revenue Account, for Aspire (CRP) LTD for the investment in Chesterford Research Park 

and Local Authority long-term borrowing for an 18 month period at the value of £2.5m. 

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) abolished the HRA subsidy system in March 2012, under the Localism Act, with Local Authorities taking 

control of the housing expenditure and income. This will enable the effective long term planning of housing stock at a local level. 

The Council was required to borrow £88.407million on 28 March 2012 to buy itself out of the subsidy regime; this financial year was the second year of principal 

repayment. The Housing revenue Account maintains a 30 years rolling business plan as part of the Council’s financial planning. This gives details of income, expenditure, 

financing and repayments.   

The Council has set up a subsidiary company (Aspire (CRP) Ltd) to undertake an investment in Chesterford Research Park; to enable the investment the Council has 

committed to a forward starting loan totalling £37million. In 2017-18 the first element of the loan was drawn down totalling £10million. The borrowing will be drawn 

down to reduce internal cash balances loaned to Aspire (CRP) Ltd over a three year period with the second draw down in 2020-21 of £12million and the final element of 

£15million in 2021-22. 

 

The maturity profile of the debt is detailed in Note 18.7 Financial Instruments. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 152



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  75                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

18.3 - Financial Instruments – Gains and Losses 

 

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in relation to financial instruments consist of the following items: 
 

 
For more information on the restated figures please refer to note 19.7 

  

2017/18 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19 2018/19

Restated

 Financial Assets 

at Amortised 

Cost

 Financial Assets at 

Fair Value through 

Profit & Loss

Financial 

Liabilities at 

Amortised Cost Total

£’000 £'000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

3,267 3,269 Interest Expenses - - 3,412 3,412

- - Impairment Losses 397 - - 397

3,267 3,269 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 397 - 3,412 3,810

(1,771) (1,759) Interest and Investment Income (2,002) (7) - (2,009)

- - Impairment Loss reversals (18) - - (18)

(1,771) (1,759) Interest Receivable and Similar Income (2,020) (7) - (2,027)

1,496 1,510 Net (Gains)/Loss for the Year (1,622) (7) 3,412 (1,783)

P
age 153



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  76                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

18.4 - Financial Instruments – Fair Values 

 

Financial instruments, except those classified as amortised cost, are carried on the balance sheet at fair value.  For most assets including money market funds, the fair 

value is taken from the market price. 

 

Financial instruments classified as amortised cost are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost.   

Their fair values have been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at 31 March 2019, using the following methods and 

assumptions: 

 Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual cash flows over the whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate 

for local authority loans. 

 The fair values of other long term loans and investments have been discounted at the market rates for similar instruments with similar remaining terms to 

maturity on 31 March. 

 The fair values of the PFI scheme liabilities have been calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows (excluding service charge elements) at the appropriate 

AA corporate bond yield. 

 No early repayment or impairment is recognised for any financial instrument. 

 The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount given the low and stable 

interest rate environment. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 154



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  77                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Fair values are shown in the table below, split by their level in the fair value hierarchy: 

 Level  1– fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities e.g. bond prices 

 Level 2 – fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar 

instruments 

 Level 3 – fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness 

 
*The fair value of short-term financial assets and liabilities held at amortised cost, including trade payables, is assumed to be approximate to the carrying amount. 

Balance Sheet Fair Value Balance Sheet Fair Value Fair Balance Sheet Fair Value

31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 Value 31 March 2019 31 March 2019

Restated Restated

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 Level £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities held at amortised cost:

(86,407) (97,723) (86,407) (97,723) Long-term loans from PWLB 2 (84,407) (96,957)

(10,438) (10,679) (10,000) (10,679) Other long-term loans 2 (10,000) (11,015)

(4,740) (7,494) (4,740) (7,494) PFI scheme liabilities 2 (4,619) (7,447)

(101,585) (115,896) (101,147) (115,896) Total (99,026) (115,419)

Liabilities for which fair value is not disclosed*

(813) - (813) - Creditors (Contractual) (2,430) -

(23,500) - (23,500) - Short-term borrowing (19,000) -

(24,313) - (24,313) - Total (21,430) -

Financial Assets held at fair value:

- - 1,000 - Money Market Funds 1 1,000 1,000 

- - 1,000 - Total 1,000 1,000 

Financial assets held at amortised cost:

47,473 49,790 47,473 49,790 Long-term investment 2 49,601 53,325 

47,473 49,790 47,473 49,790 Total 49,601 53,325 

Assets for which fair value is not disclosed*

11,500 - 9,500 - Short-term investments 11,000 -

1,754 - 2,753 - Cash and cash equivalents 2,525 -

- - 1,280 - Long term Debtors (Contractual) 1,325 -

578 - 578 - Debtors (Contractual) 480 -

13,832 - 14,111 Total 15,330 -

P
age 155



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  78                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

18.5 - Financial Instruments - Risks 
  
The Council complies with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management and Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (both revised in December 
2017). 
 
In line with the Treasury Management Code, the Council approves a Treasury Management Strategy before the commencement of each financial year. The Strategy sets 
out the parameters for the management of risks associated with Financial Instruments.  
The main risks covered are: 
 

 Credit Risk: The possibility that the counterparty to a financial asset will fail to meet its contractual obligations, causing a loss to the Council. 

 Liquidity Risk: The possibility that the Council might not have the cash available to make contracted payments on time. 

 Market Risk: The possibility that an unplanned financial loss will materialise because of changes in market variables such as interest rates or equity prices. 
 
Credit Risk: Investments 
 
The Council manages credit risk by ensuring that investments are only placed with organisations of high credit quality as set out in the Treasury Management Strategy.  
These include commercial entities with a minimum long-term credit rating of BBB+, the UK government, other local authorities, and organisations without credit ratings 
upon which the Council has received independent investment advice.  Recognising that credit ratings are imperfect predictors of default, the Council has regard to other 
measures when selecting commercial entities for investment.   
 
A limit of £1million was placed on the money that can be invested with a single counterparty (other than UK government and local authorities).   
 
The amount of money that can be invested with a single counterparty or same counterparty group is bound by the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy, reviewed 
annually. 
 
Credit risk is minimised through the annual investment strategy (details of which are available on the Council’s website) which requires the Council to maintain a 

counterparty list that follows the criteria set out in the Treasury Management Practices. Credit worthiness is assessed by the use of credit ratings provided by Fitch, 

Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s to assess an institutions long and short term financial strength along with its individual and support ratings. Other information provided 

by brokers, advisers and financial and economic reports are also collated and assessed to monitor each individual institution against the Council’s criteria. 

Any counterparty whose ratings fall to the extent that they no longer meet the credit criteria are immediately removed from the lending list. Only highly rated 

counterparties are included on the lending list. 

The Council holds all of its short term investments with central government and local authorities so no loss allowances have been calculated. 
 

P
age 156



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  79                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
 
Credit Risk: Trade Receivables and Contract Assets 
 
Payments for services are either required in advance or due at the time of the service is provided. Please see table 18.4, Debtors (Contractual), for the total amount due 
to the Council from its customers as at 31 March 2019.   
 
Note: the debtor (contractual) excludes payments in advance as these are technically not debts. Government grants due are also excluded as they will be received in full. 

In line with “The Code” statutory debt (Council Tax, NNDR, and Housing Benefit Overpayment arrears) are excluded from the analysis. The Council’s provision for bad debt 

totalling £0.255million (Housing Rent and Sundry Debtors) as at 31 March 2018 (£0.297million as at 31 March 2017) is deemed sufficient. In order to recover all debts 

effectively the Council will concentrate on debt management and ensure efficient use of debt management information.  

The following analysis summarises the Councils trade receivables (excluding HRA debt which is not reported by age), by due date.   
 

 
 
Loss allowances on trade receivables have been calculated by reference to the Council’s historic experience of default.   

 

 

 

 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

Trade Trade

Receivables 

£'000

Receivables 

£'000

Neither past due nor impaired 380 215

Past due< 3 months 77 144

Past due 3-6 months 7 8

Past due 6-12 months 4 2

Past due 12+ months 11 28

Total receivables 479 397

P
age 157



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  80                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Receivables are collectively assessed for credit risk in the following groupings: 

 

Receivables are written off to the Surplus or deficit on the provision of services when they are deemed no longer collectable.  Steps are taken to collect all outstanding 

amounts until this point. 

Liquidity Risk: 

The Council has ready access to borrowing at favourable rates from the Public Works Loans Board and other local authorities, and at higher rates from banks and building 

societies.  There is no perceived risk that the Council will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments.  It is however exposed to the risk that it will need to 

refinance a significant proportion of its borrowing at a time of unfavourably high interest rates.  The risk is managed by maintaining a spread of fixed rate loans. 

  

Gross Loss Gross Loss

Receivable Allowance Receivable Allowance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

331 227 HRA Tenants 20% - 95% 328 209

157 28 Private Sector 5% - 80% 156 35

322 - Public Sector 0% 241 -

810 255 Total 725 244

Range of 

Allowances set 

aside

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

P
age 158



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  81                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

The maturity analysis of financial instruments is as follows: 
 

 
 
Interest Rate Risk  
 
The Council is exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interest rate movements on its borrowings and investments.  Movements in interest rates have a complex impact 
on the authority. For instance, a rise in interest rates would have the following effects:- 
 

 borrowings at variable rates – the interest expense will rise 

 borrowings at fixed rates – the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall 

 investments at variable rates – the interest income will rise 

 investments at fixed rates – the fair value of the assets will fall 

 
The Treasury Management Strategy aims to mitigate these risks by setting upper limits on its net exposures to fixed and variable interest rates.  At 31 March 2019, 
£99million (£101.5million as at 31 March 2018) of net principal borrowed i.e debt net of investments, was exposed to fixed rates and £5m (£7million as at 31 March 2018) 
to variable rates. 
Investments measured at amortised cost and loans borrowed are not carried at fair value, so changes in their fair value will have no impact on the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure.  However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or Deficit on the 

Provision of Services.   

Time to Maturity

Liabilities Assets Net Liabilities Assets Net

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

34,405 (10,500) 23,905 Under 1 year 21,000 (12,000) 9,000

18,310 - 18,310 1 to 5 years 13,030 - 13,030

22,815 - 22,815 6 to 10 years 18,405 - 18,405

26,397 - 26,397 11 to 15 years 23,925 - 23,925

25,475 - 25,475 16 to 20 years 27,524 - 27,524

5,841 - 5,841 21 to 25 years 20,621 - 20,621

6,732 - 6,732 26 to 30 years 6,009 - 6,009

6,933 - 6,933 31 to 35 years 6,926 - 6,926

- - - 36 to 40 years 5,468 - 5,468

- (47,473) (47,473) Over 40 years - (49,991) (49,991)

146,908 (57,973) 88,935 142,908 (61,991) 80,917

31 March 201931 March 2018

P
age 159



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  82                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

If all interest rates had been 1% higher (with all other variables held constant) the financial effect would be: 

 

 
 
The approximate impact of a 1% fall in interest rates would be as above but with movements being reversed. 

 
18.6 – Financial Instruments – Collateral 
 
The council holds collateral in relation to the following loans, see Note 3.3 for details  
 

 
 
18.7 – Transition to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 

The Council adopted the IFRS9 Financial Instruments accounting standard with effect from 1 April 2018.  The main changes include the reclassification and re-
measurement of financial assets and the earlier recognition of the impairment of financial assets. 
 
The Council has made use of the transitional provisions in IFRS9 to not restate the prior year’s financial statements, and the effect of the re-measurement is instead shown 
as an additional line in the Movement in Reserves Statement.   
 
  

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

Increase in interest payable on variable rate borrowings 216 186

Increase in interest receivable on variable rate investments (97) (117)

Decrease in fair value of investments held at FVPL 1 2

Impact on Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services 121 71

Debt Outstanding Debt Outstanding

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

1,205 Rents to mortgages 1,250 

1,205 Total 1,250 

P
age 160



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  83                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

The changes made on transition to the balance sheet are summarised below: 

 

IAS 39 Remeasurement Impairment IFRS 9

31 March 2018 1 April 2018
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Investments

L&R/Amortised Cost 56,973 - (353) 56,620

Available for Sale 1,000 (1,000) - -

FVPL - 1,000 - 1,000

Total investments 57,973 - (353) 57,620

Debtors

L&R/Amortised Cost 1,858 - - 1,858

Total Debtors 1,827 - - 1,858

Cash & Cash Equivalents

L&R/Amortised Cost 2,753 - - 2,753

Total Cash & Cash Equivalent 2,753 - - 2,753
Total Financial Assets 62,553 - (353) 62,231

Borrowing

Amortised cost (119,907) - - (119,907)

Creditors

Amortised cost (813) - - (813)

Other Long term liabilities

Amortised cost (4,740) - - (4,740)

Total Financial Liabilities (125,460) - - (125,460)

Net Financial Assets (62,907) - (353) (63,229)

Usable reserves

General Fund 14,963 - - 14,963

HRA 5,524 - - 5,524

Other useable reserves 4,591 - - 4,591

Total Usable reserves 25,078 - - 25,078

Unusable reserves

Revaluation Reserve 116,470 - - 116,470

Capital Adjustment Account 154,342 - 353 154,695

Other unuseable reserves (35,261) - - (35,261)

Total Unsuable Reserves 235,551 - 353 235,904

Total Reserves 260,629 - 353 260,982

P
age 161



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  84                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

19.0 – Supplementary Notes 

 

19.1 – Events after the Reporting Period 

 

The Draft Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of Finance and Corporate Services on 29 May 2019. Events taking place after this date are not 

reflected in the financial statement or notes. Where events taking place before this date, provided information about conditions that existed as at 31 March 2019, the 

figures in the financial statements and notes have been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information. 

 

At the date of publication there were no events after the reporting period. 

 

19.2 – Contingent Liabilities 

 

              The Council has one potential legal claim the details of which are commercially sensitive. At the Balance Sheet date it is not possible to determine whether the Council has 

a possible obligation and the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.  

 

MMI is an insurance company established by a group of Local Authorities and incorporated in 1903. The Company suffered substantial losses between 1990 and 

1992.These losses reduced MMI’s net assets to a level below the minimum regulatory solvency requirement. In September 1992 MMI ceased to write new or to renew 

general insurance business and a contingent Scheme of Arrangement became effective in 1994. 

The Council is a scheme Creditor, under the scheme MMI will continue to pay agreed claims arising from incidents that occurred prior to September 1992, as long as their 

funds remain sufficient to meet obligations. If MMI funds become insufficient to meet the cost of agreed claims, it is possible that MMI will seek to recover monies from 

the Scheme Creditors. 

As at 31 March 2019 the maximum possible liability for the Council under the Scheme is £60,477. It is unlikely the Council will be required to honour this amount, 

therefore it has not been recognised in the accounts. This liability could increase in the event new claims arise relating to incidents that occurred prior to September 1992. 

Details of the scheme can be found at www.mminsurance.co.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 162

http://www.mminsurance.co.uk/


Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  85                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

19.3 – Grant Income – Revenue 

 

The Council receives a number of grants and donations which are credited to the service lines of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. In 2018/19 the 

Council received £15.940million in grants and donations (2017/18 £16.849million) made up of £5.936million relating to Housing Benefits Allowance Subsidy, £7.880million 

Housing Benefits Rent Rebates Subsidy and a remaining balance of other items totalling £2.124milllion (all of which were individually below £0.500million in value). 

It should be noted that the above analysis excludes government funding which is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. 

19.4 – Un-adopted Accounting Policies 

There are a number of changes to the following years accounting code (2019/20) these are: 

 IFRS 16 Leases will require local authorities that are lessees to recognise most leases on their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease 

liabilities (there is recognition for low-value and short-term leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred implementation for local government to 1 April 2020.  

 Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment property 

 IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 

 IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

 Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 

These have no impact to the 2018/19 accounts and it is estimated they will not have an impact on the 2019/20 accounts. 

19.5 – Critical Judgements in Accounting Policies 

In applying the accounting policies the authority has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events. The 

critical judgements made in the accounts are: 

• There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government. However, the authority has determined that this uncertainty is not yet 
sufficient to provide an indication that the assets of the authority might be impaired as a result of a need to close the facilities and reduce levels of provision. 

 

 

 

P
age 163



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  86                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

19.6 – Assumptions made about the Future and Other Sources of Estimation  

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are 

made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results 

could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Property, Plant and Equipment Depreciation and amortisation are provided for Property, Plant and 

Equipment and Intangible Assets respectively. This enables the 

assets to be written down over their estimated useful lives and 

show an appropriate cost of the asset in the Comprehensive 

Income and Expenditure Statement. Management judgment based 

on independent external advice is used to determine the useful 

economic lives of the Council’s Property. 

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount 

of the assets fall. 

The net book value of the Authority’s property, plant and equipment assets is £372m 

as at 31 March; of this, £101m relates to land which is not subject to depreciation and 

is considered to have an infinite life. Vehicle, plant and equipment assets account 

for £2.8m with asset lives between 5 and 15 years. If the asset lives are reduced by 1 

year across vehicle, plant and equipment it is estimated that depreciation would 

increase by £300k. 

For buildings, the asset life is up to 60 years unless the asset has major components 

which are depreciated separately. It is estimated that if the asset life for buildings 

reduced by 1 year, depreciation would increase by £25k.

Property, Plant and Equipment Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed for both economic 

and price impairment on an annual basis. As at 1 April each year the 

Council’s valuers carry out a valuation review of the Council’s 

assets. In addition a year-end review is also undertaken. The 

recoverable amount is then estimated having regard to the 

application of the concept of materiality.

If an asset is impaired the carrying amount of the asset is reduced. Land and Buildings 

are subject to market value movements all other assets are held at depreciated 

historic cost.The HRA housing stock (Dwellings) are valued at Existing Use Value for 

Social Housing. If the assets held at revalued amounts a valuation impairment of 1% 

would equate to a reduction in the Council's net worth of £3.7m.

P
age 164



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  87                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ from assumptions

Pensions Liability Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a 

number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate used, 

the rate at which salaries are projected to increase in the long 

term, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected 

returns on pension fund assets. These judgements are completed 

by the Essex County Council Fund Actuaries.

The effect on net pensions of changes in individual assumptions can be measured. 

For instance: 

 - A decrease in the discount rate assumption would result in an increase in pension 

liability. 

 - An increase in member life expectancy would result in an increase in pension 

liability. 

 - An increase in salaries would result in an increase in pension liability. 

 - An increase in the pension rate would result in an increase in pension liability. 

Please reference table 17.4 for the affect on the scheme obligations.

Impairement for doubtful debts At 31 March 2019, the Council had a balance of £5.4m for debtors. A 

review of balances suggested that an impairment of doubtful debts 

of £1.5m was appropriate 

If collection rates were to deteriorate and sundry debt increased with the same debt 

profile, an additional contribution would be required to be set aside as an allowance. 

This is deemed non material for the Council's accounts.

Business Rates Appeals At 31 March 2019, the Council recognised a provision of £2.8m 

representing its share of expected liabilities in respect of business 

rates appeals lodged at the balance sheet date.

The value of appeals recognised in the provision are based on a calculation provided 

by our external valuers Analyse Local. This determines the likely effect of appeals in 

terms of effect on rateable value (RV), the timing of the losses expected and the 

overall percentage reduction in RV. Whilst the figure provided in the accounts is 

expected to be materially accurate a small variance in actual appeal costs incurred 

may arise. 

P
age 165



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  88                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

19.7 – Prior Period Adjustment 

A review of the Council’s accounting treatments identified the following issues requiring restatement of prior periods: 

i) Due to changes in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement presentation, support service charges have been adjusted out of the portfolio 

segments and shown as a corporate cost, the corresponding amount was shown in a Housing Revenue Accounts overheads segment this has been actioned in 

the 2017/18 Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and related notes. 

 

ii) In 2017/18 the Council took advice from its external Financial Advisors, Arlingclose, on the accounting treatment of the forward starting loans. Using the 

guidance the Council adopted the policy to follow the accounting for forward contracts on fixed rate debt instruments. On that basis cash flow hedge 

accounting was applied to remove the Profit and Loss volatility and set up a cash flow hedge reserve.  

 

In 2018/19 the guidance for the accounting treatment of the forward starting loans was reviewed and it was established that the scenario in question, namely 

an agreement with a finance provider (Phoenix) to draw down a loan at a specified date in the future, at a fixed rate of interest, is specifically scoped out of 

IFRS 9. Consequently they should be re-classified as loan commitments and not treated as a derivative. This simpler form of accounting also removed the need 

for complex cash flow hedging transactions to be reflected. 

 

This change in classification meant that the previous accounting policy adopted was no longer appropriate and the previous accounting entries were reversed 

and the 2017/18 accounts have been restated. 

 

The core restatements are summarised below. 

  

P
age 166



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  89                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

The effect on the Movement in Reserves Statement: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Usable 

Reserves

Cashflow Hedge 

Accounting Adjustment to 

Usable

Restated Usable 

Reserves

Unusable 

Reserves

Cashflow Hedge 

Accounting Adjustment to 

Unusable

Restated 

Unusable 

Reserves

Total Authority 

Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 31 March 2017 (26,976) (26,976) 209,551.00-      209,551.00-      (260,628)

(Surplus) or Deficit on provision 

of services (accounting basis)
(4,801) 14 (4,787) -                     -                                              -                     (4,787)

Other Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure
-                         -                                              -                             (19,301) (1,227) (20,528) (20,528)

Total Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure
(4,801) 14 (4,787) (19,301) (1,227) (20,528) (25,315)

Adjustments between accounting 

basis & funding basis under 

regulations

6,801 -                                              6,801 (6,801) -                                              (6,801) -                                     

Net (Increase )/ Decrease before 

Transfers to Earmarked Reserves
2,001 14 2,015 (26,102) (1,227) (27,329) (25,314)

Transfers to / (from) Reserves (101) -                                              (101) 101 -                                              101 -                                     

(Increase) / Decrease in Year 1,900 14 1,914 (26,001) (1,227) (27,228) (25,316)

Balance at 31 March 2018 (25,076) 14 (25,063) (235,552) (1,227) (236,779) (261,843)

P
age 167



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  90                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

The effect on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

 

 

Original

Net Expenditure of

Continuing Operations

Support Charges

Adjustment

Cashflow Hedge 

Accounting 

Adjustment

Restated

Net Expenditure of

Continuing Operations

2017/18 2017/18 2017/18 2017/18

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Communities & Partnerships 2,217 (146) -                                      2,071

Environmental Services 6,237 (1,470) -                                      4,767

Finance & Administration 3,191 3,335 -                                      6,526

Housing & Economic Development 1,621 (78) -                                      1,543

Housing Revenue Account (8,543) (1,641) -                                      (10,184)

Housing Revenue Account - Overheads -                                      1,989 -                                      1,989

Corporate Costs 1,279 (1,989) -                                      (710)

Cost of Services 6,002 -                                      -                                      6,002

Other Operating Expenditure 2,590 -                                      -                                      2,590

Financing & Investment Income & Expenditure 2,569 -                                      14 2,583

Taxation & Non Specific Grants (15,962) -                                      -                                      (15,962)

Corporate Amounts (10,803) -                                      14 (10,789)

(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services (4,801) -                                      14 (4,787)

Surplus on Revaluation of Non Current Assets (13,447) -                                      -                                      (13,447)

Acturial Gains/Losses on Pension Asset Liabilites (7,081) -                                      -                                      (7,081)

Other Movements in Usable/Unusable Reserves 1,227 -                                      (1,227) -                                      

(24,102) -                                      (1,213) (25,315)

P
age 168



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  91                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

The effect on the Balance Sheet 

 

 

31 March 2017

£'000

Cashflow Hedge 

Accounting 

Adjustment

31 March 2017

Restated

£'000

Property, Plant and Equipment 363,385 -                             363,385

Heritage Assets 935 -                             935

Intangible Assets 219 -                             219

Investment in Subsidiary 47,473 -                             47,473

Long Term Debtors 1,280 -                             1,280

Total Long Term Assets 413,292 -                             413,292

Short Term Investments 11,500 (1,000) 10,500

Inventories 48 -                             48

Short Term Debtors 4,503 -                             4,503

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,753 1,000 2,753

Total Current Assets 17,804 -                             17,804

Short term Borrowing (23,500) -                             (23,500)

Short Term Creditors (7,065) 774 (6,291)

Short Term Provisions (1,979) -                             (1,979)

Total Current Liabilities (32,543) 774 (31,769)

Long Term Borrowing (96,845) 438 (96,407)

Deferred Liabilities (4,740) -                             (4,740)

Grants Receipts in Advance (1,597) -                             (1,597)

Pension Scheme Liability (34,746) -                             (34,746)

Total Long Term Liabilities (137,928) 438 (137,490)

Total Net Assets 260,625 1,212 261,837

Represented by:-

Usable Reserves 25,074 (14) 25,059

Unusable Reserves 235,551 1,227 236,778

Total Reserves 260,625 1,212 261,837

P
age 169



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  92                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

The effect on the cashflow statement is: 

 

The prior period adjustment has been restated in all relevant notes to the core statements. 

 

 

  

2017/18

Cashflow Hedge 

Accounting 

Adjustment 2017/18

2017/18 RESTATED

£'000 £'000 £'000

Net Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services 4,801 14 4,787 

Adjustments to net Surplus/Deficit) on the Provision of Services - 

non cash movements
5,499 

(14)
5,513 

Adjustment for items included in the Net Surplus/Deficit) on the 

Provision of Services that are investing and financing activities
(2,993)

-
(2,993)

Net cash flows from operating activities 7,307 - 7,307 

Net cash flows from investing activities (38,689) (1,000) (37,689)

Net cash flows from financing activities 32,502 - 32,502 

Net (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,120 (1,000) 2,120 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 633 - 633 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 1,753 (1,000) 2,753 

P
age 170



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  93                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

SECTION G – SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) 

 

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

Income

(14,223) Dwelling Rents (14,124)

(197) Non-Dwelling Rents (212)

(879) Charges for services and facilities (919)

(7) Contributions towards expenditure (24)

(15,306) Total Income (15,279)

Expenditure

2,661 Repairs and maintenance 2,696 

1,794 Supervision and management 1,977 

74 Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 64 

1,989 Overheads 1,946 

3,356 - Dwellings 4,138 

183 - Other Non-current Assets 159 

(2,894) Impairment of Non-current Assets (1,051)

2,000 Minimum Revenue Position (HRA Loan) -

(48) Movement in Bad Debt Provision -

32 Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFFCUS) 32 

9,147 Total Expenditure 9,961 

(6,159) Net Cost of HRA Services as included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (5,318)

348 HRA Services Share of Corporate and Democratic Core -

(17) HRA Share of other amounts included in the Whole Authority Net Cost of Services but not allocated to specific services -

(5,828) Net Expenditure/(Income) on HRA Services (5,318)

(294) Loss/(Gain) on Sale of HRA Non-current Assets (114)

2,619 Interest payable and similar charges 2,638 

(34) Interest and Investment Income (43)

383 IAS19 Pensions - Net Interest on Defined Assets/Liabilities 152 

(83) Capital Grant and Contributions (143)

(3,237) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year on HRA Services (2,828)

P
age 171



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  94                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

20.0 – Movement in HRA Reserves 

 
 

20.1 – HRA – Adjustments between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Statute 

 

 
  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

498 Balance on the HRA working balance at the end of the previous year 524 

3,585 Surplus for the year on the HRA Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account 2,830 

(7,374) Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute (as per 20.1) (5,577)

(3,789) Net increase or (decrease) in the year on the HRA (2,747)

3,812 Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves 2,713 

26 Increase or (decrease) in the year on the HRA Working Balance (34)

524 Balance on the HRA at the end of the current year 490 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but excluded from the movement on the HRA 

Balance for the year

294 Gain/(loss) on Sale of HRA Non-current Assets and Right to Buy Pooling 114 

2,872 Impairment of Non-Current Assets 1,037 

(32)
Amounts treated as revenue expenditure in accordance with the 'Code' but which are classified as capital 

expenditure by statute
(32)

- HRA Loan Repayment 2,000 

83 Reversal of Non Specific Grants 143 

(245) Net Charges made for Retirement Benefits in accordance with IAS 19 (362)

Items not included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Account but included in the movement on the HRA 

Balance for the year

4,416 Capital Expenditure funded by the HRA 2,692 

(14) Right to Buy Administration Cost Allowance (14)

7,374 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under statute 5,578 

P
age 172



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  95                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 21.0 - Notes to the HRA 

 

21.1 – Introduction 

 

The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a record of revenue income and expenditure relating the Council’s housing stock.  

The items charged to the HRA are prescribed by statute and are funded by the rent collected. The HRA is ring fenced from the General Fund, the Council has no general 

discretion to transfer sums between the Housing Revenue and General Fund accounts. Selected housing services (e.g. homelessness) are charged to the General Fund 

account under direction from Government. 

21.2 – Gross Rental Income 

 

Gross rent income is the total rent income due after allowance is made for void properties. For the year 2018/19 an average of 2.4% of properties were vacant (1.88% 

2017/18) an increase over the year due to previous void properties being rentable. The actual average rent for all stock was £97.26 per week in 2018/19 (£98.24 in 

2017/18) leading to an actual gross rental income for dwelling rents of £14.12million for 2018/19 (£14.22million in 2017/18). 

21.3 – Housing Revenue Account Self-Financing Transactions 

 

With effect from April 2012 Housing Subsidy arrangements ceased for Uttlesford District Council and were replaced by a self-financing system giving local authorities 

greater autonomy and flexibility with its finances for the provision of council housing. At the outset of self-financing the council took on a loan of £88.407million, for which 

the 2018/19 accounts reflect related interest costs payable of £2.638million (£2.619million in 2017/18) and a principle repayment of £2million. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 173



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  96                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

21.4 – Housing Stock 

 

The dwellings held on the balance sheet can be broken down into the categories below: 

 

 

The movement between 2017/18 and 2018/19 housing stock include the following: 

 5 Sales of Flats under Right to Buy 

 6 Sale of Bungalows under Right to Buy 

 47 Dwelling Completions 
 

 

21.5 – Rent Arrears 

 

 
 

 

 

  

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

No. of Properties No. of Properties

704 Flats 712 

753 Bungalows 763 

1,315 Houses 1,333 

2,772 Total Properties 2,808 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

Arrears due from:

268 - Current Tenants 286

63 - Former Tenants 43

331 Total Rent Arrears 329

2.3% Total as a % of Gross Debt 2.3%

P
age 174



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  97                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

21.6 – Balance Sheet Value of Housing Revenue Assets 

 

 
 

The vacant possession value of dwellings within the HRA as at 31 March 2019 was £876.12million (£843.57million as at 31 March 2018). The difference of £543.19million 

between the vacant possession value and the balance sheet value of the dwellings represents the economic cost of providing council housing at less than open market 

value.  

21.7 – Major Repairs Reserve 

 

The Major Repairs Reserve receives a credit transfer from the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) under the item 8 determination; this is an accounting adjustment in 

relation to capital charges on assets held within the HRA. The reserve can be used to finance capital expenditure. 

 

 
 

  

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

320,558 Dwellings 332,926 

1,569 Garages 1,659 

1,085 Temporary Accomodation 1,080 

209 Vehicles, Plant, Equipment and Intangibles 138 

271 Other Land and Buildings 284 

7,027 Assets Under Construction 2,388 

330,720 Total HRA Asset Value 338,475 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

(164) Opening Balance as at 1 April (147)

(3,539) Transfer In (4,296)

3,556 Capital Expenditure funded from reserve 3,970 

(147) Closing Balance as at 31 March (473)

P
age 175



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  98                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

21.8 – Capital Financing 

 

 
 

 

21.9 – HRA Contribution to Pension Fund 

 

Under IAS19, the cost of retirement benefits is recognised in the net cost of service when employees earn them rather than when the benefits are eventually paid; this 

principle is applied to the HRA.  In addition the HRA has been charged with its share of the net interest on the defined benefit liability/asset and related administrative 

costs.  All of these costs together have been matched by a transfer to the pension reserve. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

8,667 Total HRA Capital Expenditure 8,125 

Financed by:

(4,416) Revenue Contributions (3,514)

(3,556) Contribution from Major Repairs Reserve (3,970)

(612) Capital Receipts (498)

(83) Capital Grants (143)

(8,667) Total Financing (8,125)

P
age 176



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  99                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 

SECTION H – SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS – COLLECTION FUND 

 

 Collection Fund Summary 

 

Uttlesford District Council is the authority responsible for the billing, collection and recovery of Council Tax and Business Rates.  The Council is required to maintain a 

separate income and expenditure account to reflect the transactions relating to the Collection Fund. The Collection Fund is an income and expenditure account which 

holds the transactions of the Council in relation to the collection from taxpayers of Council tax and Non Domestic Rates and its distribution to Central Government and its 

preceptors (Essex County Council, Essex Fire Authority and Essex Police Authority). 

 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a Business Rates Retention Scheme which enabled local authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates 

generated in their area. The new arrangements for the business rates came into effect on 1 April 2013. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 177



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  100                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account 

 

2017/18 Collection Fund 2018/19

Business Rates
Council Tax Total

Business Rates
Council Tax Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- (57,570) (57,570) Council Tax Payers - (61,850) (61,850)

(43,142) - (43,142) Business Rates Payers (44,804) 0 (44,804)

(43,142) (57,570) (100,712) Total Income (44,804) (61,850) (106,654)

3,767 40,990 44,757 Essex County Council 3,840 44,241 48,081

- 5,532 5,532 Essex Police Authority - 6,120 6,120

419 2,431 2,850 Essex Fire Authority 427 2,548 2,975

16,744 7,920 24,664 Uttlesford District Council/Parish 17,066 8,486 25,552

20,930 - 20,930 Central Government 21,333 - 21,333

41,860 56,873 98,733 Total Precept and Demand 42,666 61,395 104,061

(309) 996 687 Essex County Council (86) 71 (15)

- 134 134 Essex Police Authority - 10 10

(34) 60 26 Essex Fire Authority (10) 4 (6)

(1,372) 193 (1,179) Uttlesford District Council (384) 13 (371)

(1,715) - (1,715) Central Government (480) - (480)

(3,430) 1,383 (2,047) Total Distributions of Previous Years Surplus/(Deficit) (960) 98 (862)

330 116 446 Provision for Doubtful Debts Adjustment (121) 252 131

851 - 851 Transitional Protection Payments due to Central Government 375 - 375

137 - 137 Business Rates:- Renewable Energy to General Fund 127 - 127

139 - 139 Business Rates:- Cost of Collection Allowance to General Fund 138 - 138

4,088 - 4,088 Business Rates:- Provision created in year 1,360 - 1,360

(2,000) - (2,000) Business Rates:- Provision released into Collection Fund (2,726) - (2,726)

3,545 116 3,661 Total Other Expenditure (847) 252 (595)

41,975 58,372 100,347 Total Expenditure 40,859 61,745 102,604

2,173 (1,225) 948 (Surplus)/Deficit as at 1 April 1,006 (423) 583

(1,167) 802 (365) (Surplus)/Deficit for the year (3,945) (105) (4,050)

1,006 (423) 583 (Surplus)/Deficit as at 31 March (2,939) (528) (3,467)

P
age 178



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  101                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

22.0 – Notes to the Collection Fund 

 

22.1 – Council Tax Introduction 

 

Council Tax derives from charges raised according to the value of residential properties, which have been classified into eight valuation bands using estimated April 1991 

valuations for this purpose.  Individual charges are calculated by aggregating the requirements of Essex County Council, Essex Police Authority, Essex Fire Authority and 

the Council, and dividing this by the Council Tax base to give an average Band D Council Tax rate.   

 

The average amount for a Band D property in 2018/19 was £1,608.36 (2017/18 was £1,532.71), this is multiplied by the proportion specified for the particular band to give 

an individual amount due, to which must be added any parish precept. 

 

The average Band D Council Tax bill including Parish Precepts in 2018/19 was £1,695.49 (2017/18 was £1,614.64). 

  

22.2 – Council Tax Base  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 Council Tax Base 2018/19

34,784 Total Dwellings 35,538 

32,865 Net Chargeable Dwellings 33,693 

37,455 Band D Equivalents 38,391 

(2,011) LCTS Discounts (1,948)

35,444 Total Band D Equivalents 36,443 

35,019 Collection Rate 98.8% / 98.8% 36,006 

205 M.O.D Properties 205 

35,224 Council Tax Base 36,211 

P
age 179



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  102                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

22.3 – Council Tax Income Analysis 

 

 
 

22.4 – Council Tax Collection Fund Balance 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

66,164 Gross Council Tax Collectable 70,972 

(1,141) Less:- Exemptions (1,279)

(4,369) Less:- Discounts (4,692)

(3,084) Less:- LCTS (3,153)

- Transitional Relief 2 

57,570 Income from Council Tax Payers 61,850 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

(305) Essex County Council (377)

(42) Essex Police Authority (57)

(17) Essex Fire Authority (22)

(59) Uttlesford District Council (72)

(423) Total Surplus Apportioned (528)

P
age 180



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  103                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

22.5 – Business Rates Introduction 

 

Business Rates are derived from rates due for business premises.  The rateable value payable by businesses is set by the valuation office and is outside the control of the 

Council.  The Council acts as a billing agent for central government and its preceptors (Essex County Council, Fire Authority and the Police Authority).   

 

The National Non Domestic Rateable value in the Council’s area as at 1 April 2018 was £106.752million (1 April 2017 was £105.019million) and the multipliers, as specified 

by Central Government were 48.0p excluding small business surcharge (46.6p 2017/18) and 49.3p including small business surcharge (47.9p 2017/18).  Based on the lower 

rate this produced an approximate yield of £51.241million (£48.939million 2017/18).  The difference between the approximate yield and the actual value of rate payers’ 

income (as reported in the collection fund summary) is explained by the application of reliefs, discounts, void properties and movement on the bad debt provision. 

 

The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a Business Rates Retention Scheme which enabled local authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates 

generated in their area.  This came into effect on 1 April 2013. 

 

Under the Business Rates Retention Scheme, local authorities are able to come together on a voluntary basis to pool their business rates receipts and then agree 

collectively how they will be distributed among pool members.  The benefit of this is that the authorities within the pool are treated as one body.  By combining the 

authority figures in the calculation of the safety net/levy position, the levy rate of the combined figures should be lower than the sum of the individual authorities 

combined so it enables income that would otherwise be paid to Government as a levy to be retained within the pool.  However, the protection each Authority receives 

under the safety net arrangements in the event of a shortfall is removed, with the 7.5% safety net only applying to the overall pool.  

 

In 2018/19 Uttlesford was one of nine District Councils in Essex in a pooling agreement along with the County Council and the Fire Authority.  Based on provisional outturn 

information provided by members of the pool, Uttlesford is due to pay a levy of £1.54million but will receive £0.74million benefit share from the pool thus reducing the 

levy payable to £0.80million. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 181



Core Financial Statements   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  104                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

22.6 – Business Rates Income Analysis 

 

 
 

22.7 - Business Rates Fund Balance 

 

 

2017/18 2018/19

£'000 £'000

50,048 Gross Business Rate Collectable 51,883 

(3,172) Small Business Rate Relief (3,457)

(2,065) Mandatory Relief (2,105)

(1,034) Property Relief (947)

(635) Discretionary Relief (570)

43,142 Income from Business Rates Payers 44,804 

31 March 2018 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000

503 Central Government 1,470 

91 Essex County Council 264 

10 Essex Fire Authority 29 

402 Uttlesford District Council 1,176 

1,006 Total Deficit Apportioned 2,939 

P
age 182



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  105                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

P1. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 

The general principles adopted in compiling the Accounts summarises the Council’s financial transactions for the 2018/19 financial year and its position at the year-
end of 31st March 2019. The Authority is required to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, and this requires the 
preparation to be in accordance with proper accounting practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2018/19 and the Service Reporting Accounting Code of Practice 2018/19, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory 
guidance, issued under Section 12 of the 2003 Act.  
 
The accounting convention adopted is historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial instruments. 
 
IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ specifies the information to be included in the financial statements but not the format. In addition the standard specifies 
the information to be disclosed within the financial statements on the face of the statements or in the associated notes. One of the key requirements of the standard 
is that assets and liabilities or income and expenditure should not be offset against each other. 

 
P2. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not when cash payments are made or received. In particular: 

 Fees, charges and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the date the Council provides the relevant goods or services. 

 Salaries, wages and employment related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave 
entitlement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the financial year is recognised in the Accounts to the extent that employees are permitted to 
carry forward the leave entitlement. 

 Goods and Services are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed, and where there is a gap between the date supplies are received and their 
consumption, they are carried as stock on the balance sheet where the stock category value is more than £10,000. 

 A minimum transaction value of £1,000 has been applied in determining whether to accrue for income and expenditure in line with the first and third bullet 
points above. 

 Capital works are charged as expenditure when the asset is under construction. They are carried as Assets under Construction on the Balance Sheet before 
being completed. 

 Interest receivable on investments is accounted for on the cash flows fixed by the contract. 
 

  

Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance 
Sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be 
collected. 

P
age 183



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  106                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
Where the council is acting as an agent for another party (for example collection of NNDR and Council Tax), income and expenditure are recognised only for the 
Council’s share of the income and as well as any administration costs that the Council is entitled to recover for the agency services performed.  
 
P3. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 

 
Provisions 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an obligation that has a high probability of a settlement being required by a transfer of 
economic benefits, but where the timing of the transfer is uncertain. For instance, the Council may be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the 
agreement of a settlement or the payment of compensation. 
 
Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the 
likely settlement. When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision set up in the Balance Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end 
of each financial year; where it becomes more likely that a transfer of economic benefits will not now be required, (or a lower settlement than anticipated is made) 
the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service revenue account. 

 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by another party, (e.g. from an insurance claim) this is only recognised as 
income in the relevant service revenue account if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible obligation which will only be confirmed by the occurrence of an uncertain 
future event/s which is not wholly in the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise where the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably measured. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but disclosed in a note to the Accounts. 

 
P4. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts from the 
General Fund Balance into the Movement in Reserves Statement.  When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service 
revenue account in that year to score against the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated 
back into the General Fund Balance statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure. 
 
Certain reserves (Unusable reserves) are held to manage the accounting processes for long-term assets, financial instruments, collection fund and retirement benefits 
and do not represent usable resources for the Council. These reserves are explained in the relevant policies below. 
 
P5. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

P
age 184



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  107                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants, third party contributions and donations are recognised as income at the date that the 
Council satisfies the conditions of entitlement to the grant/contribution, and there is reasonable assurance that the monies will be received and the expenditure for 
which the grant is given has been incurred.  Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to which they relate.   
Conditions specify the future use of the asset. For example Disabled Facilities Grant is given to the Council to finance disabled adaptations within the community and if 
the grant is not spent on these items it has to be returned. 
 
Government Grants and Contributions (Revenue) 
Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the service expenditure to which they relate. Revenue Grants and contributions for which conditions 
have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. Where conditions are satisfied, the grants or contributions are credited to the Service line of the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Grants to cover general expenditure are credited to the Corporate Items section of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement after the Net Cost of 
Services. 
 
Government Grants and Contributions (Capital) 

Capital grants and contributions without conditions are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, and reversed out of the General 

Fund/Housing Revenue Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where related expenditure is to be incurred after the end of the financial year the monies 

are credited to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (usable reserve) in the Balance Sheet. Grants and Contributions in the Capital Grants Unapplied Account should 

eventually be transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

For Capital Grants and Contributions with conditions, if the conditions remain to be met, the monies are credited to Capital Grants Receipts in Advance Account 

(Creditor) and reviewed annually to determine whether the Grant or Contribution should be repaid. Where the Grant/Contribution can be applied, it is posted to the 

Capital Adjustment Account.  

 
P6. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
 
Employees and Councillors of the Council are members of The Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by Essex County Council. The Scheme provides 
defined benefits to members of the scheme (retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees/councillors work for the Council. 
 
The Local Government Pension Scheme 
The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme: 

 The liabilities of the Essex County Council Pension Scheme attributable to the Council are included in the balance sheet on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit method- i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on 
assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc. and projections of earnings for current employees. 

 Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 3.5% (based on the indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds).  

P
age 185



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  108                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 The assets of the Essex County Council Pension Fund attributable to the Council are included in the balance sheet at their fair value as follows: 
 quoted securities –  current bid price 
 unquoted securities - professional estimate 
 unitised securities -  current bid price 
 property - market value 

 
The change in the net pension liability is analysed into the following components: 

 Current Service Cost - the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned this year, allocated to the service line of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement.  

 Past Service Costs - the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions whose effect relates to years of service in earlier years charged to the 
Surplus/Deficit on provision of services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs. 

 Net Interest on the defined benefit liability – this is the net interest expense for the Council. It represents the change during the period in the net defined 
benefit liability that arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income & Expenditure line of the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. This is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the financial period 
whilst taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. 

 Re-measurements comprising:- 
 Return on Plan Assets – excluding the amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability. This is charged to the Pensions Reserve as 

Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 
 Actuarial gains and losses - changes in the net pension’s liability that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial 

valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions. This is charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure. 

 Contributions paid to the Essex County Council Pension Fund – the cash paid by the Council as employer's contributions to the pension fund; which is not 
treated as an expense in the Council’s Accounts. 

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions required the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the Pension Fund 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are 
appropriations to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to 
the Pension Fund and any amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year end. 
 
The negative balance that arises on the Pension Reserve at the end of the relevant accounting period reflects the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being 
required to account for retirements on a cash basis rather than as benefits as earned by the employee. 
 
 
 
 

P
age 186



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  109                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Discretionary Benefits 
The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a 
result of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme. These powers were not used in 2016/17. 
 
P7. TERMINATION PAYMENTS 
 
Termination payments are amounts payable as a result of the Council’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal contractual (fixed term 
contract) or retirement date or an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy. 

Termination payments are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis, on demonstration of the commitment to the 
termination arrangements.  

For termination payments’ involving enhanced pension payments, statutory legislation requires that the General Fund balances are charged with the amount payable 
by the Council to the Pension Fund, not the amount calculated according to relevant accounting standards. In line with the Pension Fund accounting policy, 
arrangements are made through the Movement in Reserves Statement to replace the accounting arrangements with regulatory requirements. 

P8. VALUE ADDED TAX 
 
Income and expenditure within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement excludes any amount related to VAT, as all VAT collected is payable to HM 
Revenue and Customs and all VAT paid is recoverable from them. 

 
 

P9. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS 
 
 
Expenditure on assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it will bring 
benefits to the Council for more than one financial year. The balance is amortised to the appropriate revenue account over either a five or seven year period, to 
reflect the assets consumption. 
 
A de-minimis amount of £10,000 is applied to all intangible assets. 
 
Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrated that the project is technically feasible and is intended to be completed, the costs are directly 
attributable to bringing the asset into operation and the costs can be reliably measured. 
 
Since Intangible assets have short useful lives and are low in value, the council has elected to adopt a depreciated historic cost valuation for these assets.  

P
age 187



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  110                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
P10. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods and services, for rental or administration purposes and are expected to 
be used during more than one financial year; are classified as Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 
Plant and Equipment includes all vehicles but excludes all miscellaneous furniture and equipment with an individual value of less than £10,000, unless part of a larger 
project. 
 
Recognition  
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it yields benefits to the 
Council and the services that it provides for more than one financial year. Expenditure that secures but does not extend the previously assessed standards of 
performance of assets (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is charged to revenue as it is incurred.  

A de-minimis amount of £10,000 is applied to all property, plant and equipment. 
 
Measurement  
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising all expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended use.  The 
Council does not capitalise borrowing costs. 
 
Donated assets are measured at fair value. Any difference between the fair value and the consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non Specific Grants line of 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless there is a condition on the donation. Should there be a condition, the gain is held in the Donated 
Assets Account until the condition is met or the asset is returned. Gains credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
Assets are then carried in the balance sheet using the following measurement basis: 

 Dwellings- fair value, determined using the basis of existing use value for social housing (EUV/ SH). 

 Infrastructure assets and community assets at depreciated historical cost. 

 Assets under construction are held at historic cost. 

 surplus assets – the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective 

 All other property assets – fair value, determined by the amount that would be paid for the asset in its EUV. 

 The council has elected to use the depreciated historic cost, as a proxy to fair value, for non-property assets with low value and short useful lives; for example 
furniture and equipment assets. 

 It is assumed all assets are fully expended at the end of their useful life and therefore it is assumed there is no residual value. 

P
age 188



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  111                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature (for example Leisure Centre, Day Centre’s etc.) depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) is used as a proxy for fair value. 

 

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued where there have been material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years. Increases 
in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Account where they arise from the reversal of an impairment loss previously charged to a service revenue account. 
 
Where there is a decrease in valuation, which is due to a price decrease and is directly attributable to one particular asset; the revaluation loss is accounted for as 
follows: 

 Where there is a revaluation gain balance for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the loss is written against the balance up to the amount of the 
accumulated gain. 

 Where there is no revaluation gain against the asset in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance; the loss is written down against the relevant service 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been 
consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Valuation  
Asset valuations were carried out as at 1 April 2018 by Wilks, Head and Eve LLP and an end of year market review is undertaken as at 31 March 2019.  
 
Valuations of General Fund Land and Buildings are carried out on an annual basis. Council dwellings will continue to be valued annually by assessing the value of 
Beacon properties. A number of Beacon properties have been identified as being typical for a particular size and type of dwelling. These properties are valued and the 
assessed value is applied to all properties of a similar size and type. This is the accepted method of valuation for Council dwellings under ‘The Code’. 
 
Impairment  
Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is an indication of impairment. Where impairment exists and differences in value are estimated to be 
material, an impairment loss is recognised. 
 
Impairment losses are accounted for as follows: 

 Where there is a balance on the Revaluation Reserve against the asset, the loss is written down against the balance up to the amount of the accumulated 
gains. 

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or insufficient balance, the loss is written down against the relevant service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 

P
age 189



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  112                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

Where a previous impairment loss is reversed, the reversal is credited to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the 
amount of the original loss, adjusting for depreciation that would have been charged had the loss not been recognised. 
 
Where the impairment is permanent the treatment is the same as disposal of asset at nil value. 
 
Disposals – Assets Held for Sale  
When it becomes probable that an asset will be disposed of or decommissioned, the asset is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale – a current asset within the Balance 
Sheet.  In order to be classified as an Asset Held for Sale, the following conditions need to be met: 

 The asset must be available for immediate sale and the sale must be highly probable. 

 An active marketing plan is being followed and supported by management. 

 The asset should be marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable, relative to its fair value. 

 The sale is expected to be concluded within 12 months. 
 
If these conditions are not fulfilled the asset should be classified as a Surplus Asset. 
 
The asset is revalued before reclassification and carried at fair value less the cost of disposal. On disposal, any loss is recorded in the Other Operating Expenditure line 
of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Assets which are abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. The book value of such assets is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure 
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement; with receipts from the asset, if any, being credited to the same line. Any accumulated gains held in the 
Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.   
 
Amounts received in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. 
 
A proportion of receipts relating to dwelling disposals are required to be credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve net of statutory deductions and allowances and up to 
a cap set by Central Government. An element of these receipts can only be used for capital investment in new social housing up to a maximum of 30% of total capital 
costs.    
 
All other housing receipts and the remaining balance of the dwelling receipts are appropriated to the Capital Receipts Reserve within the Movement in Reserves 
Statement and are ring fenced to the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
The written off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account within the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

 

P
age 190



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  113                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

The Council will use the Net Book Value at the start of the year of disposal rather than revaluing the asset at the time of disposal to determine the profit or loss on the 
sale. 
 
Depreciation: 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment with a determinable finite life by allocating the value of the asset in the balance sheet over the 
periods expected to benefit from their use. The estimated useful life of each asset is determined at the start of the year after the asset is brought in to use.   
 
Assets that are not yet available for operational use, e.g. Assets under Construction, are not depreciated. 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following basis: 

 Dwellings – straight line allocation over the life of the dwelling as estimated by the valuer no longer than 60 years. 

 Other buildings – straight line allocation over the life of the property as estimated by the valuer no longer than 35 years. 

 Vehicles, Plant and Equipment – straight line allocation over the life of the asset of between 5 and 7 years. 

 Infrastructure – straight line allocation over a minimum of 20 years. 
 
Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major components with different estimated useful lives, these are depreciated separately (refer to policy on 
Componentisation). 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated at the start of the year after the asset has been revalued, with an amount equal to the difference between current value 
depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 
Componentisation 
A component is a part of an asset, which has to be separately identified for the purposes of assisting more accurate financial reporting and asset management. 
 
A component must have the following factors: 

 A significantly different useful life from the parent asset. 

 A significantly different cost to the parent asset. 

 Provide an economic or service benefit to the Council’s services, which is materially different to the rest of the asset. 
 
Taking into account the above, the following guidelines have been applied in order to implement the accounting requirements efficiently and effectively: 

  A de-minimis value of £150,000, or 25% or more of the value of the parent building component. 

 Componentisation must take place at the valuation, acquisition and enhancement of the parent asset. 
Under the ‘Code’ componentisation is not retrospective and effective from 1 April 2010. The application of componentisation will result in a change in the accounting 
estimate under the ‘Code’. 

P
age 191



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  114                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
In line with the above policy, the following assets have been componentised as a result of the full revaluation of the Council’s asset base: 

 Dunmow Sports Centre. 

 Lord Butler Fitness and Leisure Centre. 

 London Road Offices Saffron Walden. 

 Oakwood Park. 
 
Each asset has been split into at least 2 material components. 

 
P11. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR FIXED ASSETS 
 
Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to record the real cost of holding fixed assets during the year: 

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

 Impairment losses attributable to the clear consumption of economic benefits on Property, Plant and Equipment used by the service and other losses where 
there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which they can be written off. 

 Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to cover depreciation, impairment losses or amortisations. However it is required to make an annual provision from 
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement (This is calculated using ‘option 3’ the Asset Life Method). Depreciation, impairment 
losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment 
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference between the two. 
 
P12. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 
Expenditure that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but does not result in the creation of fixed assets for the Council (for example Disabled Facilities 
Grants) has been charged as expenditure to the relevant service revenue account in the year. Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure 
from existing capital resources, or by borrowing, a transfer to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance, within the Movement in Reserves 
Statement, then reverses out the amounts charged so there is no impact on the level of Council Tax. 
 
P13.  HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
The Council’s Heritage Assets are held for the primary objective of increasing the knowledge, understanding and appreciation of the Council’s history and local area. 
Under the SORP, Heritage Assets are to be recognised and measured at historic cost plus subsequent expenditure in accordance with the Council’s accounting policies 
on Property, Plant and Equipment (P101, above).  However, some of the measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below. The Council’s 
collections of heritage assets are accounted for as follows: 

P
age 192



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  115                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
Property Heritage Assets: Saffron Walden Motte and Bailey Castle 
 
This asset is held on the balance sheet at historic cost plus any capital expenditure incurred since April 2007 as the Council considers that the cost of obtaining a 
robust valuation would be disproportionate to the benefit of the user of the financial statements. The carrying value of the property assets will be reviewed annually 
for evidence of impairment in relation to physical damage.  
 
Heritage Assets held on Balance Sheet: Saffron Walden Museum Artefacts 
 
The remaining heritage assets are not included on the balance sheet because the Council considers that obtaining reliable valuations of such items, which are large in 
number and are mostly unique and specialist in nature, is not straightforward and it would be disproportionately expensive to obtain accurate accounting valuations 
for the purpose of including these asset values on the Council’s balance sheet. The collection of heritage assets will be annually reviewed for impairment as a result of 
damage or doubts over authenticity and be accounted for in line with the Council’s impairment arrangements. The collection of artefacts is relatively static, 
acquisitions and disposals are rare. Donations to the collection where material will be valued and accounted for accordingly. 
 
In general, heritage assets are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value, hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge 
depreciation. 
 
P14.  LEASES 
 
The Council as lessee 
 
Finance Leases  
The Council accounts for leases as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the leased property transfer to the Council.  Where the lease 
covers land and buildings, each element is considered separately. Rentals payable are apportioned between: 

 a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property (recognised as a liability in the Balance Sheet at the start of the lease, matched with Property, Plant 
or Equipment, valued at fair value) the liability is written down as the rent becomes payable), and 

 a finance charge (debited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Income and Expenditure Account as the rent becomes payable) 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases are accounted for using the policies applied generally to these assets, subject to depreciation being 
charged over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life. 
 
The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, revaluation or impairment losses on leased assets. These charges are therefore replaced by a 
revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 

P
age 193



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  116                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 
 
 
Operating Leases  
Leases where no risks or rewards are transferred to the Council are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable are charged to the relevant service line within 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals are charged when they 
become payable. 
 
The Council as Lessor 

Operating Leases 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over Property, Plant and Equipment (for example the lease of Turpin’s Bowling Hall), the asset is retained in the Balance 
Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. These credits are based on a 
straight line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments. 
  
P15.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Cash and bank balances are recorded at the current value of these balances in the Council’s cash book. Cash equivalents are investments, excluding Fixed Term 
Deposits; that can be converted to cash within 3 months, for known amounts, with insignificant risk of a change in value. Fixed Term Deposits have been classified as 
Short Term Investments, as by their very nature they cannot be called in earlier than the date of their maturity. 
 
P16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial Liabilities 
Financial Liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. 
 
Financial Assets 
The classification of contractual financial assets depends on two main tests: whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest; and if yes, the 
authority’s business model for managing the assets. 
 
This gives rise to three methods of accounting: 

 Amortised cost – cashflows are solely payments of principal and interest and the authority’s business model for managing the assets is to collect those cash 
flows. 

 Fair value through other comprehensive income – cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest and the authority’s business model for managing 
the assets is to collect those cashflows and to sell the assets 

P
age 194



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  117                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 Fair value through profit and loss – applies in all other circumstances 
 

Of the three methods above, the Council does not hold any financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. 
 

Amortised Cost 
Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus any transaction costs.  Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest (EIR) for the instrument. For all the loans the Council has made, 
this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.  
 
Allowances for impairment losses have been calculated applying the expected credit loss model.  Changes in loss allowances are debited/credited to the Financing and 
investment income and expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

Fair value through profit and loss 

Financial assets are initially measured and carried at their fair value. All gains and losses including changes in fair value are shown in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement on the Financing and investment Income and Expenditure line.  

 
P17.  INVENTORIES 
 
A de-minimis level of £10,000 has been set for the recognition of stock in the Council’s balance sheet. The various stock categories are valued as follows: 

 Housing stores: valued at the latest purchase price paid*. 

 Building Maintenance: work in progress is valued at cost, which includes an element of the Council’s cost of supervision and management. 
 
*Whilst this is a departure from IAS2 which requires stocks to be shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value, the effect of the different treatment is not 
material.   
 
P18.  INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES 
 
Material entities over which the Council has the power to exercise control/significant influence, or joint influence, to obtain economic or other benefit, are classified 
as a subsidiary/associate or joint venture relationship. Where material, such transactions will result in the preparation of Group Accounts and specific disclosures. 

 
The Council participates in a joint operation which is not performed through a separate entity. The Parking Partnership is a joint committee arrangement (refer to 
note 15.2) where the Council records its share of the joint committee arrangement’s income and expenditure, gains and losses, assets and liabilities and cash flows 
within its statutory accounts. 
 

P
age 195



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  118                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

In 2018/19 the Council has produced Group Accounts resulting from material transactions from one of the wholly owned subsidiaries, Aspire (CRP) Ltd.   
 
 P19.  PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE (PFI) 
  
The Council has a sports PFI scheme, which falls under the arrangements of the International reporting Standard – IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’. 
 
PFI and similar contracts are agreements to receive services, where the responsibility for making available Property, Plant and Equipment needed to provide the 
service passes to the PFI contractor. As the Council is deemed to control the services that are provided under its PFI schemes and as ownership of the assets will pass 
to the Council at the end of the contract period for no additional charge, the Council carries the assets used under the contract on the Balance Sheet.  
 
The original recognition of these assets at fair value was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due to the scheme operator to pay for the assets over 
the life of the contract.   
For details of how the related Long Term Assets are recognised and valued on the Balance Sheet, please refer to section P11.  
The amount payable to the PFI operator each year is analysed into five elements: 

 Fair value of the services during the year – debited to the relevant service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 Finance cost – an interest charge on the outstanding Balance Sheet liability, debited to the Financing and Investment Income and expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.      

 Contingent rent – increases in the amount to be paid for the property arising during the contract, debited to the Financing  and Investment  Income and 
Expenditure line  in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance Sheet liability 
towards the PFI operator. 

 Lifecycle replacement costs – debited to the relevant service in the Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement. 

 Payment towards liability – applied to write down the Balance sheet liability towards the PFI operator. 
 

P20.   LONG-TERM DEBTORS 
 

These are amortised by an annual amount equalling the annual repayments of principal paid by borrowers. 
 
P21.   COUNCIL TAX 
 
The Council as ‘billing’ authority acts as agent with regards to the collection and distribution of Council Tax on behalf of itself and Essex County Council, Essex Police 
Authority, Essex Fire Service and the various town and parish councils. In line with these agency arrangements, in order to reflect the risks and rewards accurately 
within the Council’s accounts, the following transactions need to be reported: 

 The agency share of Council Tax income is not included in the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as it is not part of the council’s 
operating activities. 

P
age 196



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  119                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

 A debtor/creditor to reflect the difference between the various preceptors share of the cash collected in the year and the cash paid to the preceptors on 
account in line with the appropriate regulations will be included in the Council’s balance sheet. 

 The council’s cash flow statement only includes the council’s share of council tax, net of cash collected and precepts paid to it. 
 
P22.   NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES (NNDR) 
 
The accounting treatment for NNDR is based on the principle that the Council is the ‘billing’ authority, acting as the agent for Central Government and its Preceptors in 
the collection of NNDR. The following accounting arrangements have been put in place: 

 The agency share of NNDR income is not included in the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as it is not part of the council’s 
operating activities. 

 The cost of collection received by the Council is reported as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 

 The agency share of NNDR debtors, creditors and impairment losses are not the assets or liabilities of the Council and are replaced in the balance sheet by a 
net debtor/creditor for Central Government and each of the Preceptors. 

 
P23.     CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ESTIMATES AND ERRORS 
 

The Council has made no material changes to the accounting policies apart from those required under the ’Code’. 
 
The main change to accounting policies in 2018/19 which has had an effect on the 2018/19 accounts is the implementation of IFRS9 Financial Instruments for more 
details on the changes please refer to note 18.7. 
 
For 2018/19 the Council amended its reporting segments from that used in 2017/18 and the Code also clarifies further the requirement to exclude transactions 
between reporting segments from being presented in the CIES, therefore, some restatement of previous year comparators has been necessary. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the 
effect of transactions, other events and conditions on the Authority’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively 
(unless stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 
 
Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a material error. Where a change is made to an accounting policy it is 
applied retrospectively by adjusting opening and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had always been applied. 

 
Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period. 

 
 
 

P
age 197



Other Statements – Accounting Policies   Uttlesford District Council  
 

  120                               Final Accounts 2018/19 

P24.  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 
 
Such events can be both favourable and unfavourable, occurring between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts are 
authorised for issue. Where the event is material to the content of the Accounts and there is evidence that the event existed at the end of the reporting period, the 
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect the impact of the event. Events arising after the reporting period are not adjusted in the Accounts for.  A disclosure is 
made detailing the nature of the event and the estimated financial impact. 
 
 
P25.  FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT  
 
The authority measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings [other financial 
instruments as applicable] at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either:  

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or  
b) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 
 

The authority measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that 
market participants act in their economic best interest. 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset 
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 
The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as follows: 

 Level 1 – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the authority can access at the measurement date 

 Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

 Level 3 – unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

P
age 198



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  121                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

1 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 

1.1 Uttlesford District Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public 

money is safeguarded and properly accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively. Uttlesford District Council also has a duty under the 

Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 

combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

1.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, Uttlesford District Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs 

and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of risk. 

1.3 Uttlesford District Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, which is consistent with the principles of the Delivering Good 

Governance in Local Government: Framework (CIPFA/SOLACE 2016). A copy of the authority’s Code of Corporate Governance is on our website at 

www.uttlesford.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex, CB11 4ER. This statement explains how 

Uttlesford District Council has complied with the code and also meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1)(a) and 

(b), which requires all relevant bodies to conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control required by regulation 3; and prepare an 

annual governance statement. 

2 THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by which the authority is directed and controlled and its activities 

through which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the authority to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and 

to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 

2.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of 

failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of 

internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Uttlesford District Council’s policies, 

aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 

economically. 

2.3 The governance framework has been in place at Uttlesford District Council for the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual 

statement of accounts. 

 

P
age 199



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  122                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

3 THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

3.1 Some of the key features of the governance framework are set out in the following paragraphs. 

3.2 The Uttlesford District Council Corporate Plan 2018/2022 outlines the aims and four priority areas and it is complemented by the Medium Term Financial 

Strategy and together these represent the key planning documents for the Council. This was again underpinned by an annual delivery plan setting out the 

specific projects/activities that would contribute to the Council’s priorities.  The Corporate Plan is reviewed annually and takes account of feedback from 

public consultation carried out via a Citizens Panel, as well as data and analysis relating to the residents, communities and businesses in the District.  The 

Corporate Plan 2019/2020 was approved by members at the Council Meeting held in February 2019.  

3.3 Delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan is supported by the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 2018/19 and service plans in which the corporate objectives are 

translated into more specific aims and objectives.  These are then cascaded down into individual performance development reviews through the council’s 

U-Perform system.  These all include targets and, where appropriate, service standards against which service quality and improvement can be judged.  

Performance against the delivery plan is monitored by the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and Cabinet, while service plans are monitored by 

individual services and formally reviewed quarterly by the CMT. In addition, the Council’s key performance indicators are monitored quarterly by the 

Governance, Audit & Performance Committee.  Satisfaction surveys and a formal complaints procedure allow the Council to gauge customer satisfaction 

3.4 Uttlesford District Council has adopted a Constitution which establishes the roles and responsibilities for members of the executive (the Cabinet), 

Governance, Audit & Performance, Scrutiny, and Standards Committees, together with officer functions. It includes details of delegation arrangements, 

the Members’ Codes of Conduct and protocols for member/officer relations. The Constitution is kept under review to ensure that it continues to be fit for 

purpose. A Code of Conduct for Staff is in draft form and is expected to be finalised early in 2019/20. There is a guide to disciplinary standards; conduct of 

officers is directed by Human Resource Policies (HRP) and through the values and behaviours which are part of the Council’s individual performance 

review system known as ‘U-Perform’. 

3.5 The Constitution contains procedure rules, standing orders and financial regulations that clearly define how decisions are taken and where authority lies 

for decisions. The statutory roles of Head of Paid Service, Monitoring Officer and Chief Financial Officer are described together with their contributions to 

provide robust assurance on governance and that expenditure is lawful and in line with approved budgets and procedures. The influence and oversight 

exerted by these posts is backed by the post-holders’ membership of the Corporate Management Team.  The Constitution also contains a Statutory 

Officers Protocol.  

3.6 During 2018/19 the following amendment to the Constitution has been made: 

The Council has adopted a procedure requiring notice to be given in advance of amendments to be moved at full Council meetings.  

P
age 200



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  123                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

 

3.7 In 2016 CIPFA published its Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in local government, setting out core principles and standards relating to 

the role of CFO and how it fits into the organisation’s governance arrangements. The Council complied with the CIPFA statement in 2018/19. 

3.8 In 2019 CIPFA published its Statement on the Role of the Head of Internal Audit, setting out core principles and standards relating to the role of the Head 

of Internal Audit and how it fits into the organisation’s governance arrangements. The Council complied with the CIPFA statement in 2018/19 

3.9 The primary counterbalance to the Executive is the Scrutiny Committee. The role of this committee is to provide a robust challenge to the Cabinet. A 

Memorandum of Understanding has been developed to set out the relationship between the scrutiny and executive functions to address some of the 

recommendations from the Centre for Public Scrutiny review of the council’s scrutiny processes and practices. This MoU was approved by Scrutiny 

Committee and by Cabinet, through an executive decision, in March 2019. It follows recommended practice and will assist in ensuring the two functions 

work effectively together. 

3.10 The Governance, Audit & Performance Committee monitors the performance of the Council, fulfilling the Council’s Audit Committee core functions, as 

identified in Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA 2016), in respect of External Audit, Internal Audit and Risk 

Management and Performance Management.  The Committee can, and does, request assurance from the relevant Cabinet member and/or senior 

manager when there is consistent underperformance in a particular service area/indicator.   

3.11 The Council has a formal complaints procedure which allows the public or other stakeholders to make a complaint regarding the service received from the 

Council or on the conduct of Members. The Standards Committee has responsibility for overseeing the investigation of complaints against members.  

For the period 01/04/18 to 31/03/19, there were 16 allegations received of a breach of the Code of Conduct, of which  
11 were against parish councillors;   
5 were against district councillors.  

 
 

3.12 The Council has policies to protect both itself and its staff when making decisions.  A Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and Policies have been 

developed in accordance with the Code of Practices on Managing the Risk of Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA 2014), and include the Council’s Fraud Response 

Plan, Whistleblowing and Bribery Act 2010 Policies which have been developed and communicated to all staff via the internet and as part of the Induction 

process.  The Counter Fraud and Corruption Strategy and Policies have been reviewed, updated and published during 2018/19.  

P
age 201



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  124                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

3.13 The Council has embedded Risk Management throughout its activities with the Corporate Risk Register reflecting the key threats to achieving its corporate 

aims and objectives. The Council’s Corporate Risk Register is reviewed and updated by CMT and reported twice a year to the Governance, Audit and 

Performance Committee. 

3.14 Performance Management is monitored through quarterly reporting to CMT and the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee on 16 Key 

Performance Indicators and more than 20 other PIs.  Areas of concern are discussed by the Committee and follow-up reports are requested if necessary. 

Of particular concern in 2018/19 was the re-let time for void properties. 

3.15 All Council services are delivered by trained and experienced officers.  Job Descriptions and Person Specifications are in place for all posts to ensure that 

the best candidates are appointed into each position.  A significant commitment has also been made towards retaining good staff, by offering numerous 

‘work friendly’ schemes and where possible encouraging succession planning and promotion from within. This ensures that valuable skills and experience 

are retained and passed on, rather than being lost. Training needs are identified through the U-Perform appraisal system, including ILM training for 

supervisors and managers. 

3.16 The individual performance review system known as U-Perform has been operated in the council for nine years. Staff are measured against operational 

objectives that are linked through to service plans and the Corporate Plan and are also provided with behaviour statements against which they can 

demonstrate how they go about their roles. U-Perform also identifies developmental and training needs, through which training is made available to staff 

to ensure that individuals are able to undertake their present role effectively. In 2018/19 the Council achieved a 100 per cent completion rate for U-

Perform for the second year running. Also in 2018/19, the council moved the U-Perform system online via the iTrent HR platform and introduced a new 

paper-based system for manual staff. A moderation process was established in 2017/18, through which the council’s Chief Executive and Directors review 

U-Perform ratings for all staff to ensure consistency across all departments in the way the system is applied and this process was further improved for 

2018/19. 

3.17 During the year 2018/19 specific training for Members of the following committees was also arranged:  Standards Committee (in-house training covering 

Standards Hearings) and Planning Committee (in-house training covering Probity in Planning).  Online training for all Members of the Council on General 

Data Protection Regulations and Data Protections Act 2018 was provided through the Local Government Association from May 2018.  The monthly 

Members’ Bulletin has provided further information and guidance to Members for example on Cybercrime Training; Photographing of Members and 

Mileage and Expenses. 

3.18 The Council continues to ensure it is open and accessible to the community.  In 2018/19 it has: 

 Continued to regularly survey the views of residents through its Citizens Panel  

P
age 202



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  125                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

 Launched a new council website, following Government Digital Service design principles 

 Launched a sub-site for business to provide information and support to the local economy 

 Continued to meet guidelines on the publication of transparency information on its website, including publishing Gender Pay Gap information 

 Continued audio streaming and recording of meetings of the Planning Committee, Full Council and Cabinet and, latterly, all committees including the 

Scrutiny Committee 

 Conducted a major consultation exercise for the Local Council Tax Support Scheme and budget setting, which attracted the highest ever level of 

responses 

 Established a Public Engagement Working Group, which concluded its work with a series of recommendations to improve community engagement 

with the council 

 Continued to support the Uttlesford Youth Council 

 Continued to deliver the Keep Me Posted email news service for residents and grew the subscriber base to in excess of 7,000 people. 

All Committee meetings are open to the public except where personal or confidential matters are discussed.  All agendas and minutes are placed on-line, 

along with the Council’s policies and strategies.  These items are also available by directly contacting the Council.   When identifying the priorities and 

objectives for the Corporate Plan the views of stakeholders and the wider community are sought through a number of consultation mechanisms, and are 

taken into account.  The Corporate Plan is made available to all via the Council's website. 

3.19 During 2018/19 the Council’s Scrutiny Committee has looked at various areas of Council decision making and service delivery, including the draft budget 

and LCTS scheme and consultation, affordable homes and waste education. In addition, the Centre for Public Scrutiny’s report into the council’s scrutiny 

processes and practices was discussed and an action plan agreed. Several key recommendations were put in place during the year, including reports being 

presented by Cabinet Members rather than officers and the establishment of a Memorandum of Understanding between the executive and scrutiny. A 

summary of the Committee’s work for the year can be found on the agenda of the Full Council meeting of 9 April 2019 

3.20 There are terms of reference and constitutions set up for key partnerships which ensure that all members of the partnership act lawfully throughout the 

decision making process.  Uttlesford Futures has a comprehensive Governance Handbook and the terms of reference for all of the working groups are 

regularly reviewed to ensure they comply with the overarching document.  Key partnerships include the Local Strategic Partnership - Uttlesford Futures; 

the Public Law Partnership and the North Essex Parking Partnership.  The Council also works closely with neighbouring authorities to promote sustainable 

economic growth and on strategic planning issues in the context of the duty to cooperate under the Planning Acts.  It also works with Braintree and Epping 

Forest Councils for shared provision of energy efficiency advice, insurance arrangements and building control.  

P
age 203



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  126                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

3.21 A Corporate Peer Challenge was conducted in November 2016; the report and action plan was approved at Council in July 2017 and update reports on 

progress against the action plan have been regularly reported to GAP, with the most recent being in October 2018 

3.22 The Council’s Draft Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 was completed by 31 May 2018.  The audited Statement of Accounts for 2017/18 was published on 

26 July 2018.  The Council received an unqualified opinion on its accounts for the tenth successive year. 

3.23 During 2018/19 work has continued on the development of the council’s new HR and Payroll system. Phase 2 of the project, which includes appraisals and 

online recruitment, went live during the year. 

3.24 On 15 May 2017, Aspire (CRP) Ltd (a wholly owned company of the council) purchased a 50% share in Chesterford Research Park (which is part of the 

South Cambridgeshire Biotech Cluster) in a joint venture with Aviva Ltd. The company has three Directors all of which are council employees and are 

members of the Corporate Management Team. The company also engages the services of two Non-Executive Directors to complement the skills of the 

directors in determining the company’s activities, which are the subject of audit processes separate to the council.   Members of the Cabinet form the 

shareholder board. The Council resolved to fund 50% of the refurbishment and refit costs of Newnham Building and this work commenced in early 2019. 

The expected completion date is summer 2020.  

3.25 The GDPR project has been completed and arrangements are in place to ensure ongoing compliance with GDPR. Attention is being moved to wider aspects 

of information governance 

3.26 During the autumn of 2018 it became clear that the risks to the Council, businesses and the community of Uttlesford of a no-deal exit from the European 

Union were such that the risk should be added to the corporate risk register (November Governance Audit and Performance Committee) and additional 

resources were allocated to the preparations for such a scenario. Bids were made to government for additional funding to provide for preparations; the 

council received £16k from the FSA and £35k from the DCLG. This was in addition to funding allocated to all local authorities in recognition of their 

preparations. Additional training was undertaken by command staff and officers participated in an Essex wide strategic command exercise.  

4 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS 

4.1 Uttlesford District Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the 

system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who have responsibility for 

the development and maintenance of the governance environment, the head of internal audit’s annual report, and also by comments made by the 

external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

P
age 204



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  127                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

4.2 The Council’s Monitoring Officer has responsibility for overseeing the implementation and monitoring the operation of the Code of Corporate 

Governance, maintaining and updating the Code in the light of latest guidance on best practice, considering any changes that may be necessary to 

maintain it and ensure its effectiveness in practice.  All reports to Cabinet, Committees and Council are seen by the Monitoring Officer to ensure 

compliance with legal requirements.  

4.3 The Council’s Section 151 Officer has responsibility for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs. This includes responsibility for 

maintaining and reviewing Financial Regulations to ensure they remain fit for purpose, and submitting any additions or changes necessary to the full 

Council for approval. The Section 151 Officer is also responsible for reporting, where appropriate, breaches of the Regulations to the Cabinet and/or the 

Council.   All reports to Cabinet, Committees and Council are seen by the Section151 Officer to ensure compliance with financial requirements. 

4.4 The Council’s Internal Audit Service, via a specific responsibility assigned to the Internal Audit Manager, is required to provide an annual independent and 

objective opinion to the Authority on its risk management, governance and control environment. The Internal Audit Manager’s Annual Report and Opinion 

for 2018/19 concluded that the audit opinion on the control environment for 2018/19 is that risks material to the achievement of the objectives for the 

audited areas identified by Internal Audit were, on balance, satisfactorily managed and controlled.  

4.5 Twenty-two Audits from the 2018/19 Internal Audit Programme have been completed.  Of these, three audits were given an Internal Audit opinion of 

either Little or Limited Assurance: 

• The Audit of Corporate Equality and Diversity was given the opinion of Little Assurance.  Nine recommendations were made - eight level 3 and  

one level 2; one recommendation has been implemented, the remaining recommendations are expected to be implemented by their agreed due 

dates in 2019/20. 

 

 The Audit of Environmental Health Enforcement was given the opinion of Limited Assurance.  Five recommendations were made – four level 3 and 

one level 2; three recommendations have been implemented, the remaining recommendations are expected to be implemented by their agreed 

due dates in 2019/20 

 

 The Audit of Housing – Planned Maintenance was given the opinion of Limited Assurance.  Three recommendations were made – one level 4 and 

two level 3; one recommendation has been implemented, the remaining recommendations are expected to be implemented by their agreed due 

dates in 2019/20 

 

 

P
age 205



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  128                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

4.6 In addition to the above, the Council has conducted a formal review of its internal control environment and collated evidence and assurance from a 

variety of sources.  This has included the collation of assurances from all Senior Management Team (SMT) members on the effectiveness of the internal 

control environment.  A review of the returns concluded that based on this self-assessment, effective controls were in place. 

4.7 The work of the Council’s Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017.  The PSIAS encompass the mandatory 

elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), additional requirements and interpretations for 

the UK public sector have been inserted in such a way as to preserve the integrity of the text of the mandatory elements of the IPPF. The PSIAS are 

mandatory for all internal auditors working in the UK public sector.  An External Quality Assessment of the performance of Internal Audit and its 

conformance with the PSIAS was undertaken in September 2017. An essential element of this assessment was to ensure that the annual audit opinion 

issued by Internal Audit may be relied upon as a key source of evidence and assurance.  The External Assessment concluded that the Internal Audit service 

generally conforms with the expectations of the PSIAS and made 15 recommendations to reflect that there are areas in which the service can be further 

improved and enhanced.  Lack of resource has resulted in implementation of only 3 recommendations during 2018/19, the service will be working to 

implement the remaining recommendations during 2019/20.   

4.8 The Council’s Performance Management Framework through which the quality of service can be measured by performance indicators. Most indicators are 

monitored on a quarterly basis; some are bi-annual or annual. All are discussed by the Corporate Management Team and the top two of three layers of 

indicators are reported to Committee. 

4.9 EY were appointed as the Council’s External Auditor from 01 September 2012 and were responsible for reviewing the Council’s Statements of Accounts.  In 

addition to reviewing the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts, EY issued a formal opinion on the Council’s arrangements for securing Value for Money 

concluding that the council had made appropriate arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This was the final 

year of EY’s appointment as our External Auditors. 

4.10 Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) is specified as an appointing person under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 

regulation 3 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015. For audits of the accounts from 2018/19, PSAA appoints an auditor to relevant 

principal local government authorities that have opted into its national scheme. Appointments are made for the duration of a five-year appointing period. 

The current appointing period covers the audits of the accounts for 2018/19 to 2022/23.  

4.11 In December 2017 BDO LLP were confirmed by PSAA as the Councils new External Auditors for the period 2018/19 to 2022/23 

  

P
age 206



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  129                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

5 SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES 

5.1 Significant Issues from 2017/18 

 In the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement the following three issues were identified: 

1 The revision of the Code of Corporate Governance has not been completed; this has been included as a Significant Control Issue identified in 

2017/18 

 Good progress is being made with a fundamental review and redraft of the Code of Corporate Governance. The new version will be submitted for 

member approval in the first part of 2019/20.  

2 Significant control weaknesses were identified by Internal Audit in the Trade Waste Service.  Significant work has been undertaken within the 

service to ensure the implementation of the recommendations.  Internal Audit will undertake further audit work to complete the audit in 

2018/19. 

 In July 2018, Internal Audit carried out follow-up work to confirm the implementation of the recommendations made and in June 2019 completed 

the required testing of the controls now in place.  The final Audit report was issued with a satisfactory opinion given.     

3 Homes England has drawn the Council’s attention to non-compliance with the Capital Funding Guide (CFG) and has made a recommendation that 

the Council update and improve internal processes to ensure compliance to the CGF and send evidence of this to Homes England by 01 August 

2018, (this is subject to further discussions with Homes England). 

 The final grade received in a report from Homes England demonstrated a failure by the Council to meet the requirements of the Homes England 

Capital Funding Guide for the development at Reynolds Court. The report from Homes England confirmed that there were no other breaches in 

the administration of this development. The breach was awarded to the Council on the basis that the start on site claim was made in advance of 

the main contract being signed. The report acknowledged that eligible works had commenced, possession of the site had been achieved and that 

the provider was incurring eligible costs.  Works were commenced under a Pre-Construction Services Agreement which was signed on the 15th 

December 2015, well before the first grant claim. Officers have liaised with Homes England to agree procedures for any future grant applications. 

The council has changed internal procedures to ensure that a re-forecast of the start on site milestone is requested from Homes England, in order 

to correspond with the execution date of the main build contract, on all future schemes. This will ensure that no start on site claim is requested 

prior to the execution date of the main build contract. This approach has been signed off by Homes England. It has also been signed off by the 

Portfolio for Housing and the Council's Corporate Management Team. 

P
age 207



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  130                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

5.2 Actions Identified for 2017/18 

In the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement the following five actions were identified for 2018/19: 

 1 Publication of the revised and update Counter Fraud Strategy and Policies 

 The Counter Fraud Strategy and Policies were revised and updated and approved for publication in March 2019 

2 Publication of a Code of Conduct for Staff and a revised Register of Interests (in line with the Internal Audit Recommendation made following the 

Audit of  Corporate Governance)   

 A Code of Conduct for staff has been drafted and this is expected to be published in the first part of 2019/20.      

Work on a register of interests for staff will be undertaken in 2019/20 

3 Completion of the GDPR Project and establishment of the processes and procedures required to ensure ongoing compliance with GDPR   

 and the new Data Protection Act 2018 

The GDPR project has been completed and arrangements are in place to ensure ongoing compliance with GDPR. Attention is being moved to 

wider aspects of information governance  

4 The completion of the review and update of the Code of Corporate Governance 

Good progress is being made with a fundamental review and redraft of the Code of Corporate Governance. The new version will be submitted for 

member approval in the first part of 2019/20.  

5 Implementation of recommendations from  

 the review of Scrutiny  

Recommendations from the Centre for Public Scrutiny review of the council’s scrutiny processes and practices have been put in place 

during 2018/19, including the establishment of a Memorandum of Understanding between the executive and scrutiny functions, which 

incorporates multiple recommendations in a single document. 

 

P
age 208



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  131                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

 the Peer reviews of  

o Electoral Services 

The Association of Electoral Administrators (AEA) was engaged to undertake a peer review of the council’s electoral services, 

ahead of the planned retirement of the long-standing experienced manager. Their identified a number of strengths within the 

service and made six recommendations, of which four have been implemented.  The other two remain outstanding as they need 

to be implemented at a time of electoral stability.  

 

o Licensing 

In 2018/19 the council undertook a comprehensive review of the licensing system at Uttlesford District Council primarily focusing 

on Hackney carriage vehicles and PHV, including operator, driver and vehicle licences and the standards and conditions that 

govern them.  

The review identified both strengths and weaknesses within the service and made recommendations for improvement to the 

delivery and efficiency of service and its interaction with its customers as well as changes to policies and procedures which were 

found to be outdated and in need of a fundamental review. Safeguarding was highlighted as a potential issue as the council has 

over 2,000 drivers predominantly on School contract work which puts potentially vulnerable people totally under the control of 

the driver.  

Following the review new policies and procedures have been put in place. These were widely consulted on before being approved 

by Committee and Full Council. The authority is confident that the new measures it has put in place will ensure that vehicles are 

safe and that drivers and operators are fit and proper to hold such licences 

 

o Planning 

The Planning Peer Review was undertaken by the Planning Officers’ Society in February 2018.  The Review highlighted many 

strengths in the way we work but has indicated that if we are to provide the excellent planning service we aspire to, we need to 

improve our performance levels relating to the Government’s key criteria.  We are currently in the lower quartile’s for 

performance targets relating to major and non-major planning applications.  This is a service wide issue – not one just for 

development management to address as other teams such as Conservation, Landscape, Economic Development and Planning 

Policy need to feed into the planning application decision-making processes in a more timely, efficient and effective way.  

 

P
age 209



Other Statements - Annual Governance Statement  Uttlesford District Council  
 

  132                                                                                                      Final Accounts 2018/19 
 

A Peer Review Action Plan covering all service areas has been developed and is in the process of being implemented.  This needs a 

renewed focus on hitting the agreed targets and objectives so that the service improves across the department.  A key element of 

this will be giving managers the time and space to manage instead of them getting too involved in detailed issues that can be dealt 

with by officers in their teams.  This in turn, will require managers to delegate more decision-making and allow officers to make 

informed, professional decisions themselves based on their own experience and skills.  

 

 The Ombudsman regarding training for Senior Managers in the handling of complaints 

12 staff attended training provided by the Local Government Ombudsman regarding effective handling of complaints, primarily focused 

on dealing with complaints effectively at the first stage. The council’s policy on complaints has subsequently been updated, in part to 

reflect the best practice shared at the training. In addition, the responsibility of coordinating the council’s responses to complaints raised 

with the LGO has been taken on by the Executive Support team who have reviewed the collation and management of information, which 

has received very positive feedback from the LGO.   

5.3 Significant Control and Governance Issues identified 2018/19 

Equality & Diversity 
The Audit of Corporate Equality and Diversity identified significant issues that needed to be addressed to improve governance, monitoring reporting and 
compliance to equality legislation. This was reported to GAP in November2018.  Resources have been identified to implement the recommendations 
made and further updates on progress will be given to GAP during 2019/20.   
 

5.4 It is proposed over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that 
these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review. 

 
The Council considers its Corporate Governance and Internal Control arrangements to be fundamentally sound.  

  

Signed:________________________________________  Signed:______________________________________ 

Dawn French     John Lodge 
Chief Executive      Leader of the Council 

 

P
age 210



Uttlesford District Council 

133 
 

Index for Notes to the Core Financial Statements and Supplementary Statements    Page  Note/Table Reference  
 
Section A – Notes to the Group Accounts         8 
Accounting Policies               A1 
Notes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
Investment and Financing Income and Expenditure           A2 
Tax Expenses of Group Entities              A3 
Notes to the Balance Sheet 
Long-term Investments               A4 
Short-term Debtors               A5 
Cash and Cash Equivalents              A6 
Usable Reserves               A7 
Notes to the Cash Flow 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities             A8 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities             A9 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities             A10 
Cash and Cash Equivalents              A11 
Interest on Balances               A12 
 
Section B – Movement in Reserves Statement         21  
Movement in Reserves               1.0 
Adjusting between Accounting and Funding Basis under Regulations 2017/18        1.1 
Usable Reserves:               2.0 
Revenue Balances – General Fund             2.1 
Revenue Balances – Housing Revenue Account            2.2 
Capital Receipts Reserve              2.3 
Capital Grants and Contributions without Conditions (Unapplied)         2.4 
Unusable Reserves:               3.0 
Revaluation Reserve               3.1 
Capital Adjustment Account              3.2  
Deferred Capital Receipts              3.3 
Accumulated Compensated Absences Adjustment Account          3.4 
Pension Reserve               3.5 

P
age 211



Uttlesford District Council 

134 
 

Index for Notes to the Core Financial Statements and Supplementary Statements    Page  Note/Table Reference 
 
Collection Fund Adjustment Account             3.6 
 
Section C – Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement      33 
Compliance to Regulations              4.0 
Revenue Contracts               4.1 
Expenditure and Funding Analysis             4.2 
Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis            4.3 
Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature            4.4 
Notes to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement         5.0 
Total Other Operating Expenditure             5.1 
Total Financing & Investment Income and Expenditure           5.2 
Total Taxation and Non-Specific Government Grants           5.3 
 
Section D – Balance Sheet           39 
Intangible Assets               6.0 
Intangible Assets               6.1 
Property, Plant and Equipment              7.0 
Analysis of Property, Plant and Equipment            7.1 
Capital Expenditure and Financing             7.2 
Heritage Assets                7.3 
Significant Commitments under Capital Contracts           7.4 
Other Long Term Assets              8.0 
Long Term Investments               8.1 
Long Term Debtors               8.2 
Current Assets                9.0 
Inventories (Stock)               9.1 
Debtors                 9.2 
Impairment Allowances (for Non-Collection)            9.3 
Short Term Investments               9.4 
 
  

P
age 212



Uttlesford District Council 

135 
 

Index for Notes to the Core Financial Statements and Supplementary Statements    Page  Note/Table Reference 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents              9.5 
 
Current Liabilities               10.0 
Creditors                10.1 
Provisions                10.2 
Long Term Liabilities               11.0 
Long Term Borrowing               11.1 
Deferred Liabilities               11.2 
Creditor – Capital Grants and Contributions with Conditions          11.3 
Creditor – Capital Grants and Contributions due to Other Bodies          11.4 
Pensions Liability               11.5 
Tax Payers Equity               12.0 
Usable Reserves               12.1 
Unusable Reserves               12.2 
 
Section E - Cash Flow Statement          52 
Cash Flow Activities               13.0 
Cash Flow Statement – Operating Activities            13.1 
Cash Flow Statement – Investing Activities            13.2 
Cash Flow Statement – Financing Activities            13.3 
Cash Flow Statement – Cash and Cash Equivalents           13.4 
Cash Flow Statement – Interest on Balances            13.5 
 
Section F – Supplementary Notes to the Core Financial Statements      55      
Leasing Arrangements and Private Finance Initiative           14.0 
Private Finance Initiative              14.1 
Members, officers and Related Parties             15.0 
Members Allowances               15.1 
Related Party Transactions              15.2 
Officers Remuneration               15.3 
Employees Salary over £50,000              15.4 

P
age 213



Uttlesford District Council 

136 
 

Index for Notes to the Core Financial Statements and Supplementary Statements    Page  Note/Table Reference  
 
Termination Benefits               15.5 
 
Fees Payable                16.0 
External Audit Fees Payable              16.1 
Pension Scheme               17.0 
Pension Scheme Disclosure              17.1 
Transactions Relating to the Pension Scheme            17.2 
Pension Liabilities (Summary)               17.3 
Pension Liabilities (Sensitivity Analysis)             17.4 
Pension Assets                17.5 
Pension Scheme History               17.6 
Basis for Estimating the Pension Scheme Assets and Liabilities          17.7 
Analysis of Assets Held               17.8 
History of Actuarial Gains and Losses              17.9 
Pension Reserve               17.10 
Financial Instruments               18.0 
Financial Instruments - Balances              18.1 
Long-term Borrowing                    18.2 
Financial Instruments – Gains and Losses            18.3 
Financial Instruments – Fair Values             18.4 
Financial Instruments – Risks              18.5 
Financial Instruments – Collateral             18.6 
Financial Instruments – Transition to IFRS 9            18.7 
Supplementary Notes               19.0 
Events after the Reporting Period             19.1 
Contingent Liabilities               19.2 
Grant Income - Revenue              19.3 
Un-adopted Accounting Policies              19.4 
Critical Judgements in Accounting Policies            19.5 
Assumptions made about the Future and Other Sources of Estimation         19.6 
Prior Period Adjustment              19.7 

P
age 214



Uttlesford District Council 

137 
 

Index for Notes to the Core Financial Statements and Supplementary Statements    Page  Note/Table Reference 
 
Section G – Supplementary Financial Statements – Housing Revenue Account;     93 
Housing Revenue Account Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account;        
Movement in HRA Reserves;              20.0 
Adjustments between Accounting and Funding basis under Statute;         20.1 
Notes to the Housing Revenue Account             21.0 
Introduction Statement               21.1 
Gross Rental Income               21.2 
Housing Revenue Account Self-Financing Transactions           21.3 
Housing Stock                21.4 
Rent Arrears                21.5 
Balance Sheet Value of Housing Revenue Stock            21.6 
Major Repairs Reserve               21.7 
Capital Financing               21.8 
Housing Revenue Account Contribution to the Pension Fund          21.9 
  
 
Section H – Supplementary Financial Statements – Collection Fund      99 
Collection Fund Summary              
Collection Fund Income and Expenditure Account           
Notes to the Collection Fund              22.0 
Council Tax Introduction              22.1 
Council Tax Base               22.2 
Council Tax Income Analysis              22.3 
Council Tax Collection Fund Balance             22.4 
Business Rates – Introduction              22.5 
Business Rates Income Analysis              22.6 
Business Rates Collection Fund Balance             22.7 
 

P
age 215



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee

Title: Statement of Accounts 2018/19

Report 
Author:

Angela Knight, Assistant Director - Resources
aknight@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Thursday, 25 July 
2019

Summary

1. The Statement of Accounts for 2018/19 has been subject to a full audit process and 
an unmodified (unqualified) audit opinion is expected, which would be  the 11th 
consecutive year that this has been achieved.

2. The Statement of Accounts includes a section which details the consolidated group 
accounts, relating to the councils investment in Aspire (CRP) Ltd.

3. The audit opinion also states that the council has proper arrangements in place to 
ensure the secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources 
maintaining ‘Value for Money’ status for the 9th successive year.

4. The approval of the accounts should be considered in the context of the External 
Auditor’s Completion Report (ACR), as set out in agenda item 3.

5. The ACR details some items which are outstanding at the point of publishing, it is 
expected that the audit will be complete by the 25 July and a verbal update will be 
provided by the Senior Audit Manager at the meeting.

6. The Council is required to issue a Letter of Representation to the External Auditor. 
The Committee is required to consider and approve the wording of this letter, 
attached as Appendix A to this report.

7. The following documents require formal sign off at this meeting, following approval by 
the Committee:

 Letter of Representation and the Statement of Accounts – by the Section 151 
Officer and the Chairman of the Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee. 

 Annual Governance Statement (which forms part of the Statement of 
Accounts) – by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council.

Recommendations

8. The Committee is recommended to approve;

a) The Letter of Representation attached to this report as Appendix A

b) The audited 2018/19 Statement of Accounts as presented with this report

Page 217

Agenda Item 4



Financial Implications

9. None

Background Papers

10. None

Impact 

11.  

Communication/Consultation N/A

Community Safety N/A

Equalities N/A

Health and Safety N/A

Human Rights/Legal Implications N/A

Sustainability N/A

Ward-specific impacts N/A

Workforce/Workplace N/A

Situation

12. The auditors identified 2 items that have been adjusted in the final accounts, these 
are detailed below;

I. An adjustment of £1.9 million was added to Capital Adjustment Account and 
should have been included in the Revaluation Reserve; this was a notional 
adjustment to the accounts and had no direct financial impact.

II. The Housing Benefits Subsidy Claim was resubmitted due to calculation of 
housing rent rebates including future year payments. This reduced the 
2018/19 claim by £238,000 and this was reflected in the final outturn report 
presented to Cabinet on 15 July.

13. The auditors identified another 3 errors which following discussions with the auditors 
it was agreed not to adjust in the 2018/19 accounts. The items identified will be 
adjusted during the current financial year and reflected correctly when closing the 
accounts for 2019/20. The effect of actioning these adjustments would have reduced 
the surplus by a total of £67,000 and these are listed below:

I. Revaluation amount of £365,000 was credited to the revaluation reserve and 
should have been reflected in services.

II. £149,000 formula error on the external valuer’s report.

III. £149,000 of assets that did require indexing on the external valuer’s report.

Page 218



14. The only other items to bring to the attention of the Committee are:

I. Prior Period Adjustment – In 2017/18 the council adopted the policy to follow 
the accounting for forward contracts on fixed rate debt instruments for the 
forward starting loans. On that basis cash flow hedge accounting was applied 
to remove the Profit and Loss volatility and set up a cash flow hedge reserve. 
This accounting policy was reviewed in 2018/19 and it was established that 
the forward starting loans be re-classified as loan commitments and not 
treated as a derivative. This simpler form of accounting also removed the 
need for complex cash flow hedging transactions. This change to the policy 
reduced the surplus for 2017/18 by £14,000.

II. Pension Fund – The McCloud Judgement was a ruling that younger workers 
were being discriminated against in the pension scheme and had been subject 
to an appeal. Although this was directly related to Judges and Firefighters the 
ruling could have implications for all Local Government Public Sector 
organisations. In real terms this could increase the council’s pension liability 
and the possible future value of this has been calculated by the Actuary at 
£722,000. The council was unaware of this at the time of publishing the draft 
accounts and it was agreed with the auditors that we would not adjust for this 
in the current year accounts.

Risk Analysis

15.

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

There are no risks 
as the accounts 
have been subject 
to an external audit

N/A N/A N/A

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



UTTLESFORD DISTRICT COUNCIL

Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, Essex CB11 4ER
Telephone (01799) 510510, Fax (01799) 510550 
Textphone Users 18001
Email uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk  Website www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Chief Executive: Dawn French

BDO LLP   
16 The Havens    
Ransomes Europark    
Ipswich    
IP3 9SJ
  
Dear Sirs

Financial statements of Uttlesford District Council for the year ended 31 March 2019

We confirm that the following representations given to you in connection with your audit of 
the Group and the Council’ financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are made 
to the best of our knowledge and belief, and after having made appropriate enquiries of other 
officers and members of the Council.

The Director of Finance and Corporate Services has fulfilled his responsibilities for the 
preparation and presentation of the Group and the Council financial statements as set out in 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and in particular that the financial statements give 
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and the Council as of 31 March 
2019 and of its income and expenditure and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

We have fulfilled our responsibilities on behalf of the Council, as set out in the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015, to make arrangements for the proper administration of the Council’s 
financial affairs, to conduct a review at least once in a year of the effectiveness of the system 
of internal control and approve the Annual Governance Statement, to approve the Statement 
of Accounts (which include the financial statements), and for making accurate 
representations to you.

We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you 
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence. In addition, all the accounting records of 
the Council have been made available to you for the purpose of your audit and all the 
transactions undertaken by the Council have been properly reflected and recorded in the 
accounting records. All other records and related information, including minutes of 
management and other meetings have been made available to you.

Going concern
We have made an assessment of the Group and the Council’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial 
statements were approved for release. As a result of our assessment we consider that the 
Group and the Council is able to continue to operate as a going concern and that it is 
appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. Furthermore, we 
confirm that the disclosures included in the financial statements are sufficient. 

Page 221



In making our assessment we did not consider there to be any material uncertainty relating 
to events or conditions that individually or collectively may cast significant doubt on the 
Group and the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Post balance sheet events
There have been no events since the balance sheet date which either requires changes to 
be made to the figures included in the financial statements or to be disclosed by way of a 
note. Should any material events of this type occur, we will advise you accordingly.

Litigation and claims
We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 
should be considered when preparing the financial statements and these have been 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting standards.

Laws and regulations
In relation to those laws and regulations which provide the legal framework within which the 
Council’s business is conducted and which are central to our ability to conduct our business, 
we have disclosed to you all instances of possible non-compliance of which we are aware 
and all actual or contingent consequences arising from such instances of non-compliance. 

Fraud and error
We are responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, designing, implementing and 
maintaining internal control, to, among other things, help assure the preparation of the 
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and 
preventing and detecting fraud and error.

We have considered the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated due 
to fraud and have identified no significant risks.

To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud involving 
management or employees. Additionally, we are not aware of any fraud or suspected fraud 
involving any other party that could materially affect the financial statements.

To the best of our knowledge we are not aware of any allegations of fraud or suspected 
fraud affecting the financial statements that have been communicated by employees, former 
employees, analysts, regulators or any other party.

Misstatements
We attach a schedule showing uncorrected misstatements that you have identified, which 
we acknowledge that you request we correct. Where appropriate we have explained our 
reasons for not correcting such misstatements below. In our opinion, the effects of not 
recording such identified financial statement misstatements are, both individually and in the 
aggregate, immaterial to the financial statements as a whole.

Related party transactions
We have disclosed to you the identity of all related parties and all the related party 
relationships and transactions of which we are aware. We have appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed such relationships and transactions in accordance with the applicable financial 
reporting framework.

Other than as disclosed in note 15.2 to the financial statements, there were no loans, 
transactions or arrangements between any Group entity and Council members or their 
connected persons at any time in the year which were required to be disclosed.

Page 222



The disclosures in the financial statements concerning the controlling party of the Council 
are accurate. 

Carrying value and classification of assets and liabilities
We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification 
of assets or liabilities reflected in the consolidated Group and Council financial statements.

Confirmation
We confirm that the above representations are made on the basis of enquiries of 
management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, where appropriate, of 
inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy ourselves that we can properly 
make each of the above representations to you.

We confirm that the financial statements are free of material misstatements, including 
omissions.

We acknowledge our legal responsibilities regarding disclosure of information to you as 
auditors and confirm that so far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information 
needed by you in connection with preparing your audit report of which you are unaware. 
Each director and member has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director 
or member of the Council in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that you are aware of that information.

Yours faithfully
  

Adrian Webb
Director of Finance and Corporate Services 

Councillor Edward Oliver
Chair of the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee

Date:

Page 223



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee

Title: Cyber Security Update

Date:
Thursday 25 July 
2019

Report 
Author:

Nicola Wittman, Assistant Director – ICT & 
Facilities
nwittman@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary

The report below was presented to the Governance, Audit and 
Performance Committee at its last meeting, on Thursday, 30 May. 
However, with the change in membership of the Committee, it is being 
re-presented so new members can obtain an understanding of the 
cyber issues facing the authority and the steps being taken to combat 
them.
As per the report, there is still a requirement for a lead member to be 
appointed responsible for oversight of cyber security.

Recommendations

1. It is recommended that the Committee

a. notes the update; and

b. appoints a member of the Committee as the lead Member 
responsible for oversight of cyber security.

Financial Implications

2. All financial implications are funded from the existing budget.

Background Papers

3. The following papers were referred to by the author in the 
preparation of this report and are available for inspection from the 
author of the report: none

Impact

Page 225

Agenda Item 5



Communication/Consultation All staff are made aware of the importance 
of vigilance around cyber security and the 
consequences of an attack.

Community Safety A cyber-attack could have impacts on the 
ability of the Council to undertake its core 
functions such as paying Housing Benefit.


Equalities None

Health and Safety A cyber-attack could have impacts on the 
ability of the Council to undertake its core 
functions such as emptying bins which 
could have Health and safety implications.

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

None

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts None

Workforce/Workplace All staff are made aware of the importance 
of vigilance around cyber security and the 
consequences of an attack.

Situation

4. As part of the National Cyber Security Strategy, the Local 
Government Association (LGA) was granted phased funding 
by the Cabinet Office to ensure that councils are as resilient 
against cyber-attacks as possible.

5. The first phase of the work took place over summer 2018. Every 
council in England completed an online stocktake questionnaire 
concerning their cyber security arrangements. The LGA worked with 
the Cabinet Office, the National Cyber Security Centre (NCSC), the 
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), 
the Society of Information Technology Managers (Socitm), the Society 
of Local Authority Chief Executes (Solace) and the Warning, Advice 
and Reporting Points (WARPS) to develop this programme.

6. The first phase aimed to:
• Capture existing cyber security arrangements
• Identify good practice – and those councils delivering it
• Identify risks – and those councils at risk.

7. The stocktake took a broad definition of cyber security that 
incorporated leadership, governance, partnerships and training 
arrangements, beyond the traditional information technology (IT) 

Page 226



security controls and adoption of standards that underpins cyber 
security's technology practices.

8. The study team applied a weighting and scoring method to analyse 
the results of the stocktake for each council and to provide them with 
their 'RAG' (red, amber or green) rating. A greater level of granularity 
was required to understand the distribution of results; therefore, the 
amber category was further broken down into three segments to 
analyse councils at the cusp of the red and green ratings.

• Amber-Red
• Amber-Amber
• Amber-Green

9. Each council received an individual assessment that provided a RAG 
rating of their cyber security arrangements broken down into five 
categories with relative weighting

• Leadership, reporting and ownership (30%)
• Governance, structures and policies (25%)
• Partnerships, information, advice and guidance (20%)
• Technology, standards and compliance (15%)
• Training and awareness (10%)

90 percent of councils scored an amber rating (roundings mean the 
chart adds up to 101%)

10.The following chart shows the further breakdown of the Amber section

• Amber-Red (19%)
• Amber – Amber (38%)
• Amber-Green (33%)

Page 227



11. The results were then broken down by council type. As might be 
expected, the larger bodies have more resources available and 
therefore have more Green and Amber-Green councils.

Uttlesford’s Assessment Results

12.The Council received an Amber-Amber rating for the assessment.
13.Phase Two of the LGA funding was a round of bidding for funds to 

help councils move forward with their cyber security. Uttlesford was 
successful in being granted £5,000 which has been used to move 
forward with the business continuity plan and training.

14.A lot of other work has been completed since the last assessment; 
however the following work still needs to be finished to achieve a 
Green classification at the next review.

 Leadership, reporting and ownership - a councillor needs 
to be responsible as the lead Member for Cyber Security 
oversight, along with cyber security reporting into a committee.

 Governance, Structures and policies - the Council’s 
overarching business continuity process to be updated to include 
sections on cyber security arrangements.

 Overview of Technology, standards and compliance - the 
council is working towards accreditation of Cyber Essentials and 
Payment Card Industry (PCI) standards. This will take some time 
to complete.

Page 228



 Training and Awareness - A Cyber training course is being 
tested by a team of staff and this will be rolled out to all staff once 
operational.

15. It is expected that the LGA stocktake will be redone in August.

Risk Analysis

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

Failure to appoint 
a Member 
responsible for 
cyber security 
may leave the 
Council unable to 
bid for future 
funding rounds.

4 2 The report 
recommends the 
appointment of such a 
role.

1 = Little or no risk or impact

2 = Some risk or impact – action may be 
necessary. 

3 = Significant risk or impact – action 
required

4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 229



This page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee

Title: Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 
2018-19

Report 
Author:

Sheila Bronson, Audit Manager
sbronson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Thursday, 25 July 
2019

Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to advise on the work carried out by Internal Audit 
during 2018/19 and provide an overall opinion on the Council’s control 
environment for 2018/19.  The report also shows the state of compliance with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which came into effect on 
01 April 2013 and were revised and updated from 01 April 2017.

Recommendations

2. That Internal Audit coverage, the Internal Audit opinion and compliance with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards are noted.

Financial Implications

3. None. There are no costs associated with the recommendations.

Background Papers

4. None

Impact 

5.       

Communication/Consultation The Internal Audit Final Reports referred to 
in this report have been circulated to 
Members.
This report has been discussed with the 
Corporate Management Team at its 
meeting 10 July 2019.

Community Safety none

Equalities none

Health and Safety none

Page 231

Agenda Item 6



Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

This report partly informs the Annual 
Governance Statement. The Statement is 
published to complement the Council’s 
Statement of Accounts.  This is a 
requirement set out in the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1)(a) 
and (b) that all relevant bodies prepare an 
annual governance statement.

Sustainability none

Ward-specific impacts none

Workforce/Workplace none

Situation

6. Internal Audit is statutory service that forms part of the Council’s corporate 
governance framework.  The service is an assurance function that primarily 
provides an independent and objective opinion on the management of 
operational risk, control and governance.  

7. Internal Audit work partly informs the Annual Governance Statement which is 
published with the Council’s Statement of Accounts.

8. The Internal Audit Work Programme is a rolling programme of planned audit 
work subjected to regular reviews and updating at strategic points throughout 
the year to take into consideration changes in priority, audit resources and 
additional unplanned time requirement. 

9. Throughout 2018/19 the Internal Audit Manager reported to Members of the 
Governance, Audit & Performance Committee on details of work undertaken 
by Internal Audit and on implemented and outstanding Internal Audit 
recommendations.

10. Internal Audit resource is 1 full-time audit manager, I full-time auditor and 1 
part-time (0.7 FTE) auditor.

11. The Internal Audit Manager was seconded to lead the Council’s GDPR 
Project Team for twelve months from 01 August 2017. This secondment was 
extended initially to 31 October 2018 and then extended further to 31 
December 2018. At the start of this secondment in 2017, the part-time auditor 
post was increased to a full time post from 01 August 2017 to 31 July 2018 to 
ensure that the Internal Audit service would be able continue to give the level 
of assurance required.

12. The extension of the Audit Manager’s secondment to 31 December 2018; 
staff absences due to sickness and the part-time post being vacated in 
January but not filled until June 2019, have had a major impact on the Internal 
Audit service in 2018/19.  

Page 232



13. As reported to this Committee at its meeting on 07 February 2019, the audit 
programme was reviewed and revised in January 2019.  The decision was 
taken to extend work on the 2018/19 Internal Audit Programme to 30 June 
2019 to ensure a meaningful overall audit opinion on the Council’s control 
environment for 2018/19 could be given in this Annual Report and Opinion. 
External resource was bought in to assist in completion of two of the key 
financial audits.

14. The original resource predicted in the Internal Audit Strategy 2018/19 as 
presented to this committee September 2018 and actual resource needed to 
complete the 2018/19 Internal Audit Programme work by 30 June 2019 were:

PREDICTED IN IA STRATEGY 
2018/19

ACTUAL RESOUCE needed

01/03/18 TO 30/06/19

01/03/18 
to 
31/07/18

01/08/18 
to 
31/10/18

31/10/18 
to 
31/03/19

01/03/18 
to 
31/12/18

01/01/19 
to 
10/03/19

11/03/19 
to 
09/06/19

10/06/19 
to 
30/06/19

Audit Manager 0.20 
FTE

0.20 
FTE

FT 0.20 
FTE

FT FT FT

Internal 
Auditor

FT FT FT FT FT FT FT

Internal 
Auditor

FT 0.7 FTE 0.7 FTE 0.7 FTE

Internal 
Auditor - 
external

20 days 
bought 

in

2018/19 Planned Audit Work – Revisions to the Internal Audit Programme

15. In the Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme August 2018 there were a 
total of 29 audits on the initial Internal Audit Programme 2018/19. Following 
the January 2019 review, this was revised to a total of 22 audits plus the 
Corporate Counter Fraud Risk Assessment.

16. Of the revised 22 audits undertaken in 2018/19:
  7 were Key Financial Audits;
  2 were Corporate Audits;
 13 were Other audits.

17. In the January 2019 review, 255 days were allocated to these audits as:  
 Key Financial Audits  -  60 days (24%) 
 Corporate Audits -  45 days (18%)
 Other Audits - 145 days (57%)
 Corporate Counter Fraud -     5 days ( 1%)

Page 233



18. On completion of our 2018/19 audit work actual days taken were 245 days 
against the revised allocated 255 days.  

19. The actual audit days used were
 Key Financial Audits  -  58 days (23%) 
 Corporate Audits -  48 days (20%)
 Other Audits - 137days (56%)
 Corporate Counter Fraud -     2 days (1%)

Annual Audit Opinion

20. Our audit opinions are formed on the basis of the number of 
recommendations made and level of risks associated with them.  

21. The table reproduced at appendix A shows the audit work undertaken; the 
revised potential audit days following the January 2019 review; the actual audit 
days taken to complete the 2018/19 audit work; the audit opinions formed and 
the number of recommendations made as a result of our audit work.    

22. For the 22 audits in the 2018/19 audit programme on which an opinion has 
been given, 58 recommendations have been made to improve the Council’s 
control environment.  This is in comparison with the 70 recommendations 
made in the 20 completed 2016/17 audits and 53 recommendations made in 
the 20 completed audits in the 2015/16 audit programmes.  

23. The 57 recommendations arising from our 2018/19 audit work were assessed 
as follows:

 2 recommendations were assessed as level 4 
(fundamental and requiring immediate attention and priority action)

 26 recommendations were assessed as level 3 
(significant that should be addressed within six months)

 20 recommendations were assessed as level 2 
(important that should be addressed within twelve months)

 10 recommendations were assessed as level 1
(merit attention and would improve overall control)  

24. For the 22 audits on which an opinion on the level of assurance that risks 
material to the achievement of the objectives for the audited areas were 
managed and controlled has been given:

 the opinion for 1 audit was ‘little assurance’ 

 the opinions for 2 audits were ‘limited assurance’

 the opinions for 10 audits were ‘satisfactory assurance’ and 

Page 234



 the opinions for 9 audits were ‘substantial assurance’
 

25. For the 7 Key Financial Audits on which an opinion has been given on the 
level of assurance that risks material to the achievement of the objectives for 
the audited areas were managed and controlled:

 the opinions for 4 audits were ‘satisfactory assurance’ and

 the opinions for 3 audits were ‘substantial assurance’

26.A ‘little assurance’ opinion was given in the report issued for the audit of 
Corporate Equality and Diversity 2018/19 in which we made:

8 x level 3 recommendations and
1 x level 2 recommendation

At 30 June 2019, 1 of the recommendations made has been implemented; the 
remaining recommendations are expected to be implemented by their due 
dates in 2019/20.

27.A ‘limited assurance’ opinion was given in the report issued for the audit of 
Environmental Health Enforcement 2018/19, in which we made:

4 x level three recommendations and
1 x level two recommendations 

At 30 June 2019, 3 of the recommendations made have been implemented; 
the remaining recommendations are expected to be implemented by their due 
dates in 2019/20.

28.A ‘limited assurance’ opinion was given in the report issued for the audit of 
Housing Planned Maintenance 2018/19, in which we made:

1 x level four recommendations and
2 x level three recommendations 

At 30 June 2019, the level 4 recommendation has been implemented; the 
remaining recommendations are expected to be implemented by their due 
dates in 2019/20.

29. Copies of the Final Reports for completed audits that had been issued were 
circulated to Committee Members and are available on the Council’s Intranet. 

 
30. In determining the overall audit opinion for the year, the factors in paragraphs 

22 to 28 have been taken into consideration and weighted accordingly.  

31. Therefore, our audit opinion on the control environment for 2018/19 is that 
risks material to the achievement of the objectives for the audited areas 

Page 235



identified by Internal Audit are, on balance, satisfactorily managed and 
controlled.  

Implementation of Internal Audit Recommendations

32. To stimulate improvement and reduce the likelihood of error or loss, 
management have a responsibility for ensuring the recommendations 
contained within Internal Audit reports are implemented.  To encourage the 
timely implantation of agreed recommendations all management action and 
timetable for implementation is agreed prior to the issue of the final report.

33. All recommendations, agreed management action and timetable for 
implementation are input into Pentana for Internal Audit management 
purposes.

34. Internal Audit manages the follow-up of implementation of recommendations 
through a combination of updates from responsible officers following automatic 
trigger notifications sent out by Pentana; regular reporting to meetings of this 
Committee and a rolling follow up programme at six months after the latest 
implantation date of the agreed management action or as part of the next audit 
of an area.

35. All audit reports are addressed to the member of CMT responsible for the 
audited area and copied to the Chief Executive, the Director of Finance and 
Corporate Services, the Director of Public Services and the Assistant Director 
of Governance & Legal.  

36. Members of the Governance, Audit & Performance Committee received 
copies of all audit Terms of Reference and Final Reports.
  

37. Of the 58 recommendations made in Audits from the 2018/19 audit 
programme to date: 

 15 have been implemented;

 43 have yet to reach their due date and will continue to be monitored 
through Pentana with progress reported to this Committee during 2018/19.

External Auditors

38. Liaison meetings and informal ad hoc meetings were held between the Audit 
Managers of Internal Audit and the External Auditor to discuss current work 
being undertaken and future work plans.

39. The work of the Council’s Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) 2017.  The PSIAS encompass the 
mandatory elements of the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF), additional requirements and 
interpretations for the UK public sector have been inserted in such a way as to 

Page 236



preserve the integrity of the text of the mandatory elements of the IPPF. The 
PSIAS are mandatory for all internal auditors working in the UK public sector.  

40. An External Quality Assessment of the performance of Internal Audit and its 
conformance with the PSIAS was undertaken in September 2017. An essential 
element of this assessment was to ensure that the annual audit opinion issued 
by Internal Audit may be relied upon as a key source of evidence and 
assurance.

41. The External Assessment concluded that the Internal Audit service generally 
conforms with the expectations of the PSIAS and made 15 recommendations 
to reflect that there are areas in which the service can be further improved and 
enhanced.  Lack of resource has resulted in implementation of only 3 
recommendations during 2018/19, the service will be working to implement the 
remaining recommendations during 2019/20.

42. It can also be confirmed that the internal audit activity is organisationally 
independent and that the independence of Internal Audit has not been 
compromised during 2018/19. Internal audit reports to the Assistant Director of 
Governance and Legal (Monitoring Officer) but has a direct and unrestricted 
access to all senior management and the Governance, Audit & Performance 
Committee.  

43.Quality control procedures have been established within the Internal Audit 
Services as follows:

 Individual Audit Reviews – Working papers and reports are all subject to 
independent review to ensure that the audit tests undertaken are 
appropriate, evidenced and the correct conclusions drawn.  All reports are 
reviewed to ensure that they are consistent with working papers and in 
layout.  Whilst these reviews invariably identify issues for clarification, the 
overall conclusion of the quality assurance checks is that work is being 
completed and documented thoroughly.

 Customer Satisfaction – A Post Audit Feedback form is issued to the main 
auditees on completion of an audit. This form was revised for 2018/19 
seeks the views of auditees on how the audit. Based on the Post Audit 
Questionnaire forms returned, the average scores for 2018/19 audits 
completed were:

o 83% satisfaction on the way the audit was conducted, the report, 
recommendations made and 

o an overall satisfaction rating of 4.3 out of 5.  

 All Internal Audit staff are provided with a copy of the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards and the Internal Audit Manual has been updated to reflect 
the requirements of the standards. 

Page 237



44. The above quality control procedures have ensured conformance with the 
PSIAS and that all Internal Audits have been conducted in conformance with 
the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

Review of Performance of the Internal Audit Service against the Current 
Internal Audit Charter

45. The Internal Audit Charter was reported to and approved by the Performance 
& Audit Committee on 15 November 2018.

46. Based on the information provided in this report on the completion of the 
2018/19 Internal Audit Programme, it is considered that the requirements of 
the Charter were met during the year.

Risk Analysis

47.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

No internal audit 
assurance is 
provided to those 
charged with 
governance

1 
Internal Audit 
work programme 
for 2018/19

3 
Failure to provide 
internal audit 
assurance could 
lead to inability to 
meet corporate 
and operational 
objectives and  
Adverse External 
Auditor report 
and damage to 
the Authority’s 
reputation

The External Auditor 
reviews the outcome 
of Internal Audit 
work.

The performance of 
the Internal Audit 
Section is monitored 
by senior 
management and 
Members.

Those charged 
with governance do 
not respond to 
Internal Audit 
recommendations.

2 
Reports can 
contain re-
iterations of   
recommendations 
made during 
previous audit 
that have not 
been 
implemented.

3 
There would be 
varying levels of 
impact from any 
non-
implementation of 
the 
recommendations 
given the high 
significance of 
the majority of 
control risks 
identified.

There is an 
escalation procedure.

Internal audit reports 
are followed up to 
ensure compliance.  

The outcome of 
Internal Audit work is 
reviewed by the 
External Auditor and 
by the Governance, 
Audit & Performance 
Committee.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required

Page 238



4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 239



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit Annual Report & Opinion 2018/19 – Appendix A 
 

ref Audit Revised 
potential 

days 

overall 
days 
taken  

 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Audit Opinion Status at 
12/07/19 

No of 
Recs 

4 3 2 1 

01C Corporate Counter Fraud 
 

5 2 Corporate Fraud Risk Assessment in process 

02C Corporate Equality & Diversity 
 

35 46 25/10/18 little final 9 0 8 1 0 

03C Corporate Health & Safety 
 

10 2 12/07/19 satisfactory final 0 0 0 0 0 

04KF HR & Payroll (combined) 
 

15 10 20/06/19 substantial final 0 0 0 0 0 

05KF Budgets 
 

5 4  substantial draft 0 0 0 0 1 

06KF Cash & Bank  
 

5 8 12/07/19 
 

satisfactory final 7 0 2 5 1 

07KF Contracts & Procurement  
 

10 10 18/06/19 satisfactory final 6 0 0 4 2 

08KF Creditors  
 

10 10 05/04/19 satisfactory final 5 0 2 2 1 

09KF Rents 
 

10 9 11/09/18 satisfactory final 1 0 1 0 0 

10KF Income, Fees & Charges 
 

5 7 30/10/18 substantial final 1 0 0 1 0 

11O Museum 0 Included in 2019/20 Audit Programme 

12O Democratic Services 
 

10 9 08/11/18 substantial final 1 0 0 1 0 

13O Legal Services 
 

10 9 21/01/19 substantial final 0 0 0 0 0 

14O Community Safety  
 

10 6  satisfactory draft 2 1 1 0 0 

15O Environmental Health – Enforcement 
 

15 14 23/11/18 limited final 5 0 4 1 0 

16O Env Health - Disabled Facilities Grants 
  

10 14 18/04/19 satisfactory final 4 0 2 2 0 

17O Env Health - Empty Homes & Private 
Sector Housing 
 

10 7 28/03/19 substantial final 1 0 0 1 0 

P
age 241



Internal Audit Annual Report & Opinion 2018/19 – Appendix A 
 

 ref Audit Revised 
potential 

days 

overall 
days 
taken 

 

Final 
Report 
Issued 

Audit Opinion Status at 
30/06/19 

No of 
Recs 

4 3 2 1 

18O Housing Property Services - Planned 
Maintenance 

15 20 10/06/19 limited final 3 1 2 0 0 

19O Housing Property Services - Stock & 
Voids 

0 Included in 2019/20 Audit Programme  

20O Housing & Health - Property Services - 
Stores 

10 8 28/03/19 substantial final 3 0 0 1 2 

21O ICT & Facilities - ICT Security 
 

10 12 11/07/19 substantial final 1 0 0 1 0 

22O Planning - Building Control Service 
and Fees 

10 11  satisfactory draft 4 0 2 1 1 

23O Planning - Support & Business 
 

10 8 28/05/19 substantial final 0 0 0 0 0 

24O Economic Development Service - 
business parks and communities 

0 May be included for audit in 2019/20 Audit Programme, depending on time 
available Jan-Mar 2019 

25O Economic Development Service - 
stansted airport & LSP economic growth, 
jobs & prosperity 

0 May be included for audit in 2019/20 Audit Programme, depending on time 
available Jan-Mar 2019 

26O Planning – Enforcement 
 

15 10 02/10/18 satisfactory final 2 0 1 1 0 

27O Neighbourhood Plans 
 

0 May be included for audit in 2019/20 Audit Programme, depending on time 
available Jan-Mar 2019 

28O Trade Waste   
 

10 9 20/06/19 satisfactory final 2 0 1 1 0 

 TOTAL AUDIT DAYS 255 245    58 2 26 20 10 

P
age 242



Committee: Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee

Title: Internal Audit Strategy and Work Programme 
2019-20

Report 
Author:

Sheila Bronson, Audit Manager
sbronson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Date:
Thursday, 25 July 
2019

Summary

1. The Council has arrangements in place to ensure risks to the Council 
achieving its objectives are identified and managed. This report informs 
Members of the review and updating of the Internal Audit Strategy and Work 
Programme 2019/20. 

Recommendations

2. That Members approve the revised Internal Audit Strategy and Work 
Programme 2019/20.

Financial Implications

3. None. There are no costs associated with the recommendations in this report.

Background Papers

4. None

Impact 

5.       

Communication/Consultation The initial Internal Audit Work Programme 
2019/20 and the Internal Audit Strategic 
Programme 2019/20 referred to in this 
report have been agreed with Corporate 
Management Team, Senior Management 
Team and with The Governance, Audit and 
Performance Committee at its May 2019 
meeting

Community Safety none

Equalities none

Page 243

Agenda Item 7



Health and Safety none

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

none

Sustainability none

Ward-specific impacts none

Workforce/Workplace none

Situation

6. The work of Uttlesford District Council’s (UDC) Internal Audit is governed by 
the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS) which comprise 
of the definition of internal auditing, a Code of Ethics for internal auditors 
working in the public sector and the Standards themselves.  The PSIAS are 
mandatory for all internal auditors working in the UK public sector.

7. The PSIAS require that there must be a risk-based internal audit plan that 
takes into account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion 
and assurance framework.   It must be incorporated in or be linked to a 
strategic or high-level statement of how the internal audit service will be 
delivered and developed in accordance with the Internal Audit Charter and 
how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities.

8. The Internal Audit Strategy and Work Programme 2019/20 in the Appendix to 
this report details the production of the Internal Audit Strategic and Work 
Programmes for the current financial year.

Risk Analysis

9.      

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

Adverse External 
comment if the 
Internal Audit 
Charter and 
Strategy do not 
comply with the 
PSIAS

1 
Internal Audit 
function is an 
integral part of 
the Council

2 
Statutory 
requirement, 
adverse 
External 
Auditor Report

Annual review of 
Strategy and Work 
Programme

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 244



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Internal Audit 
STRATEGY and WORK 

PROGRAMME 
2019/20 

 
 
 

July 2019 
 
 
 
 

  
Page 245



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 1 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY 2019/20 
 
 
CONTENTS 
 
 
1. Introduction 
 
2. Internal Audit Resources 2019/20  
 
3. Internal Audit Strategic Programme 2019/20 
 
4.   Internal Audit Work Programme 2019/20 
  

5.   Types of Audits  
 
6.   Audit Reports & Recommendations 
 
7.  Reporting to CMT and Members 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 
Assurance Opinion Criteria and Risk Level Definitions 
 
 

Page 246



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 2 

 

1 Introduction  
 

Background 
1.1 The work of Uttlesford District Council’s Internal Audit is governed by the UK Public 

Sector Internal Audit Standards 2017 (PSIAS) which comprise of the definition of 
internal auditing, a Code of Ethics for internal auditors working in the public sector and 
the Standards themselves.  The PSIAS are mandatory for all internal auditors working 
in the UK public sector. 
 

1.2 Internal Audit is defined in the PSIAS as follows: 
 

“Internal auditing is an independent, objective, assurance and consulting 
activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It 
helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, 
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk 
management, control, and governance processes.” 

 
1.3 The PSIAS require that there must be a risk-based internal audit plan that takes into 

account the requirement to produce an annual internal audit opinion on the Council’s 
framework of governance, risk management and control.  It must incorporate in or be 
linked to a strategic or high-level statement of how the internal audit service will be 
delivered and developed in accordance with the internal audit charter and how it links 
to the organisational objectives and priorities. 

 
1.4 The annual Internal Audit Strategy provides details on the production of the Internal 

Audit Strategic and Work Programmes for the current financial year. 

 
 
2.   Internal Audit Resources 2019/20 
 
2.1 Internal Audit is provided by the Council’s in-house team, comprising of the Internal 

Audit Manager and two Internal Auditors (1.7FTE).  The vacant part-time Internal 
Auditor post was filled from 10 June 2019.   

 
2.2 The Internal Audit resource for 2019/20 is: 
  

 01/04/19 – 
09/06/19 

10/06/19 – 
31/03/20 

Internal Audit Manager FT FT 

Internal Auditor FT FT 

Internal Auditor  0.7 FTE 

 
2.3 Staff absence due to sickness had a major impact on the Internal Audit service in 

2018/19.  To mitigate this 90 days of the audit programme have been allocated to 

Page 247



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 3 

 

completing the Residual 2018/19 Internal Audit work at the beginning of the 2019/20 
financial year.   

 
2.4 The volume of audit work planned for 2019/20 has been reduced to allow it to be 

completed within the nine months from 01 July 2018 to 31 March 2019.  
 
2.5 To be able to provide an acceptable level of assurance on the Council’s  management 

of its operational risks, controls and governance;  priority has been given to Risk Level 
4 and 3 work over any other work on the Internal Audit Strategic Programme.  

 
2.6 Special investigations and unplanned work can have high impact on Internal Audit 

resources.  Any special investigation and unplanned work requests will be individually 
assessed and potentially outsourced if it is considered there is inadequate audit 
resource available to undertake the work. 

  
2.7 Giving one-off advice to departments on a range of control issues and allowing further 

time on audits where further testing is required also adds to the pressure on 
resources.  If extended unplanned work is deemed to be necessary, then resource 
levels and the impact on the Audit Work Programme and the Strategic Programme will 
be taken into consideration. 

 
 

3. Internal Audit Strategic Programme 2019/20 
 
3.1  The Internal Audit Strategic Programme details all potential audit areas at both 

corporate and service area levels of the Council and forms the starting point for the 
annual audit planning process.   

 
3.2 In May 2019, the Internal Audit Strategic Programme was reviewed in conjunction with 

the Corporate and Senior Management Teams to ensure that it remained up to date 
and continues to take account of emerging risks and service developments ensuring 
the focus of Internal Audit work remains relevant to the Council’s vision and current 
priorities.  The Internal Audit Strategic Programme was presented to the Governance, 
Audit & Performance Audit (GAP) Committee at its May 2019 meeting.  

 
Risk Assessment 

3.3 The 2019/20 Internal Audit Work Programme is risk based as far as is possible. Each 
potential audit area identified in the Internal Audit Strategic Programme is subject to 
an audit needs risk assessment taking into consideration:  

 

 The Council’s Corporate Plan Actions and the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan 
and Service Plans; 
 

 The Corporate and Strategic Risk Registers; 
 

Page 248



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 4 

 

 Key Performance Indicators and Performance Indicators; 
 

 Key Financial audits;  
 

 Interest to Internal Audit – e.g. the level of past audit opinions; 
recommendations made; recommendations implemented; fraud risks; volume, 
value and complexities of transactions etc.; 
 

 Specifically requested Directorate & Service high risk areas or services 
following consultation with CMT; 
 

 Audits carried forward from the previous year’s Audit Programme  and any 
overdue audits from the Strategic Programme; 
 

 Weaknesses identified in the Annual Governance Statement; 
 

 Issues raised by the GAP Committee; 
 

 Audit resource availability. 
 

3.4 Risk levels are determined according to the Council’s corporate method of risk 
scoring, assessing the potential risks to the Council if audit is not carried out: 

 
• Risk Level 4 - Matters that are considered fundamental that require immediate 

attention and priority action;  
 

• Risk Level 3 - Matters that are considered significant that should be addressed 

within six months; 
 

• Risk Level 2 - Matters that are considered important that should be addressed within  

twelve months; 
 

• Risk Level 1 - Matters that merit attention and would improve overall control. 
 
3.5  The audit needs risk assessment will influence the frequency of audit review and the 

estimated resource requirements to meet the expectation that all potential audit areas 
will have some level of audit review at least once over a five year period.   

 
 

4.  Internal Audit Work Programme 2019/20 
 

Planning 
4.1 The Internal Audit Work Programme for 2019/20 is a rolling programme of planned 

audit work expected to be undertaken during 2019/20 from 01 July 2019 and is subject 
to regular review and updating at strategic points throughout the year: 

Page 249



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 5 

 

  

 June 2019 to determine the proposed audit work for quarter 2 of the new  
financial year; 

 

 October 2019 to determine proposed audit work for quarters 3 and 4 of the 
financial year taking into account the available Internal Audit resource required 
to ensure delivery of the Internal Audit Work Programme 2019/20 and  

 
• To consider emerging risks and service developments;  

 
• To ensure the focus of Internal Audit work remains relevant to the Council’s 

vision and current priorities; 
 

• To be robust enough to be able to provide an opinion on the Council’s 
control environment in 2019/20 the Internal Audit Annual Report and 
Opinion 

 

 January 2020 – to determine the scope of audit work to be undertaken during 
the remainder of the financial year 

 

 at any other relevant point during the year 
 
4.2 In order to preserve the independence of Internal Audit, the final risk assessment and 

selection of areas for inclusion in the Audit Work Programme rests with the Internal 
Audit Manager.  

 
4.3 Agreement was given to the initial Internal Audit Work Programme for 2019/20 by 

CMT and GAP Committee Members in May 2019.  The Audit Work Programme 
defines the area and approximate duration of each audit based on risk assessment; 
time spent in previous audits; previous problems encountered and the level and skill of 
staff involved.  

  
4.4 Audit resources are matched to the areas to be audited and any audits that will not be 

covered will be brought to the attention of the Section 151 Officer, CMT and Members.  
 
4.5 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s control framework for 

inclusion in the Annual Governance Statement; therefore the priority for the Internal 
Audit Service must be to carry out and achieve the planned work as contained in the 
Audit Work Programme. 

 
4.6 The 2019/20 Internal Audit Work Programme has allocated 250 days for all potential 

audit work from 01 July 2019 to 31 March 2020. 
 

 
 

Page 250



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 6 

 

Key Financial Audits 
4.7 Key Financial Audits are the statutory audits Internal Audit are required to undertake 

and are audited on a three year auditing cycle; key financial areas will generally be 
audited every third year unless circumstances dictate otherwise.   

 
4.8 Following the June 2019 review of the Audit Work Programme there are 7 Key 

Financial Audits scheduled for audit work in 2019/20.  The Audit Programme has 70 
audit days provisionally set aside for Key Financial Audits:  
  

KEY FINANCIAL AUDITS provisional 
audit days 

Business Rates 10 

Grants & External Funding received 10 

Insurance 10 

Recovery 10 

Treasury Management 10 

Asset Management 10 

HR & Payroll (combined) 10 
TOTAL provisional audit days 70 

 
4.10 The Section 151 Officer and Assistant Director of Resources will be consulted on 

Terms of Reference for all Key Financial Audits.  
 

Corporate Audits 
4.11 Following the June 2019 review of the Audit Work Programme there are 5 Corporate 

Audits scheduled for work in 2019/20.  The Audit Programme has 35 audit days 
provisionally set aside for Corporate Audits: 

 
 

CORPORATE AUDITS provisional 
audit days 

EU Exit  5 

Consultants and Agency Staff 10 

Equality & Diversity 5 

Health & Safety 5 

Information Governance  10 
TOTAL provisional audit days 35 

 
 

Other Audits 
4.12 Following the June 2019 review of the Internal Audit Work Programme there are 17 

Other Audits scheduled for audit work in 2019/20. The Audit Programme has 145 audit 
days provisionally set aside for these Other Audits: 

 
 
 

Page 251



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 7 

 

OTHER AUDITS provisional 
audit days 

Leisure PFI 5 

Museum 10 

Domestic Waste & Recycling 10 

Members' Allowances & Expenses 10 

Environmental Health - Business Continuity 5 

Environmental Health - Commercial Food Safety 10 

Environmental Health - Emergency Planning 5 

Environmental Health - Imported Food Controls 10 

Environmental Health - Licensing 10 

Environmental Health - Enforcement 5 

Property Services - Repairs Service 10 

Property Services - Right to Buy 10 

Property Services - Stock & Voids 5 

Wellbeing - Allocations 10 

Wellbeing - Homelessness 10 

Development Management 10 

Section 106 Obligations 10 
TOTAL provisional audit days 145 

 
 

Productive Non-Audit Days 
4.13 Productive audit time is also taken up by various non-specific audit work. The Audit 

Programme has 180 days provisionally set aside for this work:  
 

PRODUCTIVE NON-AUDIT DAYS 
 

Provisional 
days 

Residual Audit Work 90 
completion of residual 2018/19 audits.  
 

Follow-up Work 5 
to ensure critical and important recommendations have been implemented 

 

Irregularity Provision 20 
the provision of an independent investigation service on internal matters and to 
review controls post investigation as part of the core audit function 
Consultancy and General Advice 17 
to provide consultancy & advice and to allow for changes in priorities  

 

Committee and Member related work 12 
Committee Report preparation, liaison meetings with the GAP Committee Chair and 
other Members and dealing with Members’ queries; GAP self-assessment. 
Contribution to Corporate Management 20 
to include the Internal Audit Manager and Internal Auditor time spent on corporate 
projects, working groups, elections etc.  
Fraud Related work 10 
to include the Internal Audit Manager’s National Fraud Initiative Key Contact 

Page 252



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 8 

 

responsibilities and counter-fraud and corruption awareness work 
Annual Governance Statement 6 
co-ordination of information and drafting of the Annual Governance Statement 

 
TOTAL productive non-audit days 180 

 
Unplanned Work 

4.17 Unplanned work will be assessed and, if judged high priority, carried out in preference 
to items in the Audit Work Programme in accordance with the following criteria:  

 
• The risks if the work is not carried out and  

 
• The impact on the Internal Audit Work Programme. 

 
4.18 If judged medium to low priority it will be appraised at in the next Audit Work 

Programme review and considered for possible inclusion in the 2020/21 Audit Work 
Programme. 

 
  

5.  Types of Audits  
 
5.1 The audit needs risk assessment gives an indication of the level of risk.  The Internal 

Audit Manager uses her judgement to assess the approximate amount of time to 
allocate to each area on the audit plan based on previous time spent, resources 
available etc.  Although potential days have been given against audits, lean auditing 
methodology helps us to reduce the actual time taken on an audit by focussing where 
possible on the highest risk areas and controls. 

 
5.2 At the start of each audit assignment, we will undertake a planning, evaluation and 

assessment process to decide the level or type of audit fieldwork that needs to be 
undertaken.  Prior to Terms of Reference being issued for the audit, we will evaluate 
all of the information gathered through the planning stage and at that point we will 
decide on the type of audit to be undertaken: 

 
• Standard Audit - concentrating on the potential risk areas identified at the audit 

planning stage or 
 

• Audit Review - to be the first option where it's known no major changes have 
occurred. This can be tailored to specific areas of concern or offered if limited 
ad hoc audit work is requested and may incorporate some method of self-
assessment and include a level of direct Auditee involvement. 

 
5.3 Terms of Reference are copied to Members of the GAP Committee. 
 
5.4 Regular review and assessment is an integral part of lean auditing methodology; 

where field work identifies further testing is required an audit type can be amended.  If 

Page 253



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 9 

 

additional work leads to the time allocated being exceeded and the Internal Audit 
Manager considers that this work is required, extended time may be taken out of 
consultancy and general advice unplanned time.  

 

 
6.  Audit Reports & Recommendations 
 
6.1. Reporting protocols will be as described in the Internal Audit Charter  
  
 Recommendations 
6.2 All Internal Audit recommendations have a risk level given to them.  This is determined 

according to the Council’s corporate method of risk scoring, assessing the potential 
risks to the service and/or the Council if the recommendation is not implemented 
within the agreed timescale. Risk levels definitions are presented in Appendix A. 

 
6.3 It is Internal Audit’s expectation to reach agreement at the draft report stage with 

auditees on recommendations, management actions and implementation dates.   
However, it is for management to determine whether or not to accept the Internal Audit 
recommendations and to recognise and accept the implications of not taking action.  
Management must formally respond giving reasons for their decisions which will be 
recorded on the Final Report. 

 
6.4 Final Reports will record the Internal Audit opinion and overall comment on the 

effectiveness of the service area audited.  The Internal Audit opinion criteria are 
presented in the Appendix to this document.   

 
6.5 All Final Reports are copied to Members of the GAP Committee and posted on the 

intranet. 
 
6.6 Implementation of all recommendations is monitored by Internal Audit through 

Pentana which automatically generates a reminder e-mail to managers as a 
recommendation approaches its agreed implementation date. 

 
6.7  Follow-up action will be as described in the Audit Charter.  
 

 
7. Reporting to CMT and Members 
 
 Internal Audit Progress Reports to Members 
7.1 During 2019/20 the Internal Audit Manager will present regular Progress Reports to 

CMT and the Governance, Audit & Performance Committee which will include: 
 

• Details of the work completed by Internal Audit since the last report to the 
Committee;  
 

Page 254



 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20  
 10 

 

• Performance against the Internal Audit Work Programme 2019/20; 
 

• Details of any recommendations not implemented within the agreed timescale. 
 

 The Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 
7.2 The Internal Audit Manager will report in July 2020 to CMT and the GAP Committee 

on the audit opinions of all audits completed during 2019/20 and an give an overall 
audit opinion on the Council’s control environment for the year in the Internal Audit 
Annual Report and Opinion 2019/20. 

 
7.3 The Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion will be used by the Council to inform its 

Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 which will accompany the 2019/20 Annual 
Statement of Accounts.   

Page 255



Appendix  
 

Internal Audit Strategy & Work Programme 2019/20   11 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT ASSURANCE OPINION CRITERIA 
Opinion Definition Maximum 

recommendations 
overall 

Maximum number of  
level 4 PLUS level 3 
recommendations  

Maximum number of  
level 2 
recommendations 

Substantial 
Good effective management of risk; no 
significant recommendations arising.   

 
4 0 2 

Satisfactory 

Sound satisfactory management of risk; 
identification of some elements of the 
control framework that merit attention; 
Marginal identification of deficiencies in 
the control framework that result in 
some risks not being managed 
effectively and must be addressed. 

 

8 2 
 
6 
 

Limited 

Unsatisfactory identification of 
deficiencies in the control framework 
compromising the overall management 
of risks demanding immediate attention.   

 

12 4 
 
8 

 

Little 
Major controls have failed and/or major 
errors have been detected 

Over 12 Over 4 Over 8 

INTERNAL AUDIT RISK LEVEL DEFINITIONS 
Risk Level Action timescale Description 

4 Immediate Matters that are considered fundamental that require immediate attention and priority action 

3 Within 6 months Matters that are considered significant that should be addressed within six months. 

2 Within 12 months Matters that are considered important that should be addressed within twelve months. 

1 None defined Matters that merit attention and would improve overall control 

 

P
age 256



1 
 

Quarter 1 2019/20 Performance Report: KPIs & PIs 

 
Key:      * Cumulatively monitored      Max    Aim to maximise performance 
             # Quarterly targets profiled   Min     Aim to minimise performance 

 
 
Status Symbols  

 

  
Target achieved 

 Target not achieved but within 10% of achieving target 

 Target not achieved by over 10% 

 
Trend Arrows 

 

Short Term Assesses performance in Q1 2019/20 in comparison to Q4 2018/19 

Long Term Assesses performance in Q1 2019/20 in comparison to Q1 2018/19 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

P
age 257

A
genda Item

 8



2 
 

Directorate: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 

Democratic & Electoral Services 

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 21 
Percentage of 

minutes from 
meetings within 
10 working days 

(Max) 

89% 96% 92% 80% 69% 

  

 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 9 Denominator: 13 
The percentage of minutes published within 10 working 
days was affected by the large amount of work required 

to run both the district and parish elections and also the 
European Parliamentary elections, and the induction of 
new councillors, at a time when the department was 
short of staff. The publication of one set of minutes was 
also affected by a delayed response to the draft by 
officers from another authority. 

 

 

     

95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

 
 

Legal Services  

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 06 

Percentage of 
standard searches 
carried out in 10 

working days  
(Max) 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

  

 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 415   Denominator: 415 

100% of searches carried out in 10 working days. 
Average turnaround time is 3 working days. Target met, 
and very good turnaround time.  

     

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 

P
age 258



3 
 

Directorate: CORPORATE SERVICES 

 
 

Benefits  

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

KPI 04 
Accuracy of 
processing – 

HB/CTB Claims 

(Max) 

98.45% 99.50% 98.24% 98.69% 99.35% 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator: 154 Denominator: 155 
115 New claims and 40 Change of Circumstances 
checked in quarter 1 of 2019/20, and only 1 financial 
error has been identified. This gives an accuracy rate of 
99.35%. We continue to achieve our target of 98% due 

to our proactive checking arrangements which identifies 
any potential training issues quickly and allows us to give 
prompt and appropriate training. 

     

98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 

 
KPI 06 (a) 

Time taken to 

process Housing 
Benefit/Council 
Tax Benefit new 
claims (Days) 

(Min) 
 
 

22.4 23.9 19.2 18.0 19.9 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 5,745   Denominator:289  

61 new claims to Housing Benefit (HB) were processed 
taking a total of 943 days. 228 new claims to Local 
Council Tax Support (LCTS) were processed taking 4,802 
days. This is a combined total of 289 new claims taking 
5,745 days; an average of 19.88 days.  

     

22.0 22.0 22.0 22.0 22.0 

KPI 06 (b)  
Time taken to 

process Housing 

Benefit/Council 
Tax Benefit 

Change Events 
(Days) (Min) 

5.2 6.0 7.6 4.6 7.3 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator:39,019  Denominator:5,369  
2,560 changes to Housing Benefit (HB) were processed 
taking a total of 19,450 days. 2,809 Changes in 

Circumstance to Local Council Tax Support (LCTS) were 

processed taking 19,569 days. The increased average 
figure directly relates to a few annual rent increase 
notifications the benefits department received from 
landlords in April 2019. These notices required challenge 
due the proposed amounts being excessive, 
unreasonable and taking advantage of the HB scheme. 

     

7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 

 

P
age 259



4 
 

 

Customer Services  

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 44 

Percentage of 
customer 

enquiries resolved 
at first point of 

contact (Max) 

87% 86% 88% 88% 88% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator:29,882   Denominator:33,789  

A good solid performance from the Customer Service 
Centre this quarter resulted in 88% of all calls, enquiries 
and emails received directly into the Centre being 
resolved at first point of contact.  This is a great 

achievement given that enquiry levels are always higher 
in April due to end of year mailings and notifications. 
 

     

80% 80% 80% 80% 85% 

 

Finance 

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

KPI 01 

Percentage of 
supplier invoices 
paid within 30 
days of receipt 

(Max) 

98.90% 99.63% 100.00% 99.62% 99.72% 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 1,819   Denominator: 1,824 
Target reached for Q1 with 99.72% of invoices being 
paid within 30 days of receipt by the council. With 
invoices coming in electronically we are seeing a much 
more even number of invoices from one quarter to 

another, making the workload and attention to 
outstanding items much more regulated. On average 
invoices are paid within 6 days of receipt.  

     

98.00% 98.00% 98.00% 98.00% 98.00% 

PI 02 

Average time 
(Days) to pay 

supplier invoices 
(Min) 

7.4 7.0 7.0 6.5 6.1 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 11,086   Denominator:1,824  

Quarter 1 target reached with invoices being paid on 
average 6.08 days from when it was issued to when we 
paid the supplier.  On average it also took 3.35 days to 
pay invoices once it was passed for payment from 
departments.  

     

11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 

 

P
age 260



5 
 

 

Human Resources  

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

KPI 07 (a) 
Average number 
of days lost per 

employee through 
short-term 

sickness absence 
(Min) * 

0.97 2.13 3.31 4.75 0.85 

  

 
 
Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator:312.5    Denominator:364  
= 0.85 days lost due to sickness for this quarter. 

     

1.75 3.50 5.25 7.00 1.75 

KPI 07 (b) 
Average number 

of days lost per 
employee through 

long-term 
sickness absence 

(Min) 

32.80 33.50 39.00 38.00 49.00 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 98  Denominator:2  
Average of 49 days off work for the two long term sick 
cases this quarter. One is now back at work on a phased 
return, with the one still remaining off work under a fit 

note. This is being managed through the council's 
sickness processes and it is expected that the situation 

will be resolved during the next month. 

     

44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 44.0 

 

 

Information Communication Technology 

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 20 
Percentage of IT 

help desk calls 
resolved within 
target (Max) 

98.92% 98.30% 98.72% 99.12% 99.03% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator:1,525   Denominator:1,540 

1,540 calls of which 1,525 were resolved within SLA.   
 

     

97.00% 97.00% 97.00% 97.00% 96.00% 

 

 

P
age 261



6 
 

Museum 

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 49 

Users of the 

Museum Service 
(Max) # 

New PI for 2019/20 

4,229 

N/A N/A 

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Users exceeded target by 24% due mainly to extra 600 
visitors attracted to special events on the 1st & 2nd June, 
and the continuing high uptake of new loan boxes by 

schools. Users comprise 3,711 visitors to the museum 

site, and 518 people using the service remotely 
(outreach and research services). Website visits and 
social media are reported separately in the Curator’s 
Quarterly Report which goes to the Museum 
Management Working Group.  

 

3,400 

 

Revenues  

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

KPI 03 
Percentage of 
Non-domestic 

Rates Collected 
(Max) * 

32.03% 60.36% 87.78% 98.85% 29.44% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator: £13,261,930.65     
Denominator: £45,047,221.37  
This indicator is below expected and is due to profiling of 
collection, particularly around customers choosing 
different options for monthly instalments (10 and 12). 
This will level out by the end of the financial year.   
 

     

29.60% 59.50% 87.80% 98.80% 29.60% 

KPI 05 
Percentage of 
Council Tax 

collected (Max) * 

30.04% 58.16% 86.38% 99.17% 29.74% 

  

 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: £19,765,070.24    
Denominator: £66,467,510.89  
This indicator is below expected and is due to profiling of 

collection, particularly around customers choosing 
different options for monthly instalments (10 and 12). 
This will level out by the end of the financial year.   
 

     

29.80% 59.50% 87.80% 98.80% 29.80% 

P
age 262



7 
 

KPI 16 
Rent collected as 
a percentage of 

rent owed 
(including arrears 

b/f) (Max) * 

93.70% 95.97% 97.41% 98.57% 93.44% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: £3,792,696.23 Denominator: 

£4,058,785.65 (93.44%) 
Cumulative: Numerator: £3,792,696.23 
Denominator: £4,058,785.65 (93.44%) 
This PI has exceeded the target due to the rigorous 
approach to rent collection and regular checking and 
support by the Arrears Officer to the tenant in arrears to 

assist them in maintaining their payment agreements, 

especially those tenants in receipt of housing costs 
through their Universal Credit payments. 
 

     

89.60% 94.65% 95.65% 97.60% 89.60% 

KPI 17 
Local Council Tax 

Support 
Collection Rate 

(Max) * 

25.36% 53.53% 75.98% 89.44% 25.68% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator: £180,970.39 (Net Receipts) 
Denominator: £704,567.35 (Total Net Liability) 
Total percentage collected 25.68% 

     

25.00% 50.00% 69.00% 89.00% 25.00% 

PI 03  
Percentage of 

sundry debtor 
income overdue 
(debts over 90 
days old not 
subject to a 

payment 
arrangement) 

(Min) 

5.4% 6.6% 2.4% 2.6% 1.4% 

 

 

 

 
 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: £9,637.00   
Denominator: £676,114.29 
1.43% uncollected 
 

     

4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

P
age 263



8 
 

Directorate: PUBLIC SERVICES 

 

Communities 

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 2019/20 

Short Term 
Trend 

Long Term 
Trend 

Performance Note 

PI 07 
The Level of 
Achievement 

attained under 
the Equality 

Framework for 
Local 

Government 
(Years) (Max) 

Not measured for 2018/19 

Developing 

N/A N/A 

Quarter 1 2019/20 
‘Developing’  

Lead officer has been identified.  

Training identified and discussions with 3 training 
companies have taken place to ensure practical element 
included (the importance of and the ‘how to use’ the 
EQIA). EQIA is currently being refreshed and updated. 
Equality and diversity policy in process of being updated 
to reflect current legislation and aligned with the EFLG. 
Incorrect/out of date information has been removed 

from the website and ongoing work to ensure website 
up to date.  

 

Achieving 

 

 

Environmental Health (Commercial) 

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 41 
Percentage of 

routine food 
hygiene premises 

inspections 
completed within 
the quarter (Max) 

69% 83% 77% 100% 98% 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator:92  Denominator:94  
98% food premises inspected which equates to two 

premises being missed. One was a lower risk D rated 

premises with restricted seasonal access and the second 
was a higher rated B premises (rated B for product 
production volume and type rather than hygiene or 
management concerns) whose inspection date fell at the 
end of the quarter and was missed due to absence. Both 
premises will be picked up in Quarter 2 and will be 

inspected within mandatory FSA code of practice 
timeframe guidelines. 

     

98% 98% 98% 98% 98% 

P
age 264



9 
 

 

Housing Strategy & Operations   

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 

2019/20 
Short Term 

Trend 
Long Term 

Trend 
Performance Note 

PI 16 
Number of 

households living 
in temporary 

accommodation 
(Min) 

11 15 15 18 18 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Count: 18  

Bed and Breakfast:  8  Uttlesford District Council:  10 
Snapshot 30 June 2019. There has been an increase in 
presentations, and although the Homelessness 
Prevention Act is helping us to do more positive work, it 

does mean we are unable to accept the main housing 
duty until much later, requiring people to remain in 
temporary accommodation for longer. We are continuing 
to reflect on alternative options for the most vulnerable 
people and working with other agencies closely.   
 

     

14 14 14 14 14 

 

Planning: Development Management    

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 

2018/19 
Q3 

2018/19 
Q4 

2018/19 
Q1 2019/20 

Short Term 
Trend 

Long Term 
Trend 

Performance Note 

KPI 11  
Processing of 

Planning 
Applications: 

Major 

Applications 
(within 13 weeks 
or including any 

agreed extension 
of time) (Max) 

60.00% 80.00% 90.00% 60.00% 72.73% 

  

 
 
 

 
 
Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator: 8   Denominator: 11 
National performance exceeded. 
 

 
 
 

     

60.00% 60.00% 60.00% 60.00% 60.00% 

P
age 265



10 
 

KPI 12 
Processing of 

Planning 

applications: 
Minor applications 
(within 8 weeks 
or including any 
agreed extension 
of time) (Max) 

76.92% 65.69% 49.02% 50.54% 61.33% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 92 Denominator: 150 

Quarterly performance is below target as backlog 
cleared. Processes are being smartened up to achieve 
sustained improvement for the rest of the year.  

     

75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 75.00% 

KPI 13 

Processing of 
planning 

applications: 
Other 

applications 

(within 8 weeks 
or including any 
agreed extension 
of time) (Max)  

83.82% 84.72% 71.48% 55.91% 84.95% 

  

 

 
 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 271   Denominator: 319 
Quarterly target achieved.   

     

82.00% 82.00% 82.00% 82.00% 82.00% 

PI 24 (d) 
Quality of 

Decisions: 
Percentage of 

Appeals Upheld 
for Enforcement 

Notices (Min) 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

  

 
 

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 0 Denominator: 0 
No decisions have been issued.  

     

30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 30.00% 

PI 46  
Quality of 
Decisions: 

Percentage of 
Appeals Upheld 

for Major 

Planning 
Applications as a 

proportion of 
decisions made 

(Min) #  
 

New PI for 2019/20 

3.61% 

N/A N/A 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 3 Denominator: 83 
This data covers major application decisions for the 
period April 2016 to March 2018 and subsequent 
appeals.  

 

Total Major Decisions: 83 
Appeals on Decisions: 11 
Appeals Allowed: 3 
The total equates to 3.61% of major application 
decisions were overturned at appeal.  
 

 

 

8.00% 

P
age 266



11 
 

PI 47 
Quality of 

Decisions: 
Percentage of 

Appeals Upheld 
for Non-Major 

Planning 
Applications as a 

proportion of 

decisions made 
(Min) # 

New PI for 2019/20 

1.06% 

N/A N/A 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 33 Denominator: 3,123 

This data covers non-major application decisions for 
the period April 2016 to March 2018 and subsequent 
appeals:  
 
Total Non-Major Decisions: 3,123 
Appeals on Non-Major Decisions: 99 

Appeals Allowed: 33 

This total equates to 1.06% of non-major applications 
decisions being overturned at appeal.  

 

 

1.00% 

PI 30 
Percentage of 

planning 
applications 

validated within 5 
working days 

(Max) 

100% 99% 99% 100% 100% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator: 478 Denominator: 479 
The team have worked hard to maintain the very high 
level of service and have achieved again this quarter.  

     

95% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
age 267



12 
 

Property Services    

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 

Short 
Term 
Trend 

Long Term 
Trend 

Performance Note 

KPI 08 (a) 
Average re-let 

time in days (all 
re-lets including 

time spent in 

works) (Min) 

52 53 53 54 59.5 

  

Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator: 2,618  Denominator: 44  
 
Bedsits within sheltered housing have again been 

difficult to let and has resulted in the bedsits not 

receiving any bids under choice based lettings and 
therefore having to be re-advertised on several 
occasions. In response to this the two sheltered 
bedsits at Alexia House in Dunmow have been 
given a makeover and an open day is to take 

place in July to try and promote awareness of 
sheltered housing and hopefully increase demand 
for the bedsits. 
 
The average void turnaround with sheltered 
housing deducted was 53 calendar days of which 

only 6 calendar days was due to the letting of the 

properties and so delays with being able to let 
sheltered bedsits is really impacting upon the void 
figures. 
 
Major void works to a property in Birdbush 
Avenue, Saffron Walden (void for 119 days) and 
structural repairs to a property in Highfields, 

Langley (void for 140 days)  impacted upon the 
average void time. In addition, major void works 
were required to a property in School Villas, 

Broxted (void for 84 days) and a bungalow in 
Birchwood, Birchanger (void for 84 days). 
 

     

42 42 42 42 42 

 
 

 

P
age 268



13 
 

Street Services    

PI Code & Name 
Q1 

2018/19 
Q2 2018/19 Q3 2018/19 Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20 

Short 
Term 
Trend 

Long Term 
Trend 

Performance Note 

KPI 14 

Percentage of 
household waste 
sent for reuse, 

recycling and 
composting (LAA) 

(Max) # 

58.92% 52.89% 49.17% 43.87% 54.66% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
Numerator:4,617.65 tonnes     
Denominator: 8,448.71 tonnes 

The waste tonnages are estimated as we are 

waiting for the figures from Essex County Council. 
There has been a focus on tackling contamination 
within the dry recyclables, particularly black bags 
and food waste. The waste & recycling officer has 
been out working with the crews tagging 

contaminated bins. This message has also been 
advertised with Spedian banners on the side of 
the refuse collection vehicles. 
 

     

51.00% 55.00% 51.00% 50.00% 51.00% 

KPI 15 (b) 

Percentage of 
collections of 

waste and 
recyclables 
successfully 

made on first 
visit (Max)  

99.89% 99.89% 99.94% 99.94% 99.95% 

  

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 

Numerator: 935,548 (Number of successful 
collections)   
Denominator: 936,000 (Total number of 
scheduled collections)  
=99.95%. Great performance and each month 
was consistent with an average of 150 missed 
bins.   

 

     

99.90% 99.90% 99.90% 99.90% 99.95% 

PI 48  
Attainment of 

‘Green’ for 
Operator 

Compliance Risk 

Score (Yes or No) 

New PI for 2019/20 

Yes 

N/A N/A 

 
Quarter 1 2019/20 
DVSA use the Operator Compliance Risk Score 

(OCRS) system to decide which vehicles should be 

inspected. The OCRS is used to calculate the risk 
of an operator not following the rules on 
roadworthiness (the condition of its vehicles) and 
traffic, eg drivers' hours, weighing checks. The 
operators risk is measured by a traffic light 
system green, amber or red. 
 

 

Yes 

 

P
age 269



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Committee: Governance, Audit & Performance Committee

Title: Quarter 1 2019/20 Performance Indicator 
Report

Date:
25th July 2019

Report 
Author:

Oliver KnightOliver Knight, PFI & Performance 
Officer
oknight@uttlesford.gov.uk
Paula Evans, Customer Services & 
Performance Manager 
pevans@uttlesford.gov.uk 

Item for decision: 
No

Summary

1. This report presents the Quarter 1 2019/20 outturn and data analysis for all 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and Performance Indicators (PIs). 

Recommendations

2. None

Financial Implications

3. There are no financial implications associated with this report.

Background Papers

4. None

Impact 

5.

Communication/Consultation None

Community Safety None

Equalities None beyond service improvement on the 
equalities performance indicator.

Health and Safety None

Human Rights/Legal 
Implications

None

Sustainability None

Ward-specific impacts None

Workforce/Workplace None
Page 271



Situation

6. Appendix A presents the data for Quarter 1 2019/20 (1st April 2019 to 30th 
June 2019) for each key performance indicator (KPI) and performance 
indicator (PI) that is monitored and reported on a quarterly basis. Performance 
is monitored against all targets agreed at Governance, Audit and Performance 
Committee in May 2019. 

7. For comparison purposes, the report contains data for Quarter 1 2019/20 and 
the previous four quarters. All outturn data for Quarter 1 2019/20 is shown in 
bold. 

8. All data and performance notes have been reviewed by the Corporate 
Management Team and the Joint Executive Board. 

9. Overall performance for KPIs and PIs can be summarised as follows, with the 
majority of indicators meeting target:

Q1 2019/20 (31 indicators)

TOTAL Q1 2019/20
21 68%
4 13%
6 19%

Total 31 100%

10.When reviewing the Quarter 1 2019/20 attainment of KPIs and PIs by 
directorate, Corporate Services has performed better than Public Services: 

Status Corporate Services Public Services Chief Executive 
Office

11 73% 9 64% 1 50%
3 20% 1 7% 0 0%
1 7% 4 29% 1 50%

Total 15 100% 14 100% 2 100%

11.When reviewing the short term performance trend by comparing Q1 2019/20 
performance against Q4 2018/19, it can be noted that there has been a 
decrease in performance. A similar performance trend is highlighted when 
reviewing the long term performance trend, comparing Q1 2018/19 and Q1 
2019/20. 

However, these decreases can be explained in that data is not comparable for 
PI 46, PI 47, PI 48 & PI 49 as these were newly introduced for the 2019/20 
performance year. It should be noted that three out of four of these new 
indicators attained a ‘Green’ status for Quarter 1 2019/20. 

Page 272



Q4 2018/19 & Q1 2019/20 (26* indicators)

Status Q4 2018/19 Q1 2019/20
20 77% 18 69%
0 0% 3 12%
6 23% 5 19%

Total 26 100% 26 100%
      
     Q1 2018/19 & Q1 2019/20

Status Q1 2018/19 Q1 2019/20
20 77% 18 69%
3 11.5% 3 12%
3 11.5% 5 19%

Total 26 100% 26 100%
   *Data is not comparable for PI 07 as not measured during the 2018/19 Year.

12.There are three KPIs that have not met their target but are within the 10% 
threshold and have an ‘amber’ status: 

KPI 03 Percentage of Non-Domestic Rates Collected (Max) *

KPI 05 Percentage of Council Tax Collected (Max) *

KPI 06 (b) Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Local Council Tax 
Support Change Events (Min)

13.There are three KPIs that have exceeded the 10% performance threshold and    
have a ‘red’ status:

KPI 07 (b)
Average number of days lost per employee through long-term sickness 
absence (Min)
As per the note against the performance indicator, there were two members of 
staff on long term sick leave during the quarter and one is now back in work. 
With regards to the other case, this is being progressed through the council’s 
sickness procedure and a resolution is expected within the next month. 

KPI 08(a)
Average re-let time in days (all re-lets including time spent in works) 
(Min)
Following discussion at the November GAP meeting, it was agreed that a 
report on housing voids that was going to the Housing Board would be 
circulated to committee members. This report details the actions which are 
being implemented to improve performance of this indicator. A link to that 

Page 273



report and the associated minute was emailed on 7 December 2018. Officers 
are continuing to monitor this indicator and working proactively to improve 
performance. 

KPI 12
Processing of Planning applications: Minor applications (within 8 weeks 
or including any agreed extension of time) (Max) 
As detailed in GAP Performance Indicator Reports for Quarter 3 2018/19 & 
Quarter 4 2018/19, officers have established and implemented an action plan 
to address current challenges, and continue to enhance this plan to ensure 
performance improves. Whilst this indicator is not achieving target thus far, 
attainment has nevertheless increased significantly from 49.02% (Quarter 3 
2018/19) to 61.33% (Quarter 1 2019/20).   

14. If members have any questions regarding the data, or would like to see a more 
detailed analysis on a particular indicator, then please do not hesitate to 
contact the report author. 

Risk Analysis
15.

Risk Likelihood Impact Mitigating actions

If performance 
indicators do not 
meet 
quarterly/annual 
targets then areas 
such as customer 
satisfaction and 
statutory 
adherence to 
government led 
requirements 
could be affected 
leading to a loss 
of reputation for 
the Council. 

2 – The 
majority of 
Performance 
Indicators 
perform on or 
above target. 
Where 
necessary, 
accompanying 
notes to 
individual 
performance 
indicators 
detail 
improvement 
plans.

3 – The 
majority of 
service areas 
in the council 
are customer-
facing. 

Performance is 
monitored by CMT 
and the committee on 
a quarterly basis. The 
inclusion of five 
quarters of data helps 
to identify trends. 
Where necessary, the 
Performance Team 
provide trend analysis 
to support CMT and 
Service Managers in 
improving 
performance. 

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 274


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	3 Audit Results Report 2018/19 (to follow)
	A_Front Cover_18.19
	B_CONTENTS PAGE 18.19
	C_NARRATIVE REPORT 18.19
	D_STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
	E_GROUP ARRANGEMENT AND ACCOUNTS
	F_CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 18.19
	G_STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 18.19
	H_ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	I_INDEX PAGE 18.19

	4 Statement of Accounts 2018/19 (to follow)
	Appendix A - Letter of Representation 31 March 2019

	5 Cyber Security Update
	6 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2018-19
	Enc. 1 for Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion 2018-19

	7 Internal Audit Strategy and Work Programme 2019-20
	Internal Audit Strategy and Programme 2019-20

	8 Quarter 1 2019/20 KPI & PI Report
	Quarter 1 2019/20 Performance Indicator Report


